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BUSineSS at d Glance CITIC Pacific’s primary

focus is on providing basic infrastructure — power generation, aviation, civil
infrastructure and communications - in Hong Kong and mainland China. The
Company also manufactures special steel, invests in and develops property

and distributes motor vehicles and consumer products.

Based in Hong Kong with a deep knowledge of China, CITIC Pacific consists
of sound businesses that produce good cash flows, with the potential to grow.
Our finance is well-structured and we have a tradition of operating with

excellent standards of corporate governance.

Trust, Reliability and Confidence.
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Power Generation CITIC Pacific builds, owns and operates power plants
in mainland China. Current total installed generating capacity is 9,746 MW
with another 3,832MW under construction. Total attributable capacity is
2,916MW today.

Aviation CITIC Pacific is a key participant in the aviation sector through
Cathay Pacific Airways, Hong Kong Dragon Airlines, air cargo provider HACTL
and Air China Cargo.

Civil Infrastructure CITIC Pacific is either an owner or involved in the
management of all three of Hong Kong harbour crossings - vital facilities that
connect Hong Kong Island to Kowloon.

Communications CITIC Pacific focuses on providing value-added services.
CITIC Telecom 1616 and cpcnet provide 1pp wholesale and data services,
CITIC Guoan operates cable TV networks in mainland China and cT™ is
Macau’s communications provider of choice.

%5 8l ® & Special Steel Manufacturing
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Jiangyin steel plant, Hubei XinYegang and Daye Special Steel are some of
China’s leading manufacturers of special steel used in bearings and gears.

Alone or with partners, CITIC Pacific develops, manages and owns properties
including Hong Kong’s CITIC Tower, Festival Walk, Discovery Bay, and
Shanghai’s New Westgate Garden, CITIC Square and Royal Pavilion.

$H & & 47 8§ Marketing and Distribution
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Dah Chong Hong and Sims Trading serve the people of Hong Kong and other
parts of China by distributing an array of motor vehicles, consumer and food
commodities, branded food, and household products.

CITIC Capital Markets Holdings, bio-pharmaceutical research and distance
learning are all developing businesses of the CITIC Pacific Group.
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Profit Attributable to Shareholders
Major Businesses’ Contribution
Power Generation
Aviation
Civil Infrastructure
Communications
Special Steel Manufacturing
Property
Marketing & Distribution
Investment Properties Revaluation
Cash Contributed from all Businesses
Capital Employed
Shareholders’ Funds
Net Debt

Available Loan Facilities

1,301

229
421
635
230
178
508
264
(587)
2,451
49,300
38,772
5,017
6,368

LE# At E

in HK$

BRAEFN
BREE

Earnings per Share

Dividends per Share

Staff

Please see page 167 for definition of terms used
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I am pleased to report to shareholders that in 2004 CITIC Pacific achieved
a net profit of HK$3,581 million, 175% more than 2003, as were earnings
per share at HK$1.63. The board recommends a final dividend of HK$0.80
per share giving shareholders a total 2004 dividend of HK$1.10, an

increase of 10% from 2003.

Better profit performance was seen in almost all of CITIC Pacific’s
businesses particularly in the aviation, special steel manufacturing and
power generation segments. The details are analysed and described later

in this annual report to shareholders.

Our company not only made a significant gain in terms of profit growth
in 2004, but also made progress in implementing our long term plans to
expand our growing investment in the key sectors of the Chinese economy

in which we have particular skills.

Power

In January 2004 CITIC Pacific purchased 20% of North United Power
Corporation, which generates power for Inner Mongolia and the
surrounding provinces and has ready supplies of coal nearby. Through
2004 construction of the Ligang Power Station phase III (2 x 600MW)
and phase IV (2 x 600MW) and the Zhengzhou phase III (2 x 200MW)
progressed according to plans leading to commercial operation in 2006
and 2007. In addition, an equal partnership of CITIC Pacific and China
Huaneng Power Group acquired a 40% stake in the Hanfeng Power Plant
(2 x 660MW) located in Hebei Province in 2004.

Today, CITIC Pacific has 2,916 MW of attributable generating capacity,
which will rise to 5,083MW on completion of the plants under

construction.
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The substantial increase in electricity generated by our power plants in
2004 compared with 2003 is evidence that demand for electric power
remains strong in mainland China. Our belief is that as the Chinese
economy continues to grow, the current low per capita consumption of
power will rise, requiring a considerable increase in generating capacity.
With our many years of experience and expertise in building and
operating power stations in mainland China, CITIC Pacific is ideally placed

to contribute to meeting the demand.

During 2004 there was a significant increase in the price of coal and
obtaining a sufficient supply was a challenge to which management

responded well by securing long-term supply contracts.

Special Steel Manufacturing

Demand for high quality special steel products remain strong and our
Jiangyin Xingcheng steel plant produced a record 1.76 million tonnes in
2004, 1.58 million tonnes was for domestic consumption and 182,040
tonnes was exported. Jiangyin Xingcheng continues to be a leader in the
manufacture of special steel in China. To enhance its leading position in
the special steel industry, Jiangyin Xingcheng is proceeding to cooperate
with Sumitomo Metals Kokura to produce high-grade special steel

primarily substituting existing imported auto-component grade steel.

In October 2004, CITIC Pacific acquired a 95% stake in the Hubei Xin
Yegang Co. (formerly Dongfang Iron and Steel Co.) in Huangshi, Hubei
province, through which other assets were acquired including an interest
in the Shenzhen Stock Exchange listed Daye Special Steel Co.. Subject to
regulatory approval, our interest in this company will increase to
approximately 58%. In 2004, these plants manufactured approximately
1.73 million tonnes of steel. These acquisitions will strengthen our leading
position in China’s special steel market by expanding our product range

and geographical coverage.
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Our major customers are in the auto-component, power equipment, and
machine tool industries where underlying demand is expected to grow
considerably in the coming decade giving confidence in the future of the

special steel sector.

Aviation

Both Cathay Pacific and Dragonair experienced a dramatic turnaround
compared with 2003 when the industry was severely affected by sars. In
2004 a record number of passengers were carried thanks to a better
economic environment and the increasing number of mainland travellers

to Hong Kong and other destinations.

Air China Cargo began official operation in January 2004 and had a
profitable first year.

Higher oil prices remain a concern in the aviation sector but the
management of all our airline associates have demonstrable success in
reducing overall unit costs and become more efficient year-by-year and

I am confident these efforts will continue in 2005.

Communications

Macau Telecom operates in an increasingly competitive market but is
benefiting from the great economic development in Macau while, CITIC
Telecom 1616 has concentrated on improving margins on the considerable
flow of traffic in and out of mainland China, and establishing the second

Hong Kong internet exchange.
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Property

Occupancy of our Shanghai investment properties CITIC Square and
Royal Pavilion remains high and they provide stable rental income. In
the past few years, these two properties, known for their quality and
management, have established an excellent reputation and image in
Shanghai’s commercial and luxury residential markets. We are planning a
1 million sq. ft. commercial development in Ningbo Zhejiang province, to

be also named CITIC Square to further enhance our brand name.

As for our development properties, the first phase of our New Westgate
Garden project is proceeding smoothly. The first 255 units were marketed
in August 2004 and were all sold within a few days. The other units of the
first phase are to be sold in batches in the first half of 2005. Given the
strong demand for high quality housing, we are confident that excellent

sales results will be achieved.

In December 2004, 1.45 million sq. ft. of land zoned for low-density
residential development in the Qingpu district in Shanghai was bought in
a public tender. We are also in the process of acquiring two blocks of land
nearby to enhance the overall development. CITIC Pacific will seek
opportunities to gradually build up our land bank in mainland China for

sustainable future development.

Performance of our Hong Kong investment properties was satisfactory in
a recovering market with stable rental income, which contributes to the
Group’s substantial cash flow. Festival Walk, in particular, has seen rental

returns increase over the years.

Land premiums have been settled on a 320,000 sq ft. residential and
commercial development at Tung Chau Street, Kowloon, and the
conversion of an agricultural land at Hung Shui Kiu, New Territories into
537,000 sq ft. of residential usage. The possibility of upgrading Grand

Court, Kowloon is also being explored.
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Marketing and Distribution

Dah Chong Hong and Sims Trading continued to develop the
infrastructure of their business in mainland China following a plan that
expects solid results in the coming years. Our trading business operates in
many different segments and products and every year the balance of
business is different, but taking the whole, progress is made year-by-year.
In 2004 the general trading business made particular progress especially in
Shiseido cosmetics and distribution of branded goods. The motor market
in Hong Kong revived strongly compared with 2003, while in the mainland
imported commercial vehicle sales were affected by tightened credit and
the anticipation that the import quota system would be abolished on 31
December 2004.

On 11 March 2005, CITIC Pacific entered into an agreement with CITIC
Group to acquire at cost a 35% interest in Wal-Mart East China Stores Co.
The acquisition is subject to obtaining the necessary approvals from the
relevant government authorities. The joint venture will operate Wal-Mart
stores in the city of Shanghai as well as Zhejiang and Jiangsu provinces.
This acquisition will facilitate the development of our Marketing and
Distribution business and will also bring synergies to our property

development business.

Finance

The Group’s financial position remains healthy with stable cash flows and
sufficient available facilities to support the needs of our future expansion.
At the same time, CITIC Pacific will continue to employ conservative and

sound financial planning to ensure that our finances stay strong.
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Our Future

CITIC Pacific’s business is increasingly focused in mainland China where
I expect continued high economic growth in the foreseeable future. The
strategy of CITIC Pacific is to develop the businesses we know and operate
well to improve our returns, and increasing shareholder value is our
ultimate objective. Our belief continues to be that a diversified business
model is most appropriate to a company focusing on one geographical

area.

On behalf of all the directors, I thank all the staff of CITIC Pacific for their
hard work in the past year and hope that we will all work together for the
future development and success of CITIC Pacific.

Larry Yung Chi Kin
Chairman
Hong Kong, 15 March 2005
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CITIC Pacific’s power team has over 10 years of experience as a power
operator in mainland China and they have first hand experience,
knowledge and expertise in seeking investment opportunities, supervising
construction and active involvement in the management of the plants’ day

to day operations.

In 2004, demand for electricity remained strong in most of the regions
where our 9,746MW of installed and 2,916 MW of attributable capacities
are located. Excluding newly acquired power plants, a total of 18,269
million kwh of electricity was generated, an increase of 8.4% from 2003.
North United Power, Hanfeng and Huaibei, which were added in 2004,
generated a total of 52,776 million kwh of electricity. Profits rose 92%,

a result of first time contribution from North United Power and an

increased ownership in Ligang phase I and II.

PRERESANERMAERAERERAE
CITIC Pacific’s Total and
Attributable Installed Capacity
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FIERE B EmMEE ER LT Operational statistics of CITIC Pacific’s power plants

RERASE R BEE4LE Electricity Generated HE4E Heat Generated
FTAE i, OKR)|  wal|gams | gRs - -
Location Installed | Ownership | Type Utilisation #R B
Capacity % Hours 2004 2003 | change 2004 2003 | change
(MW) (m kWh) | (m kWh) % (kGJ) (kGJ) %
& TR MR
Ligang Jiangsu 1,400 65 | Coal fired 6,803 9,524 8,944 6.49 - - -
HoiE AL iy
Hanfeng Hebei 1,320 20| Coal fired 6,562 8,662 t - - - -
L = REE
Huaibei Anhui 600 12.5| Coal fired 6,415 3,849 T - - - -
E3) A KL
Kaifeng Henan 125 50 | Coal fired 5,630 704 696 1.15 - - -
EFES A HERAEHE
North United | Inner Mongolia Coal fired and
5,041 20 | Co-generation | 7,268 | 40,259 * - 37,650 - -
L ol HEHE
Zhengzhou |Henan 600 50 | Co-generation | 5,735 3,441 3,232 6.47 5,331 5,944 | -10.31
I R S A HMEHE
Hohhot Inner Mongolia 400 35| Co-generation | 7,222 2,889 2,638 9.51 1,730 883 | 95.92
A H HEHE
Jilin Jilin 200 60 | Co-generation | 6,897 1,379 965| 42.89 1,150 243 | 373.25
E%E] TS B E
Weihai Shandong 36 49| Co-generation | 3,427 123 174 | -29.28 2,573 2,675| -0.08
=1 IS HEHE 110Em 14081
Chenming Shandong 24 49 | Co-generation | 8,616 207 201 2.99| 1.1m tonnes |1.4m tonnes | -21.43
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CITIC Pacific has a long-term commitment to the power generation
business as we believe that demand for electricity will continue to rise as
the Chinese economy develops. As an independent power producer in the
power market in China, CITIC Pacific has proven track record of operating
efficiently and working with partners on attractive new investments.

We believe that efficient, low cost management of our plants is the key to

power generation remaining an attractive business with good returns.
The following progress was made:

In February 2005, CITIC Pacific entered into an agreement with its
joint venture partners to change Ligang phase I (2 x 350MW) and
IT (2 x 350MW) from their existing BOT structure to an equity joint

venture. Under the original BoT contract, CITIC Pacific would have to
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transfer all its rights and benefits, at the expiration of the franchise period,
to the other jv partners at nil consideration. These conditions will cease to
exist under the new joint venture arrangement. This transaction is subject

to approval by the relevant authorities.

Construction of the Ligang phase III, which consists of two 600MW units,
is progressing on schedule with commercial operation expected in 2006.
Phase IV (2x 600MW) is also underway scheduled for completion in 2007.

Construction of Zhengzhou phase III, a 400MW (2 x 200MW) expansion

is progressing well with commercial operation on target for 2006.

North United Power Corporation, a joint venture CITIC Pacific formed
with three other partners officially began operation in January 2004 and
made its first full year contribution to CITIC Pacific’s power profits.
730MW of new generating capacity was completed by North United Power
in 2004, bringing the total attributable capacity of North United Power to
5,041MW. Strategically located in Inner Mongolia, an area with an
abundance of coal, North United Power is not only able to obtain
sufficient supply of coal at a lower price than many other companies but
also save on otherwise high transportation costs. The joint venture will
continue to seek attractive new opportunities in the autonomous region
with the goal of supplying electricity not only locally but also to the
North, the Northeast of China and Beijing.

In October 2004, CITIC Pacific acquired a 12.5% stake in the Huaibei
Guoan Power plant (2 x300MW), in Anhui Province.

In 2004, CITIC Pacific acquired a 40% stake in the Hanfeng Power Plant
located in Hebei Province through a 50/50 joint venture with China
Huaneng Group, giving CITIC Pacific an attributable ownership of 20%.
The plant has a remaining franchise period of 18 years. The Hanfeng plant
is an operating power plant that has two generating units of 660MW each

commissioned in March and September 2001.

In 2004, the price of coal rose substantially due to continued high

demand for power in China where the majority of power plants are coal
fired. The inability of generators to raise tariffs means that profits for
power generators are being squeezed. The government’s intention of
linking fuel cost to tariffs, if implemented, will provide some much needed
relief. More work to secure long-term coal supply contracts, managing

costs and improving operating efficiency will be undertaken.
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fin == Aviation
b2 Headquarters A #E Ownership
Bl Zefinze e Cathay Pacific Hong Kong 25.5%
TEREMZE BB Dragonair Hong Kong 28.5%
BAEEE BB HACTL Hong Kong 10%
BRI EE b= Air China Cargo Beijing 25%
LB BB TatE in HK$ million 2004 2003
BRIz Cathay Pacific 1,097 330
FBREMTZE Dragonair 186 20
BEREEE HACTL 90 71
Bl B 5 Air China Cargo 25 -
piElB=g ) Contribution 1,398 421
154855 A E BALL 1 Proportion of total contribution 37% 16%
FAE Net assets 11,747 12,880
BEARRR Capital expenditure 518 -
#Z % Cathay Pacific
BEZEAZ BHES
Monthly Passengers Carried Monthly Cargo Carried
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Cathay Pacific (www.cathaypacific.com), an international passenger
and freight carrier based in Hong Kong, provides top quality services
to 92 destinations around the world. CITIC Pacific is the second largest
shareholder and, through participation on the board, the executive
and other committees, has been actively involved in Cathay Pacific’s

management since it first became a shareholder in 1991.

2004 was a record year in the history of Cathay Pacific in which it carried
13.7 million passengers and 972,416 tonnes of freight, an increase of 36%
and 11% respectively from 2003. Revenue rose 32% to HK$39.1 billion
and profit 239% to HK$4.4 billion over those of 2003. This strong
performance is the result of a better economic environment in which
demand for travel surged. Frequencies to certain cities such as Sydney

and New York were increased and new cargo capacity was added.

Following the Air Traffic Agreement between Hong Kong and Beijing
signed in September of 2004, the airline began offering a number of
services to mainland China. These services will allow Cathay Pacific to
capture its share of the growing mainland China air travel market to fully
take advantage of its global network by providing customers the
convenience of accessing China on the same carrier. In December 2004,
Cathay Pacific began daily service to Beijing. A new daily freighter service
to Shanghai was launched in January 2005. In addition, the airline began
flying to Xiamen three times a week on 28 February 2005. In December
2004, Cathay Pacific made a strategic investment in Air China by acquiring
a 10% stake in the Chinese major airline’s 1po after signing an earlier letter
of understanding covering co-operation between the two airlines

in the areas of engineering, ground handling, catering, cargo services

and information technology among others. This will promote close
partnership and co-operation between the two airlines, which will be

mutually beneficial to both.

Dragonair (www.dragonair.com) operates passenger services to

30 destinations in Asia, of which 21 are to mainland Chinese cities.
Profit rose 820% to HK$652 million in 2004. The airline achieved record
numbers of passengers and cargo carried reaching 4.6 million passengers
and 342,413 tonnes of freight. The 49% growth in the number of
passengers was underpinned by increased demand for travel to all
destinations, in particular to and from mainland China. In response to
this, in 2004, Dragonair’s flights to Shanghai were increased to 87 a week
and a service to Tokyo was launched in April. The 27% growth in cargo

13



2740188 Business Review

# BEfil = Dragonair
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was driven by strong demand from manufacturing regions in China and
an expanded cargo network including the addition of Frankfurt, London

and Nanjing, one of the largest cities in the Yantze River Delta area.

HACTL (www.hactl.com), the operator of the largest air cargo terminal in
the world, SuperTerminal 1, handled a total of 2,262,703 tonnage of cargo,
an increase of 12.6% from the previous high in 2003. This was primarily
driven by strong exports, in particular to Europe, mainland China and

the U.S. SuperTerminal 1 has a potential capacity of 3.5 million tonnes per
annum, providing adequate capacity to support a robust growth of air

cargo in Hong Kong and mainland China into the future.

Air China Cargo, a joint venture in which CITIC Pacific has a 25% interest,
began operation in January 2004 and made its first profit contribution to
CITIC Pacific. It handles all of Air China’s international and domestic cargo
and related ground service businesses. Total freight carried in 2004 was
642,184 tonnes. At the end of 2004, the company employs 5 freighter
planes and the belly space in Air China’s 145 passenger planes to carry
cargo. Two additional freighters will be added in 2005. It flies to 70

domestic and 40 international destinations.



H e Civil Infrastructure

2 Location A Ownership
RBBERE B Eastern Harbour Tunnel Hong Kong
— B — Road 71%
— S — Rail 50%
7alR gk E BB Western Harbour Tunnel Hong Kong 35%
P EIRF R EIE R B Four waste treatment facilities Hong Kong 20% - 50%
E B EIBIZINH g Laogang Phase 4 Landfill Shanghai 30%
LB EE it E in HK$ million 2004 2003
il I= ) Contribution 329 635
L4 A B BRI Proportion of total contribution 9% 24%
FEE Net assets 2,130 2,113
=N Capital expenditure 61 5

F#E B E Tunnels in Hong Kong

REBERE

BESRES Eastern Harbour Tunnel

Western Harbour Tunnel

AL R B B
Cross Harbour Tunnel
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registered an average daily traffic increase of 3% in 2004 to 73,478 vehicles
due to improvement in economic conditions. CITIC Pacific is the
controlling shareholder in the road tunnel with a 71% interest, and has

a 50% interest in the rail tunnel. With the objective of providing investors
with a reasonable but not excessive remuneration as set in the original
contract, EHT applied for a toll increase in September 2002, which was
refused by the Hong Kong Government. In January 2005, the arbitrator
awarded a toll increase of HK$10 for private cars with corresponding
increases for other categories of vehicles which will be implemented

beginning May 2005.

Western Harbour Tunnel (‘WHT’) (www.westernharbourtunnel.com)

is a key section of the Route 3 highway, which links Hong Kong Island,
mainland China and Chek Lap Kok Airport. CITIC Pacific’s shareholding
is 35%. Average daily traffic in 2004 registered a 5% increase to 39,188
vehicles even after a toll increase of HK$3 for private cars in July 2004.
WHT’s traffic growth is limited by the delay in the completion of access
roads, particularly the Central-Wanchai bypass and competition from

the low tolls at the government-owned Cross Harbour Tunnel.
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CITIC Pacific also has a 35% interest in the company that has managed
the Cross Harbour Tunnel under contract for the government since
September 1999. The current contract will expire in 2006.

Environmental

CITIC Pacific has an interest in four waste treatment facilities in Hong
Kong, including a chemical waste treatment plant and two refuse transfer
stations, with a total of 4,000 tonnes of daily waste processing capacity,
and we also operate a landfill site with a 43 million cubic metre capacity.

In 2004, a total of 4 million tonnes of waste was processed.

In Shanghai, the joint venture between CITIC Pacific, Onyx, a wholly
owned subsidiary of Veolia Environment, and Shanghai Chengtou
Environment Industry Development Co., Ltd. is responsible for the design,
construction, operation and maintenance of the Phase 4 of Laogang
Municipal Waste Landfill for 20 years. Construction is progressing as

planned and trial operation commenced in February 2005.
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Communications

o Location A Ownership
HF{EEF1616 CITIC Telecom 1616 B Hong Kong 100%
CPCNet CPCNet BB Hong Kong 100%
FERZ CITIC Guoan Bi: Beijing 50%
JRFIER CTM (Macau Telecom) JERFT Macau 20%
LB EE T E in HK$ million 2004 2003
EHERE Turnover 1,449 1,590
st ) B Contribution 133 230
4R A ERRLL 51 Proportion of total contribution 3% 9%
FEAE Net assets 2,525 2,330
BARFREZ Capital expenditure 177 185
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CITIC Pacific’s communications businesses include Macau Telecom, a full
service telecommunications operator and others that focus on providing

value-added services.

CTM

20% owned by CITIC Pacific since 1991, Companhia de Telecomunicacoes
de Macau s.A.R.L. (‘CTM’) (www.ctm.net) is the provider of choice of
fixed line, mobile telephone and Internet access services to the people of
Macau sAR. Due to competition for its mobile business, overall profit
decreased 8% in 2004. However, its fixed line and Internet business
remain healthy and the rapid development of Macau in recent times

provides more opportunities for the future.

IDD Wholesale and Data Services

CITIC Telecom 1616 (www.citic1616.com) is a leader in Asia’s IDD
wholesale market, interconnected to more than 200 international telecom
and mobile carriers in over 80 countries. In 2004, 1616 handled
approximately 3.5 billion minutes of 1pD traffic of which 56% is destined
for mainland China. The drop in total call volume is a result of 1616’

insistence on maintaining margins on mainland China related calls.
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cpcNet Hong Kong (www.cpcnet-hk.com), a telecommunications carrier,
provides Internet services to corporate customers in the Greater China
area. Its “TrueConnect’ is the first Multiprotocol Label Switching based
Internet Protocol Virtual Private Network built in Greater China. In 2004,
the customer base of “TrueConnect’ increased 62% and it now has 16
self-owned Point of Presence (POPs) covering Greater China and service
coverage spanning Asia, USA and Europe. It is anticipated that in 2005
further growth in customer numbers will make ‘“TrueConnect’ profitable.

CITIC Guoan

CITIC Guoan’s primary business is its 62% interest in CITIC Guoan
Information Industry Co., Ltd. (‘Guoan Information’), a Shenzhen Stock
Exchange listed company whose primary business is operating cable Tv
networks in mainland China. At the end of 2004, Guoan Information had
approximately 4 million subscribers in 17 cities in China. In addition to its
catv networks, Guoan Information also has interests in system integration
and software development. CITIC Guoan also owns the CITIC Building in
Beijing, which was 98% occupied at the end of 2004.

E-Commerce

CITIC Pacific’s cooperation with All-China Sports Federation and the
Chinese Olympic Committee continues to focus on developing business
models, which aim to fully utilise the wealth of data available to the joint
venture to make it profitable. Our Internet games business continues to

focus on developing new games to attract more players.
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Special Steel Manufacturing

LB B BT E in HK$ million 2004 2003
- Turnover 7,177 4,611
piElB=1. ) Contribution 438 178
15 4% T B B L Proportion of total contribution 11% 7%
FEE Net assets 4,840 1,421
=Nz Capital expenditure 3,417 545
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Jiangyin Special Steel: CITIC Pacific’s interest in special steel
manufacturing dates back to the early 1990s when the company bought

a small general carbon steel maker in Jiangyin, Jiangsu Province. Over the
years, with market repositioning, new technology, modern management
and capital, Jiangyin Special Steel is now a leader in the manufacturing
of high-grade special steel used in bearings, gears, springs and high-
pressurized pipes in China with annual production capacity of 2 million
tonnes. In January 2004, CITIC Pacific increased its shareholding in
Jiangyin Special Steel to 79% by purchasing an additional 24% from its

joint venture partner.

The plant’s major products are mainly supplied to auto parts, power
equipment, and industrial machinery manufacturers as well as to the
petroleum and petrochemical industries. Many of the products have
received certifications from users such as skr of Sweden, rFAG of Germany
and Caterpillar of the United States. Production of Jiangyin Special

Steel increased to 1.76 million tonnes in 2004. Profit grew 146% compared
with 2003 in spite of fluctuating raw material and end-user markets.

Over the years continuous efforts have been made to improve operating
efficiency and lower production costs through technology innovation and
better management. In an effort to upgrade the quality of its products and
consolidate its leading position, Jiangyin Special Steel is co-operating with
Sumitomo Metals Kokura to produce high-grade special steel targeting

primarily import substitution for auto components.
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Xin Yegang and Daye Special Steel: In October 2004, CITIC Pacific
acquired a 95% stake in Hubei Xin Yegang Co. (formerly known as
Dongfang Iron and Steel Co.) in Huangshi, Hubei Province through which
also acquired other assets including an interest in the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange listed Daye Special Steel Co. Subject to regulatory approval, the
shareholding of CITIC Pacific in Daye Special Steel Co. will increase to
58% from the current 19%. At the end of 2004, total annual production
capacity of the plants is approximately 2 million tonnes and 1.73 million
tonnes were produced for the year. In addition to producing products that
are supplementary to those of Jiangyin Special Steel, Xin Yegang and Daye
Special Steel also manufacture high alloy steel, tool and die steel and
seamless steel tubes. Through this acquisition, synergies can be created in
broadening the products offered and improving geographic coverage of
customers. Xin Yegang and Daye Special Steel will also benefit from the
increased productivity and efficiency brought by modern management,

techniques, and years of experience and expertise of CITIC Pacific.

The special steel market in China is roughly 8% of the approximately

270 million tonnes of total annual steel production, compared with
15-20% in industrialized countries. As China’s economy and in particular
its auto market, power equipment, petroleum, petrochemical and
industrial machinery manufacturing industries continue to grow, it is
inevitable that more and more special steel will be needed. The
combination of Jiangyin Special Steel, Xin Yegang and Daye Special Steel

makes CITIC Pacific a major factor in the special steel market in China.
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Property

LB BB T E in HK$ million 2004 2003
= Turnover 768 401
e B B Contribution 608 508
142 A FRALL 1 Proportion of total contribution 16% 19%
FAE Net assets 19,519 18,986
BARRAX Capital expenditure 1,291 104
BAEmmEiE
B (FFHR)
Approximate GFA
gl Type Ownership ('000 sq. ft.)
-t Properties in Hong Kong
REY Investment Properties
PEAE [GES CITIC Tower Commercial 40% 562
X—H [GES Festival Walk Commercial 50% 1,200
AREITEER D [EES DCH Commercial Centre Commercial 100% 389
Efm o a Wyler Centre Industrial 100% 393
BEFR L I Broadway Centre Industrial 100% 342
MR Z A D T Yee Lim Industrial Centre Industrial 100% 320
Hith =S| Others Various 100% 546
BEIEA Development Properties
asE FERE Discovery Bay Residential township 50% 3,000
D EmMNE FEREE Tung Chau Street, Cheung Sha Wan  Residential / Commercial ~ 100% 321
A *= Others Residential 100% 758
==ty ES Properties in Shanghai
REY Investment Properties
FEREES [SES CITIC Square Commercial 80% 1,137
ElINC) F=E Royal Pavilion Residential 100% 374
REIEA Development Properties
E P F=E New Westgate Garden Residential 100% 3,000
SHEIEA F=E Qingpu Development Residential 100% 1,000
NEE 3o YImiiEsE  Near Pudong Airport Logistic Development 100% 3,000
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CITIC Pacific’s properties are located in Hong Kong and mainland China,
in particular Shanghai and its surrounding provinces. They consist of
large-scale residential and commercial investment properties and
development projects. CITIC Pacific has an experienced property team
that actively participates in every aspect of a project, from identifying
investment opportunities, supervising the construction of the property

to managing the completed development.

In Hong Kong, CITIC Pacific has a land bank of about 4.1 million sq. ft.
gross floor area available for development, of which about 3 million sq. ft.

is in Discovery Bay.

Discovery Bay, 50% owned by CITIC Pacific, is a large residential
development jointly developed with HKR International Ltd. Since its
commencement in 1973, Discovery Bay has grown from a holiday resort
to a fully integrated, self-contained suburban multinational residential
community of both locals and expatriates. Its planning is based on

the concept of a private car free, green town development with a
comprehensive range of educational, community and social facilities

to serve the Discovery Bay population. Situated on the Northeastern
shore of Lantau Island, Discovery Bay is endowed with ample open space,
recreational and leisure facilities including a private beach, a central park,

scenic promenade, golf courses and a marina.

The current Yi Pak Bay development is located in the northern part of
Discovery Bay with a total gross floor area of approximately 2.34 million
sq. ft., of which 0.98 million sq. ft. has been developed as Siena One

(Phase 11) and Siena Two (Phase 12). Siena One, with a gross floor area of
0.34 million sq. ft., has all been sold. Siena Two, with a gross floor area of
0.64 million sq. ft., was 98% sold at the end of 2004. Construction work for
Phase 13, which has a gross floor area of 0.53 million sq. ft., is progressing

well with completion being targeted for the end of 2005.

In October 2004, CITIC Pacific reached an agreement with the Hong Kong
Government on the premium payable for development of the Tung Chau
Street Site in Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon into a residential and
commercial development with a gross floor area of approximately 0.32
million sq. ft. The design and site works for the project is in progress with

target completion in 2008.
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CITIC Tower, 40% owned by CITIC Pacific, is our headquarters and a
landmark on the Hong Kong waterfront comprising 562,000 sq. ft. of
offices, retail shops and restaurants, and linked to the Admiralty MmTR
station with a footbridge. The building is currently 99% occupied. Rentals
strengthened in 2004 compared with 2003.

Festival Walk, a 1.2 million sq. ft. of shopping and office complex, is 50%
owned by CITIC Pacific. Jointly developed with the Swire Group, it is
located at the interchange of the Kowloon Canton Railway and Mass
Transit Railway in Kowloon Tong. Completed in 1998, Festival Walk is one
of the most successful shopping centres in Hong Kong where vacancies are

rare and rentals are firm.
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CITIC Pacific’s strategy in property going forward is very much focused on
the mainland China market, in particular, Shanghai and its surrounding

provinces where there is strong demand for quality housing.

The New Westgate Garden is located in the Huangpu District of Shanghai,
adjacent to Xizang Nanlu and Jianguo Donglu. It is within walking
distance from a future subway station of the new Metro Line 8. With a
gross floor area of approximately 3 million sq. ft., it comprises residential
towers, a multi-storey commercial complex with retail shops and a
basement carpark. In August 2004, the sale of the first 255 flats met
overwhelming interest and all were sold in a few days. The sale of the
second set of 197 units began in early March 2005 and again, all units
were sold within a few days. The rest of the 1st phase is scheduled for

sale towards the end of the first half of 2005.

CITIC Square, 80% owned by CITIC Pacific, is a Grade A retail and office
tower in Nanjing Xi Lu, Shanghai. Its rental continues to do well with full
occupancy. Royal Pavilion, 100% owned by CITIC Pacific, is a luxury

service apartment, with occupancy of 96%, and its rental income is stable.

CITIC Pacific also owns a site of about 4.74 million sq. ft. near Shanghai

Pudong Airport for future logistic development.

In December 2004, CITIC Pacific won a public tender to buy a 1.45 million
sq. ft. site in the Qingpu District of Shanghai, which is zoned for a

1 million sq. ft. low-density residential project. In addition, CITIC Pacific
is also in the process of acquiring two blocks of land nearby to enhance

overall development.

Also in December 2004, CITIC Pacific signed an agreement with a local
party to form a joint venture company to develop a commercial project
with a gross floor area of approximately 1 million sq. ft. in Ningbo,

Zhejiang Province.
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Marketing and Distribution

25 Location A HE Ownership
AET BB Dah Chong Hong Hong Kong 100%
== BB Sims Trading Hong Kong 100%
LB BB A in HK$ million 2004 2003
EHE Turnover 12,078 12,136
st ) B ek Contribution 284 264
4R A ERALL 51 Proportion of total contribution 7% 10%
FAE Net assets 3,708 3,234
BARFEZ Capital expenditure 203 211

K E 47 (www.dch.com.hk) PA 2 85 155
TS AR AT o HEEEE S
AT WS SR B R B > [ REHL AR HAS Bk
Fom & KEERER

Dah Chong Hong (www.dch.com.hk) is a major distributor of motor
vehicles and consumer and food commodity products with substantial
operations in Hong Kong and mainland China, and businesses in Japan,

Singapore and Canada.

KETHHE DCH Motor

LEE GBI E in HK$ million 2004 2003
EERE Turnover 6,730 7,083
gl N=N s Contribution 148 188

KEGREBRRWREDIHE L — o K
SRR AELEFETIGIEA R 526% - KB

In Hong Kong, DCH Motor is one of the largest distributors of motor

vehicles with a 26% market share in 2004. It distributes a wide range

AT RT AR 5B R Ay of vehicles:
EHEE Units sold

RELER fhhg Type Brands 2004 2003
FLRE TRan ~ Bl - FF) Passenger cars Acura, Audi, Bentley, Honda,

AH - HE - B&E - Nissan, Opel, Saab, Volkswagen

wE - BT 5,539 4,695
E5 K= A+45 %8 - Commercial vehicles  DAF, Isuzu, MAN,

UDAKE S UD Nissan Diesel 2,931 2,310
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REFTERBREHE
DCH Vehicle Sales in Hong Kong

o ~
2% units 3 5
o o @
S 2 5
&)
n
o
<
~
<
© &
= 3
™~ <~
o
2
| @
[aV}

00 01 02

03

o}
<}
o
te}

8,470

o
H

H B Passenger

I 55 Commercial

TR T B MR T = A
& o dy KSR BT LI o I B R
FfE 0 AR E R FF 718.5% - K&
THRHERGHEEME  WEERET
21% » Hb B E B BRI 27 % M M I o B
SO E > KBTI R R
B HE o (RS E T (N A RILTT $34% o
KEATH G E IR EFE LT T720% © it
TEFPAE > KBTS IR ECE K
B W RGO & R AR s — 2 e TR
TR AL -

BRITELE AN > KBTI KR BB Y
SEH o INVERAEE oA - TR e
TRAF G B > DL R b 8 SR IR
B o MALH JURE IS IR B AT IR MBS o0 SR
A s 28 BB I IR S T

The overall performance of the Hong Kong motor market improved
significantly from its low in 2003. Total vehicles sales in the territory

rose 18.5%, the result of a better economic environment as consumers’
confidence in the economy returned. DCH outperformed the market with
total unit sales growth of 21%. Its commercial vehicle sales registered a
gain of 27% compared with 2003 and DCH managed to expand its market
share in this segment to 34% thanks to the revival of cross-border
transportation. DCH’s passenger car sales increased 20% compared with
2003. During 2004, DCH obtained from GM the dealerships of two
European brands, Opel and Saab, broadening DcH’s product portfolio.

In addition to selling motor vehicles, a big part of DCH’s business is to
provide an extensive range of motor related services such as after sales
service and inspection, parts retail and distribution, leasing and fleet
management, and aviation ground supporting services. DCH Motor

Service Centre in Kowloon Bay is the largest in Hong Kong.
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XEfTREEHES #E Dah Chong Hong and Sims in China
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In mainland China, DcH distributes both imported and domestically
manufactured vehicles through local partners where, unlike Hong Kong,
distributorships are not exclusive. Overall vehicle sales in the mainland
grew 15% in 2004, a much slower pace than the 34% growth experienced
in 2003 as the industry goes through a period of consolidation. The
reduction of the availability of credit as a result of the macro economic
measures taken by the Chinese government negatively impacted motor
vehicle sales, in particular the sales of large, expensive trucks such as
Isuzu. bcH’s commercial vehicle sales dropped 38% compared with a
robust 2003 primarily due to the sharp decrease in imported truck sales.
On imported passenger vehicle front, even though unit sales increased,

over supply, credit tightening, the eventual abolition of the import quota




& HEE Units sold

BRI M (RETHAEEMN) Type Brands (DCH & partners) 2004 2003
fLRE A0 :&EF - AH - Passenger cars Imports: Bentley, Honda, Nissan,
HE BB & Opel, Renault 3,574 2,983
AHAERE  ERBK Domestic: Beijing Hyundai,
EMNAH - SEEaE - Guangzhou Honda, Hainan Mazda,
REHE Dongfeng Nissan 4,051 3,188
BE A0 : A5 R - Commercial vehicles  Imports: Isuzu, lveco, UD Nissan Diesel 3,404 6,586
UDKE 7
AR ER Domestic: Qingling, Dongfeng
IR AL - R KM Nissan Diesel, Naveco 1,498 1,346
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system and frequent price cuts resulted in reduced margins for this
segment. In anticipation of the change in import vehicle policy that
favours one exclusive wholesaler for each brand, DcH has expanded its
efforts in developing local dealerships for both domestic and imported
brands. In 2004, much effort was made in system development and service
quality improvement to better position DCH in its future expansion in
mainland China.

Working with local partners, DCH’s sales and service network now covers
13 cities in mainland China including 10 integrated sales, service and
spare parts centres. The implementation of the Automobile Industry
Development Policy in China will certainly create a more matured

business environment for experienced operators like DCH.

RETHEHEIPEKREZRE
DCH Vehicle Sales to mainland China
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REDAINZE 5 Non-Motor Trading
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DCH Trading: DcH distributes consumer and commodity food products
including provisions, rice and cereal, edible oils, Chinese foodstuffs and
meat, cosmetics, building materials, and home electric appliances, and is
involved in E&M engineering projects and maintenance services. Through
its extensive global sourcing network, efficient logistics support and
nationwide distribution network, DCH was able to achieve good results

in 2004. pcH’s broad product portfolio enables it to spread trading risks.
A good example was DCH’s ability to offset the adverse sales impact on
the frozen meat re-export business to China, where it was seriously
affected by mad cow disease and avian flu control measures, through

increased sales of alternative products.

In mainland China, much effort was made on laying the groundwork for
participation in upstream production/processing and logistics business
with the Xinhui industrial park and logistics hub being targeted for
business commencement in the latter half of 2005. DcH took an equity
interest in a small electrical appliance manufacturing plant in Shunde to

realize upward integration for its existing electrical appliances business.

Sims Trading: Sims Trading (www.simshk.com) specialises in the
distribution of branded food, beverage, household and healthcare
products in Hong Kong, Macau, and mainland China for the retail and
catering markets. The brands represented by Sims include Pocari Sweat,
Ovaltine, Almond Roca, Barilla, Avoset for the Hong Kong market and
Pringles, Ferrero, Campbell’s, Almond Roca, UHA and Taier for the
mainland China market. Sims provides third party logistics services to

major companies such as Heineken, Gillette, Pizza Hut and Seven Eleven.

2004 saw Sims making significant progress in expanding its portfolio of
representation and their distribution in the market, and as a result, profit
increased. Looking ahead, Sims plans to transform its role from being

an added value distributor to becoming a partner in manufacturing and
other businesses, enabling Sims to manage the entire supply chain process
and to provide total solutions for its business partners and customers.

In November 2004, a joint venture agreement was signed with Otsuka
(China) Investment Co. for the manufacturing and marketing of the

Pocari Sweat sports drink in Guangdong.
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CITIC Capital Markets

50% owned by CITIC Pacific, CITIC Capital Markets (www.citiccapital.com)
is a China focused investment bank with its core businesses in corporate
finance, equity and debt capital markets, asset management, brokerage and
research. 2004 marked the second full year of ccmH’s operation during

which continued solid results were achieved.

CcCMH’s investment banking business continued to gather momentum
with the successful execution of deals such as the HK$1.3 billion listing
of Weichai Power and HK$1 billion listing of Beijing Media. On the debt
capital markets front, total loans of HK$7 billion were arranged for clients
employing innovative and flexible structures. The asset management
business saw strong growth with total asset under management of
approximately US$500 million by the end of 2004. A number of new funds
were launched and overall performance of all funds achieved satisfactory
results. Significant inroads were made in the further expansion of ccmH’s
brokerage business where quality and insightful research played a key
role in securing a number of reputable institutional clients. Additional

brokerage outlets were opened in 2004.
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Introduction

CITIC Pacific’s 2004 Annual Report includes a letter from the Chairman to
shareholders, the annual accounts and other information required by
accounting standards, legislation, and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
This Financial Review is designed to assist the reader in understanding the
statutory information by discussing the contribution of each business

segment, and the financial position of the company as a whole.

Pages 86 to 94 of the Annual Report contain the Consolidated Profit and
Loss Account, Balance Sheet, Cash Flow Statement and Statement of
Changes in Equity. Following these financial statements, on pages 95 to
162 of the Annual Report, are notes that further explain certain figures

presented in the statements.

On page 163 is the report of CITIC Pacific’s auditor —
PricewaterhouseCoopers - of their independent audit of CITIC Pacific’s

Annual Report.

Basis of Accounting

CITIC Pacific prepares its financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting standards published by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. For many years Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards have broadly followed International Accounting
Standards and in 2004 the HKI1CPA published new or revised standards to

converge its standards with International Standards.

Although these new standards are effective for accounting period from

1 January 2005, CITIC Pacific has chosen to adopt HKFRS 3 - Business
Combinations; HKAS 36 — Impairment of Assets and HKAS 38 - Intangible
Assets from 1 January 2004 because they have the most material impact on
the financial statements. The other new standards will be adopted in 2005.
Assessment of their impact is continuing, particularly the impact of HKAS
32 and 39 affecting financial instruments, and no assurance can be given

that significant adjustments may not be required.

Adopting these three new accounting standards in 2004 resulted in
adjustments to the 1 January 2004 balances of retained earnings, negative
goodwill, jointly controlled enterprises, capital reserves and associated
companies as described in Notes to the accounts 1(c) on page 96. The new
accounting standards removed the need for amortisation of goodwill, but

introduced recognition of negative goodwill.



B% 3R FE 1 i 1) Profit Attributable to Shareholders

BWECETFNET =+ —HIEFEEZBER The net profit attributable to shareholders for the year ended 31 December
JEAG T A A = AT —HE > 1 2004 was HK$3,581 million, an increase of 175% compared with HK$1,301
CEBCEZERTZMF A ECHM million achieved in 2003. The adoption of three new accounting standards
175% MR SRAN =JEH e st > 26 =%  increased the profit of 2004 by HK$492 million as compared with using
FTVUAE 2 g AR A B E R WO IL T the old standards. The other reasons for the increase in profit are

THETC o U A0 HA R R S described below.
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EBEoERFER Business Segments Contribution
& EEEERAAE T TTIE AR - B The contribution made by major business units in the year of 2004,
TRF AR R compared with the same period of 2003, were:
Y I & Ik Contribution
BEEET HK$ million 2004 2003 2004 - 2003
B Power Generation 439 229 210
fuze Aviation 1,398 421 977
AR Civil Infrastructure 329 635 (306)
ER%E Communications 133 230 97)
1 B 4 2 Special Steel Manufacturing 438 178 260
L/ES Property 608 508 100
$HE R iH Marketing & Distribution 284 264 20
REYEE R Investment Properties Revaluation 181 (587) 768

33



BfH [0 B8 Financial Review

%

TAE 2 %A B R L
% 'ﬁﬁZaﬁ**EﬁéwmﬁﬁW%
(AL 5 Bk 28 0 B HIB UG 25 IR 1 VR A 20 s )
B -

o fiZe : MBI ST AR EEE A R
KRBk - B i 2 B it R i 2 ﬁ\ngﬂl
EIE R R R IR o A
éyﬁfg’@ﬁ@ﬁ%im‘\%Hd%ﬁﬁﬂi%&*ll[@}i
i 22 BRI Ut At A EDRK o

o JEBERH ¢ AV ) Y R B 2 T ) JRK B
TERLZAEME  HERPERECHE
EWMREREEE > & "2 F AR i A E R
{J—‘A—/J\ °

o HEZE P EEMICI6 N P E LR %
fﬂl&ﬂﬁ%ﬁ?%@%ﬁ,\;??#ﬁap H
VR AR R R E R A i A ER
TR o HoAh o5 B IE B 7E 40 R B BT

HAEBISC -
o FRTEGNELE - LT O R L E A B R
TOREBRY > FIBEHEREM LT 2 2F

TN IR AIEA BT R -

o W3 BPFUHSEIH A HE 7255 F A -
Ll ME R ETE o s S By S
WATRA P& -

o BHE LT BINBRHBH B EH R E
BAFPTRE LU EREH AL - FEK
RSB I BT R B - B R BT
21% - KEATREEBERMES - {Likdh
B I FLAt JF P SRS U T 2 RS
BB -

34

Compared with the contribution for year 2003:

Power Generation: there was an 8% increase in power produced at
existing power plants and the newly acquired North United Power and

Han Feng made first contributions.

Aviation: Cathay Pacific and Dragonair carried a record number of
passengers and cargo in 2004. Passenger traffic was depressed in 2003
due to sARS. HACTL handled a record volume of cargo and Air China

Cargo contributed for the first time.

Civil Infrastructure: our two tunnels in Hong Kong made a similar
contribution to 2003, and the reduction in contribution was because
CITIC Pacific no longer owned the bridges and tunnels in Shanghai
in 2004.

Communications: CITIC Telecom 1616’s performance in 2004 was
similar to 2003 as were those of Guoan, but the contribution from
cTM decreased due to competition. Expenditure was incurred on other

communication businesses in their development stage.

Special Steel Manufacturing: higher margins were achieved in 2004
on a slightly higher volume due to strong demand for the high quality
steel produced by the Xingcheng Steel Plant.

Property: the sale of 255 flats at the New Westgate Garden increased
the contribution from property development. Property leasing

contribution increased both in Hong Kong and Shanghai.

Marketing & Distribution: The Mainland motor business was affected
the reduced availability of credit, especially for large trucks. The
Hong Kong motor business outperformed the market with a unit sales
growth of 21%. The contribution from food trading, cosmetics and

other non-motor businesses grew both in DcH and sims.
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Page 107 contain business segment information for turnover and profit before
net finance charges and taxation for consolidated activities, jointly controlled

entities and associated companies.

Geographical Distribution
The division of contribution and assets between Hong Kong, mainland
China and overseas is shown below based on the location of the base of

each business’s operations.

#h & 2 1
Geographical Distribution

2003 2003
Hit+=—A=+-—H1t +ZA=t+—H#&H
For the year ended 31 December As at 31 December
wFER % REEEME %
Contribution % Assets at Book Value %
W B R1THZ Hong Kong SAR 7 B Mainland China W 55D Overseas
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Interest Expense

The Group’s interest expense decreased from HK$400 million to HK$376
million mainly due to a decrease in borrowing cost from approximately
4.6% to 3.4%.

Amortisation

Accounting standards require certain adjustments that are unrelated to the
cashflow of our businesses. Until 31 December 2003, goodwill - the
amount paid for buying a business that exceeds the value of its physical
and identifiable assets — had to be amortised to the profit and loss account
over its useful life not exceeding 20 years. In 2003, HK$202 million of
goodwill was amortised to the profit and loss account. Since the adoption

of the HKFRS 3 from 1 January 2004, amortisation is no longer required.

Taxation
Taxation increased from HK$370 million in 2003 to HK$686 million in

2004, mainly due to increased profit and under provision in prior years.

Shareholders’ Returns

CITIC Pacific’s primary objective is to increase shareholder value for which
it has used earnings per share as a proxy. The Company expects its
businesses to provide returns on investment over their lives that will

provide shareholders with an adequate return on equity.



BRAEF Earnings per Share

TERRNEZGREF S HEN1.637C 0 8% Earnings per share were HK$1.63 for 2004, an increase of 175% compared
FEAEZENR0.59TCHM175% « ZWFE 2 with HK$0.59 in 2003. The number of shares outstanding in the two years
CBATI A B H KRB > S REFIME  was substantially the same so all the increases in earnings per share was

Ui A G 2 o attributable to the increase in profit.
BREF BRBERES
Earnings per Share Shareholders’ Funds per Share
FEHTE HIKS 2 . AT S © 2 5
[©)] - — N~
< -
| | |
@
o
(@]
©
o
00 o1 02 03 04 00 01 02 03 04
BEBREESE Shareholders’ Funds per Share

CERRNEL A= AR ESS  Shareholders’ funds per share at 31 December 2004 was HK$17.3. The
HW17.370 o R IR FHEN] > 80 adoption of three new accounting standards decreased 2004’s opening

AL 2 PR AR AT . retained earnings by approximately HK$2.2 billion. This offset the 2004
T RS —F T2 CAIBR IS 2 profit less dividends paid in the year.
il o
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BERER Dividend per Share

TERBNE FHREIRRMIRE A ERER A final dividend of HK$0.80 per share is proposed for 2004, giving
0.807C * IRTE “F ML IR B G5 WM shareholders a total dividend for 2004 of HK$1.1.

1.17C

BREE
Dividend per Share
JETT HKS
o
Q
N
o
o
= o
8 -
8 2 = s
© o
tEEEE
o [S) o) o o oiln e
o ° o ° o I 55 51A% S Special Dividend
q N @ @ ®
© © © © © I R H#3A% 2. Final Dividend
00 01 02 03 04
I A HAA% 2 Interim Dividend
X Turnover

TEERTNAE > 81 LB 2 8RB =% Marketing & Distribution turnover in 2004 was the same as 2003: motor
TR R G 2 EEFER TR 2% trading turnover decreased 5% due to reduced sales in mainland China,
BRI 5% » HHANE 5 Ry 85282 but other trading and distribution turnover increased by 36%. Special
FIEIN36% o Fr MM a5 2 B FAZHE  Steel Manufacturing turnover increased 56% due to the increased sale
T B 5 B R BTG N56% o RHAEE price of special steel, while communications turnover decreased 9%
EZEEFUTERPHEREERNELEK  mainly due to the decrease of both the price and traffic of China calls.

BRI 9% o . . s .
Other turnover in 2003 included HK$6.2 billion for the sale of bridges,

TR AR FAbESERE > MIESELIER ST tunnels and a road in Shanghai and this is the reason for the reduction in
TRTAE R B g AGRE AR o ) turnover in 2004.
IS Iy — AR SR 2 A -

The largest component of turnover is the sale of goods and services, but
BB BB G SRR ORI WELEG other items such as sales of assets are included. Only the turnover from
HALTEA M B GRS - AEBMAZHMA AL businesses included as Consolidated Activities is reported - they
FREB B - GO (TEREZRA  contributed HK$1,991 million to the net profit before taxation - turnover

A B 45 3 7] ) B A M ) 2 D in jointly controlled or associated companies is not reported in CITIC
RBUHT G AR T LB LT A #ET Pacific’s accounts.
ZEK -
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& %75 Sale of Businesses
I §5E K 53 88 Marketing & Distribution
[ Y% Property
[ R A 528 I B fth Special Steel Manufacturing & Others
I 1= £ Communications

I E ARG Civil Infrastructure

Il =55 Power Generation
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Capital Expenditure

In Special Steel Manufacturing, the acquisition of additional
approximately 20% in the Jiangyin Steel Plant and 95% Xin Yegang were
completed in 2004.

In Power, investment was made in Ligang Power Plant Phase III and North
United Power and the acquisition of an additional interest in Ligang Power,

Han Feng Power and Huaibei Guoan Power were completed in 2004.

The Air China Cargo joint venture began operation in 2004 while property
developments are in progress.

Amongst other businesses, an additional capital contribution to CITIC
Capital Markets was made in 2004 and in 2003 investment was in

pharmaceutical projects.

EREY Capital Expenditure

B EET HK$ million 2004 2003
IETE iR Special Steel Manufacturing 3,417 545
%®E Power Generation 2,739 144
ES Property 1,291 104
finze Aviation 518 —
Hth Others 394 187
HERDH Marketing & Distribution 203 211
ERE Communications 177 185
AR Civil Infrastructure 61 5
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Group Liquidity and Capital Resources

General Policies

The Group’s policy is to maintain a high degree of financial control and
transparency. Financing and cash management activities are centralised at
head office level to enhance risk management, control and the best

utilisation of financial resources of the Group.

We aim to diversify our funding sources through utilisation of both banking
and capital markets. To the extent it is possible, financing is arranged to
match business characteristics and cash flows. Limited or non-recourse

project finance is employed when it is available and appropriate.

CITIC Pacific conducts business mainly in Hong Kong and mainland
China, therefore it is subject to the market risk of the foreign exchange
rates of the HK Dollar, US Dollar and Renminbi. To minimise currency
exposure, non Hong Kong dollar assets are usually financed in the same
currency as the asset or cash flow from it, either by borrowing or using
foreign exchange contracts. Achieving this objective is not always possible
due to limitation in financial markets and regulatory constraints,
particularly on investment into mainland China as currently the
Renminbi is not a free convertible currency and an on-shore forward
market has not been developed. In addition, ‘Registered Capital’, which
usually accounts for no less than 25% of the total project investment
amount, is required to be paid in US or HK Dollars. As a result, CITIC
Pacific has an increasing exposure to the Renminbi. As of 31 December
2004, around 28% of the Group’s total assets were based in mainland
China and the Group was long RMB15 billion.

The Group aims to maintain a suitable mixture of fixed and floating rate
borrowings in order to stabilise interest costs despite rate movements.
Interest rate hedging ratio is determined after taking into consideration
the general market trend, the Group’s cash flow pattern and interest
coverage ratio. The Group actively employs various interest rate

instruments to manage long term interest risk.

The Company only uses derivative transactions for interest rate and
currency hedging purposes, speculative trading is prohibited.
Counterparties’ credit risks are carefully reviewed and in general, the
Company only deals with financial institutions with credit rating at least
investment grade. The counterparties’ lending exposure to the Group is

also an important consideration as a means to control credit risk.



Bl & & Cash Flow

HURA SR B 2 REPM R A R %HE - it By design, most of the Group’s debt is raised at the holding company level.
BIER BA N AN AR B i 48 - 385 As such, the net amount of cash flow from each business to the Company
EAN AR TR ) 2 EEAREE - MW - A is an important indicator as to the Company’s ability to service its debts.
EH BT EFARERY - IR A%EH  During the period, the Group’s cash flow remained stable and strong.

Z BB Following is a summary of the cash contributions by each business segment:
BEEHET HKS$ million 2004 2003
HEAER Infrastructure
%HE Power Generation 469 317
fze Aviation 649 334
e ST Civil Infrastructure 362 283
ERE Communications 111 232
HEESE Special Steel Manufacturing 153 0
LS Property 1,573 1,090
HERDH Marketing & Distribution 35 123
Hith Others 50 72
&5t Total 3,402 2,451
¥R CHERE BERRESRE
Cash Flow from Operations Cash Flow per Share
BERRET 15— JEM T
HKS$ billion HK$
10—
©
~ o
i <
T @
5- N «
v\. ~ ~
o -
S
0— ol %) - -
00 01 02 03 04 00 01 02 03 04
e I )% Property Wl LEEB s ERRERE
Sale of Businesses From Cash Flow per Share from the Sale of Businesses
. EE R R EA
I SHE K 8 Special Steel R ERAZ BRIRS TS

Marketing & Distribution Manufacturing & Others

I E AR Infrastructure

From Regular Cash Flow per Share
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Cash contribution from Marketing & Distribution to the Group reduced

since Dah Chong Hong reinvested most of its operating cashflow to

various new projects in the mainland.

FEReREME Summary of Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
BB BT HK$ million 2004 2003
ReFrEra/ RER) Net Cash generated from / (invested in)
RAER consolidated activities 1,204 1,535
HEZH B jointly controlled entities 49 23
/NG| associated companies 1,526 (266)
®E investments 393 263
PEEGERREER Sale of business interests and marketable securities 109 6,370
BRI R 2 RAE Capital expenditure and investment in new businesses (7,460) (1,207)
FiE Tax (178) (148)
BXAFEFE Net interest paid (310) (397)
(4,667) 6,173
B Dividends paid (2,189) (4,377)
EEEM Increase in borrowings 3,698 1,151
AT AR Share options exercised 68 -
1,577 (3,226)
RERFERBE 2 ORd)/#I (Decrease)/Increase in cash and cash equivalents (3,090) 2,947
SEEEERBES Group Debt and Liquidity

R FFENFET - H=Z1—H  REEZEE
ME LAWY —TN T ANEL (SRR
A=+—H BT Z0ET)  miak
SRATAERK R A s B OB T - ARG
—H P CE MERFEE T =
A2 AR AR HEL - FARBZER
JEAL B AR Bl SR A T A 2 1% TR
H o BRI REBREFABGEAERFTA S
24% (ZFFZAFTZA=1—H 1 11%) ©
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As of 31 December 2004, the Group’s total outstanding debt was HK$14.6
billion (31 December 2003: HK$10.5 billion), cash and deposits with

banks were HK$2.4 billion giving a net debt of HK$12.2 billion compared
to HK$5 billion at 31 December 2003. The increase in net debt was mainly

due to new investments as detailed under Capital Expenditure Section.

Leverage, measured by the net debt to total capital, was 24% (31 December

2003: 11%).
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Total Debt

Total debt increased due to capital expenditure and new investments of

HK$7,460 million. The debt at 31 December 2004 that will mature to the
end of 2005 amounted to 6% of the total debt and at that date the Group
had deposits with banks of HK$2.4 billion, exceeding the loans due for

repayment in 2005.

e E
Total debt

BB ET 20—

HKS$ billion
15—
10—
) I
o
00 Ot 02 03

04

AEFMR - FRENEF A=+ —HZEE
& BAT K GE R s A E

W 7 F1% After the fifth year

=050 (BEEEMF)

In the third to fifth year inclusive

I A In the second year

B —5 A In the first year

The denomination of the Group’s borrowings as well as cash and deposit

balances in various currencies as of 31 December 2004 is summarised

as follows:
wE Denomination
potecs Ei" AREE H Httb &%
BEHETEE HK$ million Equivalent HK$ us$ Renminbi Yen Other Total
BE Borrowings 8,364 4,491 1,053 575 97 14,580
RE RIFH Cash and Deposits 342 981 966 89 39 2,417
FEE Net Borrowings 8,022 3,510 87 486 58 12,163

BEAh > [ TR ] — it > P EHRE&§
JASME R S5 ) T

In addition, the Company had entered into currency forward / option

contracts as described under ‘Derivative Products’.
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HRMERIR Available Sources of Financing
REEENES A=+ —H o EALEMEMA  As of 31 December 2004, the Group’s undrawn available facilities consisted
A fFEERETD - B+ oKz of HK$7.2 billion in committed long term loans and HK$1.7 billion of

RIS - WL A BHiaE 88 money market lines. In addition, available trade facilities amounted to
s+ R C R A B 5 5 B HK$2.2 billion.

EE#%E CRAEER HARAEER
B EET HK$ million Total Facilities Outstandings Available Facilities
AEEER Committed Facilities
IRITER Bank Loans 16,867 9,710 7,157
2IRES Global Bonds 3,510 3,510 0
VNS Private Placement 780 780 0
EAREEEE Total Committed 21,157 14,000 7,157
FEEEER Uncommitted Facilities
BEmiSEE%E Money Market Lines 2,310 568 1,742
BEozE% Trade Facilities 2,579 379 2,200
RAEE B R 2 B 45 Maturity Profile of Outstanding Debt

7R B RN B S AR T B B I A A The Group actively manages and extends its debt maturity profile to ensure
DA RS B AR B 2 B AN G IR 4E T that the Group’s maturing debt each year will not exceed the anticipated
BT PRS2 A A BT cash flow and the Group’s ability to refinance the debt in that year:

ME R

—E-FF

B EET e LA1E &t ERES
2010 and

HK$ million 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Beyond Total Percentage
[SYNSIK
Parent Company' 33 934 2,687 2,565 1,667 4,733 12,619 87%
B A |
Subsidiaries 778 680 170 151 182 0 1,961 13%
FHEG B
Total Maturing Debt 811 1,614 2,857 2,716 1,849 4,733 14,580 100%
ANX
Percentage 6% 1% 19% 19% 13% 32% 100%

1. BEF—FERFTERNMK LS 2 ENE R FET 1. Including a US$450 million global bond due in 2011 which was issued by a wholly
BENEAFEET T ——FIH 2K EF - owned special purposes vehicle.
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Financial Position at a Glance

The charts below show the type, interest rate, maturity and currency

profiles of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2004:

HARRAZIEEHE
Available Facilities by Type

ERBE B —+— 18T
Total HK$11.70 billion

64% 16% 20%

I 5 HAR Term Loan Bl 5% Money Market B % 5 Trade

REEER
Outstanding Debt by Type

EHREE BN+ RENTET
Total HK$14.58 billion

67% 24% 5% 4%

I 5 HABR Term Loan Il (5% Bond

B 7L ABRE Private Placement Il E#T745 Money Market

REES B KREERE
Outstanding Debt by Currency

57% 31% 7% 5%
I 57T HKD I =0T USD
Il AR RMB I E 4B #5FE Other Currency
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Financial Guarantees and Pledged Assets

Financial guarantees and other forms of support were given by the Company
or its subsidiaries for loan facilities which were not included in the
consolidated borrowings in a limited number of cases. As of 31 December
2004, CITIC Pacific provided a guarantee to support its share of loan
facilities totaling HK$650 million at Jilin Power Station. In addition,
Hubei Xin Yegang Co., Ltd. (Xin Yegang’), a 95% owned subsidiary
newly acquired by the Company, provided guarantees to Daye Special
Steel Co., Ltd. in connection with loan facilities totaling RMB1,120
million. CITIC Pacific acquired 58% equity interest in Daye Special Steel
Co., Ltd. and the transaction is pending for regulatory approval.

Xin Yegang also pledged assets to support loan facilities of Daye Special
Steel Co., Ltd. for amount up to RMB131 million.

Separately, Xin Yegang provided guarantees (obligation up to RMB123 million)
and pledged assets (obligation up to RMB294 million) to support the bank
borrowings of Daye Steel Group Corporation. Daye Steel Group Corporation
was the original holding company of Xin Yegang. These arrangements
were incurred prior to CITIC Pacific’s involvement and the obligations

will be released upon completion according to the acquisition agreement.
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As at 31 December 2004, assets of HK$538 million were pledged to secure
banking facilities, mainly related to Xin Yegang (details are described in

above paragraphs) and Dah Chong Hong’s business overseas.

Debt / Cash in Jointly Controlled Entities and
Associated Companies

For accounting purposes, some of the Group’s businesses are classified as
jointly controlled entities and associated companies. The following table
shows the debt / cash position of jointly controlled entities and associated
companies as of 31 December 2004 which under Hong Kong generally

accepted accounting standards is not consolidated into the Group’s accounts.

mFaE/
(R&)

TIEREES
ZFafE/(Re)

B {ERERENE
NEERZAE
Amount of debt

Proportion of Net Debt/ guaranteed by

ES SR Business Sector Total Net Debt/ (Cash) attributable CITIC Pacific or
BEEET HKS$ million (Cash) to CITIC Pacific its subsidiaries
HAER Infrastructure

EE Power Generation 11,657 3,652 650
fze Aviation 15,275 3,739

AR Civil Infrastructure 2,382 842

BERE Communications 1,135 680

SEEEE Special Steel Manufacturing (39) (29)

LY/ Property (203) (45)

HERDH Marketing & Distribution 792 400

Hity Others (149) (75)

&5t Total 30,850 9,164 650

PR A YE (R T A B o MR R 2 M (RS > b
RITEN 2 8085 3 o M 2 m) B L] ) T
Pr > S 3 R AT 728 RBE o A SR AR 0y
P& (Bl — Ik Rt R EIEE ) 3 R 4
Bk e > i M m SME o

TTEIR

FEHREUAREAZ &/ TR (RFETET
H) TR AR R AR ) 2 R B o AL WD
B AR YRR A SR R 5K
ARURIE T 25 A IS < R AR R T A Y
i TR S W A-FEE -

Except for the guarantee related to Jilin Power Station as described under
Financial Guarantees, the debt amount shown in the above table were
arranged by associated companies and jointly controlled entities without
recourse to their shareholders. Certain Group’s investments, such as
Festival Walk and Discovery Bay, are 100% financed by their shareholders

and do not have external borrowings.

Derivative Products

CITIC Pacific employs a combination of financial instruments, including
derivative products, to manage its exposure to fluctuations in interest

and currency rates. The fair market value of outstanding derivative
transactions is calculated at least semi-annually based on the Group’s own
calculation where applicable, or price quotations obtained from major

financial institutions.
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The Company uses interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements and
interest rate option contracts to hedge exposures or to modify the interest
rate characteristics of its borrowings. As of 31 December 2004, the
Company had outstanding interest rate swap / option contracts with a
notional amount of HK$10.2 billion. After the swaps, effectively HK$9.4
billion or 65% of the Group’s total borrowings were paying floating rate

and the remaining were effectively paying fixed rate of interest.

The overall weighted average all-in cost of debt (including fees and
hedging costs) in 2004 was about 3.4%, compared with 4.6% in 2003.

The underlying cash flow of the Group’s businesses is mainly in HK
dollars or in Renminbi. To minimise potential US dollar debt principal
and interest payment exposure, the Company entered into foreign
exchange swap, forward and option contracts. As of 31 December 2004,
such contracts outstanding amounted to US$600 million. In addition,
Dah Chong Hong also employs foreign exchange forward contracts to
hedge its exposure to currency rates. As of 31 December 2004, such

contracts outstanding amounted to HK$795 million.

Dividend payments from projects based in the mainland China are
originally denominated in Renminbi and are required to be converted to
USD at the time of the payment. The Company entered into Renminbi
Non Deliverable Forward, known as ‘NDF’, contracts for purpose of
hedging the projected dividend flows from various projects in the
mainland. As of 31 December 2004, total outstanding NDF contracts
amounted to US$25 million.

All derivative transactions are employed for the purpose of managing
exposure to fluctuations in interest or currency rates. Based on the
Company’s calculation and / or the mark to market price quotation
obtained from major financial institutions, the aggregate fair value of all
the outstanding derivative transactions as at 31 December 2004 was
approximately a negative value of HK$122 million, which was mainly
caused by the decline in the HKD fixed interest rates and the increase in
USD/HKD currency forward discount rates during the last quarter of
2004. This fair value represents the net amount we would pay if all

outstanding derivative transactions were closed out at 31 December 2004.
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Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2004, the Group’s contingent liabilities changed
significantly from the last year end due to a newly acquired 95%
subsidiary has provided guarantees and pledged assets to various banks
to support banking facilities of up to RMB1.7 billion to its related
company and third parties. Details of which are set out in the Financial

Guarantees and Pledged Assets Section.

Leverage
Net debt divided by total capital was 24% at 31 December 2004 compared
with 11% at the end of 2003.

BERE
Leverage
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FIEZE
Interest Cover
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I F & (& Net Debt

FIRER

AR NEFEFEE - BUH - i
T e 5% 22 3 v P BR LARLE S /15,1 >
TERFEZAEAN 7.8 B A8
175% » B AIB S H AR 6% -

B eSS - IR - TE R FET EBITDA

Bl TEEFEEH  BE - WEREEOFRAEFEZH (x =)
EBITDA/Interest Expense (x = times)

B 783 Interest Expense

Interest Cover
EBITDA divided by interest expense for 2004 was 15.1 compared to 7.8 in
2003, due to the 175% increase in profit and a 6% decrease of total

interest expense.
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Loan Covenants

Over the years, CITIC Pacific has developed a set of standard loan
covenants to facilitate the management of its loan portfolio and debt
compliance. The financial covenants are generally limited to minimum
net worth undertaking; a maximum ratio of total borrowings to net worth
and a limit on the amount of pledged assets as a percentage of the Group’s

total assets. CITIC Pacific is in compliance with all of its loan covenants.

Credit Ratings

The Company has been assigned an investment grade foreign currency
long term credit rating of Baa3 by Moody’s Investor Service and BBB- by
Standard & Poor’s. For both ratings, the current credit outlook is stable,
reflecting CITIC Pacific’s strong financial profile including low leverage,

diversified business and strong cashflow.

The Group’s leverage, measured by the net debt to total capital, was 24%.
Interest cover, defined as EBITDA divided by interest expense, was 15.1 in
2004. We believe that these financial indicators demonstrated the Group’s
financial strength. The Company’s objective is to maintain its financial

discipline aiming to improve its credit rating going forward.

Forward Looking Statements

This Annual Report contains certain forward looking statements with
respect to the financial condition, results of operations and business of
the Group. These forward looking statements represent the Company’s
expectations or beliefs concerning future events and involve known and
unknown risks and uncertainty that could cause actual results,
performance or events to differ materially from those expressed or

implied in such statements.

Forward looking statements involve inherent risks and uncertainties.
Readers should be cautioned that a number of factors could cause actual
results to differ, in some instances materially, from those anticipated or

implied in any forward looking statement.
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10 Year Statistics

FROEBEHET) At year end (HK$ million) 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
BRED Shareholders’ funds 26,971 36,912 40,538 42,032 38,240 41,304 41,471 42,488 38,772 37,892
Bt (B%IT) per share (HK$) 18.40 17.30 19.06 19.76 17.98 18.81 1894 19.41 17.72 17.29
BE Debt
BfE Debt 9,706 10,243 23,302 22,075 18,563 15,709 14,639 9,267 10,528 14,580
RITIFR Bank deposits 614 594 710 900 8,044 5,201 4,631 2,545 5511 2,417
FEEGBER Net debt / total capital 25% 21% 36% 34% 22% 20% 19% 14% 11% 24%
FEFE(E) Interest cover (times) 10 19 6 4 4 5 6 12 8 15
BB Capital employed 36,677 47,155 63,840 64,107 56,803 57,013 56,110 51,755 49,300 52,472
ETEE Fixed assets 9,045 9,929 10,472 11,765 11,916 13,433 14,702 15,804 15,526 18,762
HENEHIEE Jointly controlled entities 509 798 859 831 1,396 2,019 2,365 3,582 4,085 7,852
=N Associated companies 20,046 25,393 38,812 38,799 20,987 23,630 22,893 22,377 22,805 21,662
"E Investments 5,644 9,183 11,170 11,548 14,511 9,264 8,070 7,092 1,027 1,121
e Stockmarket capitalisation 53,000 95,800 65,520 35,530 62,230 60,720 37,993 31,514 43,332 48,444
MR 4B Number of shareholders 6,545 6,215 8,642 14,987 13,506 9,808 11,044 12,260 12,198 11,554
8T Staff 11,500 11,750 11,800 11,871 10,490 11,354 11,733 11,643 12,174 15,915
FE(BEEET) For the year (HK$ million)
e SEN T Net profit after tax
B 18055 7 Net profit after tax 2,963 6,769 7,201 2,628 2,735 3,291 2,092 3,843 1,301 3,581
Fh& (B¥%IT) per share (HK$) 1.47 3.18 3.38 1.24 1.29 1.49 0.96 1.76 0.59 1.63
FEEBEEMNER Contribution by major
business
%8 Power Generation 186 186 170 230 440 314 281 245 229 439
iz Aviation 707 1,054 702 (11) 659 1,475 324 1,263 421 1,398
ERR Civil Infrastructure 467 800 1,099 1,382 1,292 1,320 1,362 1,238 635 329
EEE Communications 974 648 322 65 51 92 277 521 230 133
g Special Steel Manufacturing 39 21 2 18 22 29 95 126 178 438
LIES Property 734 602 1,587 270 740 422 633 894 508 608
HERDH Marketing & Distribution 277 330 360 330 230 226 119 227 264 284
HEER Consumer Credit 78 89 84 167 - - - - - -
REYEE Investment Properties
(hifE) /#1E Revaluation (Deficit)/Surplus - - - - - - - - (587) 181
TREMNSIZE - B\ -
HrE R Fm T EBITDA 4,040 4,321 5,706 4,739 4,763 5240 3,923 5693 3,128 5,668
SREE GE%T) Dividends per share (HK$)
TR Regular 0.55 0.62 0.70 0.70 0.75 0.85 0.80 1.00 1.00 1.10
=33l Special - 0.30 0.30 - 2.00 - - 1.00 - -
BE(E) Cover (times) 2.7 2.7 2.7 1.8 1.7 1.8 1.2 1.8 0.6 1.5
et -
1. R E B T4 162T 2 BBt ERIFE 1258 [Freh ) A S L2 —FREZHFHFAE - ER-_FLE—FERUFZHT - WHEAFEBERNZEETE

SRR ELFAETE - UL

Note:

1. Figures have been adjusted in year 2002 following the adoption of revised accounting standard of SSAP 12 ‘Income Tax’.
For comparative purposes, the figures for years 2001 and before have not been adjusted for effects on the adoption.
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Human Resources
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As at the end of December 2004, the Group employed 15,915 staff (2003:
12,174) in its headquarters in Hong Kong and its principal subsidiaries
and joint ventures companies. Employees working in mainland China
increased to 11,680 (2003: 7,827) while those working in Hong Kong
decreased to 3,995 (2003: 4,129). The number of employees in other
countries slightly increased to 240 (2003: 218).

The improving economy in Hong Kong and in the region provides a stable
employment environment for staff to operate effectively and efficiently to

attain better level of performance.

BIERT OB ZEEAR 4,500~
Headcount by Major City 4,000
3,500 -
3,000—
2,500 -
2,000—
1,500 -
1,000-
00 I
L] - —— .
&b IR TEE I TEE B35 it ERE F HippEEm  ABER
Hong Kong Beijing Shangha\ Jiangyin, Wuxi, Hubei Guangzhou, Other China Cities Other Countries
Jiangsu Jiangsu Guangdong
Province Province Province
I 2004 I 2003
BEBIEZRBEAR 7,000~
Headcount by Business Segment
6,000—
5,000-
4,000—
3,000—
2,000-
1,000- I
p— ll mm B __
fs ERR I [k HERAH IRBE Hith

Head Office Civil Communications Power Marketing & Propeny Industrial Others
Infrastructure Generation Distribution Manufacturing

I 2004 . 2003
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Human Resources Management

CITIC Pacific is an equal opportunity employer and adheres to
non-discriminatory employment practices and procedures in recognising
and respecting individual’s rights. Striving to administer a fair and
consistent human resources management policy to the mutual benefit

of its employees and the Group, we also uphold a high standard of
business ethics and personal conduct of our employees. Every employee
of the Group is required to strictly follow the Code of Conduct which
covers the professional and technical standard of requirements in
conducting business, and all heads of business units are charged with the
responsibility of disseminating the Group’s requirements to the stake

holders concerned.

Employee Compensation

CITIC Pacific aims to attract, retain and motivate employees who have the
relevant skills, knowledge and abilities to develop, support and sustain the
continued success of the Group. An employee’s cash remuneration
typically comprises a base salary and a variable compensation, mainly in
the form of a performance-related discretionary bonus which is based on
the Company’s and the individual’s performance. Senior management

of the Group receives a substantially higher portion of their cash
remuneration in performance bonus, reflecting their ability to influence
business outcomes and financial performance. Our compensation strategy
is to cultivate a pay-for-performance culture to incentivise and reward
employee performance that will lead to a long-term enhancement of

the overall caliber of the Group. The Group has in the past three years
undertaken to replace many forms of guaranteed and fixed bonuses with
performance-based variable compensation, which has been well accepted
and supported by staff members. On an annual basis, the Group reviews
the cash compensation and benefit programs provided for its employees
to ensure that the overall compensation is internally equitable, consistent
with local and industry norms, as well as in support of the Group’s
business strategy. Towards this end, Group companies are largely in
conformity with this policy.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee, which was established in August 2003
comprising three non-executive directors, two of whom are independent
non-executive directors. The Committee is chaired by Mr Norman Ho and

will meet at least once a year.

The principal role of the committee is to exercise the powers of the

Board to determine and review the remuneration packages of individual
executive directors and key executives, including salaries, bonuses, benefits
in kind and the terms on which they participate in any share option or
other plans considering factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the directors and key
executives, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability
of performance-based remuneration so as to align management incentives

with shareholder interests.

Details of the CITIC Pacific Share Incentive Plan 2000 and the granting of
options are reported on pages 76 to 80. Total remuneration paid to
directors was HK$114.9 million (2003: 95.5 million) and further

information on Directors’ Emoluments can be found on page 115.

Retirement Benefits

For the Hong Kong employees, The CITIC Group Retirement Plan (‘OrRsO
Plan’) was replaced by The CITIC Group Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (‘MPF Scheme’) in August 2003. The MPF Scheme is managed by
two fund managers offering its members investment choices of 9 funds in
the Fidelity Retirement Master Trust and 5 funds in the Hang Seng
Mandatory Provident Fund - SuperTrust. HsBC Trustee (Hong Kong)
Limited and HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited are the
appointed Trustee respectively. While the new contributions are all made
to the MPF Scheme, investments of the contributed benefits and vesting
still continue under the orso Plan as a closed fund until the existing oRsO
members cease their employment or have their vested benefits transferred
out. The Group has appointed HSBC Trustee (Hong Kong) Limited as
Trustee of the OrRsO Plan to ensure that the closed Plan is operated in
accordance with provisions of the Trust Deed and Rules. HSBC Asset
Management (Hong Kong) Limited and Fidelity Investment Management

(Hong Kong) Limited are appointed as investment managers.

Retirement benefits for employees in mainland China and other locations

are based primarily on local mandatory requirements.
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Training & Development

CITIC Pacific is committed to providing a healthy organisational
environment conducive to each individual’s development. Employees

are encouraged to commit to continuous improvement by taking
responsibility for their own learning and self-development. Seminars,
courses by professional institutions and in-house training are organised
regularly to help employees improve job performance and prepare for
tuture development. Where applicable, the Group arranges external service
providers to conduct customised training programs on specific subjects
such as managerial development, work place safety and updates on new

technology.

With the ever growing cross-border business activities between
Hong Kong and the mainland, the Group encourages and is actively
promoting business integration, knowledge sharing and skills transfer

between staff in the two territories.

To promote work place’s safety, the safety and health committees in Group
companies meet regularly to review related measures and recommend

appropriate training for staff.

CITIC Pacific also believes in investing in the training and development

of the younger members of society. The Group has put in place various
apprentice training programs in different industries of subsidiary
companies. It also participates in the Government’s Youth Pre-employment
Training Program for young school leavers and supports the local
university’s initiatives in the China Career Development Programme by
providing internship opportunities in our mainland China operations for

the Hong Kong students.
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As in the past many years, the Group supports charitable work and the
promotion of education, environment protection, sports, culture and the
arts by sponsoring many activities in Hong Kong, mainland China and
overseas. Particularly, the Group has hosted celebration events for the
China Olympics Games medal winners who visit Hong Kong, and is also
proud to be one of the sponsors of the 33rd Hong Kong Arts Festival
presenting the Wei Song with the Hong Kong Philharmonic Orchestra
performance. Most notably, the Group and its subsidiary companies have
been long-term supporters of the Community Chest of Hong Kong and
the Red Cross by making donations and participating in their campaigns
and fund raising activities. To provide financial assistance to the victims of
South Asia Tsunami Disaster, the Group and its employees also donated

generously to the relief fund.
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Corporate Governance Practices

CITIC Pacific is committed to ensuring high standards of corporate
governance and first class business practices. The Board believes that good
corporate governance practices are increasingly important for maintaining
and promoting investor confidence. Corporate governance requirements
keep changing, therefore the Board reviews its corporate governance
practices from time to time to ensure they meet stakeholders’ expectation,
comply with legal and professional standards and reflect the latest local
and international developments. The Board will continue to commit itself

to achieving a high quality of corporate governance.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Group has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules. Having made specific enquiry, all directors have fully complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year
of 2004.

Board of Directors

The Board currently comprises ten executive and six non-executive
directors of whom four are independent as defined by the Stock Exchange
(the biographies of the directors are set out on pages 64 to 67).
Independent non-executive directors are one-quarter and the non-
executive directors are over one-third of the Board. Under the Company’s
articles of association, all directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and their re-election is subject to a vote of shareholders at the Annual

General Meeting.

The Board oversees the Group’s strategic development, and determines the
objectives, strategies and policies of the Group. The Board also monitors
and controls operating and financial performance in pursuit of the
Group’s strategic objectives. The Board members have access to
appropriate business documents and information about the Group on a
timely basis. All directors and Board committees have recourse to external
legal counsel and other professionals for independent advice at the Group’s

expense if they require it.

Two Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee have been established to oversee particular
aspects of the Group’s affairs. The Board has delegated the day-to-day

management and operation of the Group’s businesses to management.
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The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Group and other business units, and approve future
strategy. Four Board meetings were held in 2004 and the average
attendance rate was 89%. Individual attendance of each director at the
Board meetings, the Audit Committee meetings and the Remuneration
Committee meetings during 2004 is set out below:

HEX  8RRH
Attendance / Number of Meetings

=g BIZZESY FMEEE
E Director Board Audit Committee Remuneration Committee
HITES Executive Director
REREE—FE Mr. Larry Yung Chi Kin — Chairman 4/4
SEIBHR S A Mr. Henry Fan Hung Ling 4/4
REgEE Mr. Vernon Francis Moore 4/4
/NI e Mr. Peter Lee Chung Hing 4/4
Fric =5 & Mr. Norman Yuen Kee Tong 4/4
Pk g A Mr. Yao Jinrong 4/4
BIRAA S & Mr. Chang Zhenming 1/4
FmkaE Mr. Li Shilin 2/4
AN & Mr. Carl Yung Ming Jie 4/4
2IEEH A Mr. Liu Jifu 4/4
BIUKHITES Independent Non-executive Director
A% & Mr. Hamilton Ho Hau Hay 3/4
BRHEE Mr. Alexander Reid Hamilton 4/4 4/4 3/3
(BRZEE®XR) (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
Redg i & Mr. Hansen Loh Chung Hon 4/4 4/4
B85 4 Mr. Norman Ho Hau Chong 3/4 3/3
FMEESER) (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
FHITES Non-executive Director
RIEMEE Mr. Willie Chang 4/4 4/4 3/3
EREELE Mr. André Desmarais 4/4
(EFmAgayarcsa (Two of the meetings were attended by
SEZEITERHE ) the alternate of Mr. André Desmarais.)
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To implement the strategies and plans adopted by the Board effectively, an
executive committee of selected executive directors and senior managers
meets monthly to review the performance of the businesses of the Group,
co-ordinate overall resources and make financial and operational

decisions.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

There is a segregation of duties between the Chairman’s responsibility for
leadership and management of the Board and the Company’s strategy, and
the Managing Director’s responsibility to implement the Company’s

strategy.
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Non-executive Directors

There are currently six non-executive directors of whom four are
independent. Under Article 104(A) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, they are subject to the retirement of nearest to one-third of
the board each year but not explicitly subject to retirement at least once
every 3 years as required by the new Code on Corporate Governance
Practices. A resolution will be proposed at the annual general meeting
scheduled on 12 May 2005 to amend the Articles of Association in line

with the new code provision.

Audit Committee

The Board established an Audit Committee in 1995. All Committee
members are non-executive directors and two of them including the
Chairman are independent. The Committee members possess diversified
industry experience and the Chairman is an expert on financial and
auditing matters. The Committee meets four times each year, together with

senior management and auditors, both internal and external.

During 2004, the Audit Committee considered the external auditors’
projected audit fees; discussed with the external auditors their
independence and the nature and scope of the audit; reviewed the interim
and annual financial statements, particularly judgmental areas, before
submission to the Board; reviewed the external auditors’ management
letter and management’s response; reviewed the internal audit programme,
findings and management’s response; and reviewed the Group’s adherence
to various Codes described below. As a result, they recommended the

Board to adopt the interim and annual report for 2004.

Remuneration Committee

During 2004, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the remuneration
policies and approved the salary and bonus of the executive directors and
certain key executives, reviewed the remuneration policy of the Group and
approved the granting of options. Three meetings were held in 2004 with
the attendance rate of 100%. All Committee members are non-executive

directors and two of them including the Chairman are independent.

No executive director takes part in any discussion about his own
remuneration. The fee for each individual director sitting on the Board is
HK$150,000. The additional fees for the directors serving in the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee are HK$100,000 and

HK$50,000 respectively.
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Details of CITIC Pacific’s remuneration policies are set out in the Human
Resources section on pages 53 to 54. Directors’ emoluments and
retirement benefits are disclosed on pages 115 to 116. Details of the CITIC
Pacific Share Incentive Plan 2000 and the granting of options are disclosed

on pages 76 to 80.

Internal Controls
The Board recognises its responsibility for maintaining an adequate
system of internal control and prompt and transparent reporting of the

Company’s activities to the shareholders and to the public.

The internal control system is designed to facilitate the effectiveness and
efficiency of operations, safeguard assets against unauthorised use and
disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records and the
truth and fairness of the financial statements, and ensure compliance with
relevant legislation and regulations. It provides reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material mis-statement or loss and the
management rather than elimination of risks associated with its business

activities.

Auditor’s Remuneration

Annually since 1989 PricewaterhouseCoopers have been appointed as
CITIC Pacific’s external auditors by shareholders. During the year,

the fees charged to the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries
for PricewaterhouseCoopers’ statutory audit services amounted to
HK$7 million (2003: HK$6 million), and in addition HK$5 million
(2003: HK$0.5 million) for other services. The non-statutory audit
services consist of financial due diligence, tax compliance and the
interim review. The cost of audit services of subsidiaries not performed
by PricewaterhouseCoopers was HK$7 million (2003: HK$6 million).
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Internal Audit

The Group Internal Audit Department supports management by carrying
out systematic independent reviews of all business units and subsidiaries
in the Group over a period of time. The frequency of review is determined
after an assessment of the risks involved. The Audit Committee endorses
the internal audit programme annually. The Group Internal Auditor has
unrestricted access to all parts of the business, and direct access to any
level of management including the Chairman, or the Chairman of the
Audit Committee, as he considers necessary. The Group Internal Audit
Department submits regular reports for the Audit Committee’s review in
accordance with the approved internal audit programme. Concerns which
have been reported by the Group Internal Audit Department are
monitored quarterly by management until appropriate remedial actions

have been taken.

Codes

To ensure the highest standard of integrity in our businesses, the Group
adopted a Code of Conduct defining the ethical standards expected of all
employees, and the Group’s non-discriminatory employment practices.
Training courses on the Code are held regularly for all employees and the
Audit Committee receives a report on the operation, and the need for

revision, of the Code every year.

Throughout the year of 2004, the Group has complied with the Code of
Best Practice containing in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the

Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of the Hong Kong Limited.

The Group has endorsed the guide to good employment practices issued
by the Employers’ Federation of Hong Kong to promote good and
responsible employment standards.

Connected Transactions

During the period, CITIC Pacific has issued press announcements in
respect of a number of ‘connected transactions’, details of which have been
included in the Directors’ Report on pages 73 to 76 and the related press
announcements can be viewed in the Group’s website

(www.citicpacific.com).
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Fair Disclosure and Investor Relations

CITIC Pacific uses its best endeavours to distribute material information
about the Group to all interested parties as widely as possible. When
announcements are made through the Hong Kong Stock Exchange the
same information will be on its way to journalists and investment analysts
where an e-mail address or fax number is known and will be available to

shareholders on the Company’s website shortly thereafter.

CITIC Pacific recognises its responsibility to explain its activities to those
with a legitimate interest and to respond to their questions. Investors are
regularly received and visited to explain the Group’s businesses. During
2004, representatives of about 200 investment houses were briefed in our
office or at conferences and our roadshows in Hong Kong, U.S., Europe,
China and Singapore. Questions on the Company and its products and
services received from the general public, individual shareholders and
investment analysts were answered promptly. In all cases great care has

been taken to ensure that no price sensitive information is disclosed.

Information about CITIC Pacific can be found in the Group’s website
including descriptions of each business and the Annual Reports for last

six years.

Financial Reporting

The Board recognises its responsibility to prepare the Company’s accounts
which give a true and fair view and are in accordance with generally
accepted accounting standards published by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Appropriate accounting policies are selected
and applied consistently; judgments and estimates made are prudent and
reasonable. Hong Kong accounting standards have always broadly
followed international accounting standards and in 2004 the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants adopted many new and revised
accounting standards to converge Hong Kong standards with international
standards. The Group has chosen to early adopt three of the new or
revised accounting standards - HKFRS No. 3 Business Combinations;
HKAS No. 36 Impairment of Assets and HKAS No. 38 Intangible Assets.
The other new standards will be adopted in 2005. The Directors
endeavour to ensure a balanced and understandable assessment of the

Group’s position and prospects in financial reporting.
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Headquarters and Registered Office

32nd Floor, CITIC Tower, 1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central, Hong Kong
Telephone: 2820 2111

Fax: 2877 2771

Website
www.citicpacific.com contains a description of CITIC Pacific’s business,
copies of both the full and summary reports to shareholders,

announcements, press releases and other information.

Stock Codes

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong: 0267
Bloomberg: 267 HK

Reuters: 0267. HK

American Depository Receipts: CTPCY
CUSIP Reference No: 17304K102

Share Registrars

Shareholders should contact our Registrars, Tengis Limited, Ground Floor,

Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,

Hong Kong on 2980 1333, or by fax: 2810 8185, on matters such as transfer

of shares, change of name or address, or loss of share certificates.

Annual and Interim Reports

Shareholders may obtain printed copies of annual and interim reports
from the Registrars. Other should contact the Company Secretary

on 2820 2111 or fax: 2877 2771 or at contact@citicpacific.com for

a printed report.

Investor Relations

Investors, shareholders and research analysts may contact the Investor
Relations Department by telephone at 2820 2004, by fax: 2104 6632 or
at investor.relations@citicpacific.com.

Financial Calendar

Closure of Register: 6 May 2005 to 12 May 2005
Annual General Meeting: 12 May 2005, 10:30 a.m.
Island Ballroom, Level 5, Island Shangri-La Hotel
Two Pacific Place, Supreme Court Road, Hong Kong
Final Dividend Payable: 17 May 2005
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Executive Directors

Larry Yung Chi Kin (Chairman), aged 63, a Director since 1990, is the
Vice Chairman and Managing Director of CITIC Hong Kong (Holdings)
Limited (‘CITIC HK’) and an Executive Director of CITIC Group (‘CITIC
Beijing’). He worked for 14 years with the Ministry of Electric Power in
the People’s Republic of China (‘PRC’) before coming to Hong Kong in
1978, and had extensive management experience before establishing
CITIC HK in 1987.

Henry Fan Hung Ling (Managing Director), aged 56, a Director since
1990, is a Deputy Chairman of Cathay Pacific Airways Limited (‘Cathay’),
a director of Hong Kong Dragon Airlines Limited (‘Dragonair’) and a
Deputy Managing Director of CITIC HK. He is a non-executive director of
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited. Before joining CITIC HK in
1987, Mr Fan held senior management positions with a number of

corporations and also practised law as a barrister.

Vernon Francis Moore (Deputy Managing Director), aged 58, a Director
and the Group Chief Financial Officer since 1990, is a director of Cathay,
cLp Holdings Limited (‘cLp Holdings’) and Hong Kong Air Cargo
Terminals Limited, the Chairman of New Hong Kong Tunnel Company
Limited (‘NHKTC’) and the Western Harbour Tunnel Company Limited
(‘wHT’) and the Deputy Chairman of CITIC Capital Markets Holdings
Limited. Mr Moore joined CITIC HK in 1987 as Executive Director after
holding senior management positions with a number of financial

institutions.

Peter Lee Chung Hing (Deputy Managing Director), aged 51, is the
Chairman of Jiangyin Steel Mills and Hubei Xin Yegang Co., Ltd., the Vice
Chairman of CITIC Guoan Co., Ltd. (‘CITIC Guoan’) and Air China Cargo
and a director of Dragonair and other Group companies concerned with
communications and trading businesses. Before joining CITIC HK in 1988,
Mr Lee was with major banking and shipping groups in Hong Kong. He
joined CITIC Pacific Limited (‘CITIC Pacific’) in 1990.
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Norman Yuen Kee Tong (Deputy Managing Director), aged 56, a Director
since 2001, is the Chairman of CITIC Pacific Communications Limited
(‘cpc’) and the representative of CITIC Pacific on the Board of Companhia
de Telecomunicacoes de Macau S.A.R.L.. Mr Yuen was previously the
deputy chief executive officer of Pacific Century CyberWorks Limited

and had extensive experience in the telecommunications business. He
serves on several public bodies and advisory committees and is a Justice
of the Peace.

Yao Jinrong (Executive Director), aged 65, a Director since 2000, is the
Managing Director of CITIC Pacific China Holdings Limited. He joined
CITIC Beijing in early 1985 and once served concurrently as executive
secretary to CITIC Beijing’s former Chairman Mr Rong Yiren and director
of CITIC Beijing’s general office. From 1995 to 2000, Mr Yao was one of
CITIC Beijing’s Vice Presidents and Executive Directors. He is now a
director of CITIC Beijing.

Chang Zhenming (Executive Director), aged 48, a Director since 2000,
has extensive experience in finance, banking and securities business.
Mr Chang is the Vice Chairman and President of China Construction Bank

Corporation. Formerly, he was an Executive Director of CITIC Beijing.

Li Shilin (Executive Director), aged 55, a Director since 2000, is an
Executive Director and a Vice President of CITIC Beijing. He is also the
Chairman of CITIC Guoan Group, Xin De Telecom International Ventures
Co., Ltd., CITIC Guoan Information Industry Co., Ltd. and CITIC Offshore
Helicopter Co., Ltd.

Carl Yung Ming Jie (Executive Director), aged 36, is a director of Cathay
and other Group companies concerned with infrastructure and industrial
projects in the prc. He joined CITIC Pacific in 1993. He is the son of

Mr Larry Yung Chi Kin.
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Liu Jifu (Executive Director), aged 61, a Director since 2001, is a director
of CITIC HK and CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited. Before
joining CITIC HK in 2000, Mr Liu worked with the Financial and
Economics Research Institute in the China Academy of Social Sciences for
5 years. Formerly, he was an Executive Director of China Everbright Group
Limited, the Chairman of China Everbright Travel Inc and China PINGHE
Import & Export Co., Ltd.

Non-Executive Directors
Willie Chang, aged 61, a Director since 1987, is the sole proprietor of
Willie Chang & Co., Solicitors, with over 35 years’ experience in legal

practice, including as a partner of Johnson, Stokes and Master."*

Hamilton Ho Hau Hay, aged 54, a Director since 1992, is a director of
Dah Chong Hong Holdings Limited, New World Development Company
Limited and King Fook Holdings Limited, an Executive Director of
Honorway Investments Limited (‘Honorway’) and Tak Hung (Holding)
Company Limited (‘“Tak Hung’). He is the brother of Mr Norman Ho
Hau Chong.*

Alexander Reid Hamilton, aged 63, a Director since 1994, was a partner
of PricewaterhouseCoopers where he practised for 16 years. He is a
director of a number of Hong Kong companies including cosco Pacific
Limited, Shangri-La Asia Limited, Esprit Holdings Limited and Octopus
Cards Limited.*'*

Hansen Loh Chung Hon, aged 67, a Director since 1994, is the Managing
Director of Wyler Textiles, Limited, Chairman of Farrington American

Express Travel Services Limited and a director of cLp Holdings.*"

Norman Ho Hau Chong, aged 49, a Director since 1994, is an Executive
Director of Honorway and Tak Hung, and a director of Hong Kong Ferry
(Holdings) Company Limited, Lee Hing Development Limited, and a
number of other quoted companies. He is the brother of Mr Hamilton Ho
Hau Hay.**
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André Desmarais, aged 48, a Director since 1997, is the President and
Co-Chief Executive Officer of Power Corporation of Canada. He is a
member of the Chief Executive’s Council of International Advisers of
The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and

member of the CITIC International Advisory Council.

Peter Kruyt (Alternate Director to Mr André Desmarais), aged 49, an
alternate director since 2003, is Vice President of Power Corporation of
Canada, Chairman of Power Pacific Corporation Limited and Chairman

of the Canada-China Business Council.

* Independent Non-Executive Director
T Member of the Audit Committee
¥ Member of the Remuneration Committee

Senior Managers

Bi Yupu (General Manager, Power Project Department), aged 63, is a
Deputy Managing Director of CITIC HK and the chief representative of
CITIC Pacific’s Beijing Office. Before joining the CITIC HK Group in 1987,
he worked for 20 years with the Ministry of Electric Power in the PRC as
a senior engineer and deputy director of North China Electric Power
Research Institute. He joined CITIC Pacific in 1993.

Chau Chi Yin (Director, Group Financial Control), aged 49, joined CITIC
Pacific in 1990, is a director of Hong Kong Resort Company Limited (‘HK
Resort’) and certain Group companies in the industrial sector projects.
He joined CITIC HK in 1987 after experience in public accounting and in

financial management with a major Hong Kong listed company.

Leslie Chang Li Hsien (Director, Group Finance), aged 50, is a director of
CITIC Guoan, Hong Kong Tunnels and Highways Management Company
Limited (‘HKTHMC’) and WHT. Before joining CITIC Pacific in 1994, he
was a partner at KPMG specializing in the financial services industry and
the Director of the firm’s Chinese Practice in the United States.
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Frances Yung Ming Fong (Director, Technology Development), aged 33, is
the Deputy Chairman of cpc and a director of NHKTC. She joined CITIC
Pacific in 1995 and is responsible for the development of technology-based
projects. She is the daughter of Mr Larry Yung Chi Kin.

Milton Law Ming To (Director, Business Development), aged 41, is a
director of Dragonair, NHKTC, WHT, HKTHMC, CITIC Guoan, Air China
Cargo and other Group companies in the infrastructure, environment and
industrial sector. Before joining CITIC Pacific in 1992, he worked in the
banking industry.

Stella Chan Chui Sheung (Director, Company Secretariat), aged 42. Before
joining CITIC HK in 1988 and CITIC Pacific in 1990, she worked in the

company secretarial field.

Paul Lo Kai Sing (Director, Group Human Resources and Administration),
aged 49, joined CITIC Pacific in January 2005. He has many years
experience in human resources management in a variety of industries,
including electronics manufacturing, multinational trading conglomerates
and integrated multi-media services, and once served as the General
Manager, Group Human Resources and Communications of Dah Chong
Hong from 1997 to 2000.

Hui Ying Bun (Group Chief Executive, Dah Chong Hong), aged 58, is also
the Chief Executive - Motor, responsible for the overall management of the
Dah Chong Hong Group’s businesses in Hong Kong, the PRc, Singapore,
Japan, and Canada. He joined Dah Chong Hong in 1966, obtaining
extensive experience in executive management, motor distribution, and
China Trade.

Chu Hon Fai (Chief Executive - Trading, Dah Chong Hong), aged 59, is
responsible for the management of Dah Chong Hong Trading Group’s
business in Hong Kong, the PRC, Singapore, Japan and Canada. He also
manages the business of Sims Trading Company Limited (‘Sims Trading’).
He joined Dah Chong Hong in 1964 and obtained extensive experience in

management of global trading, distribution and China trade.
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Shi Cui Ming (Chairman, CITIC Telecom 1616 Limited (‘Telecom 1616’)),
aged 65, joined CITIC Pacific in February 2004. He has extensive
experience in the reform and development of the telecommunications
industry in China, and held various senior management positions in a
leading telecommunications corporation in China prior to joining

the Group.

Peter Chan Kwong Choi (Managing Director, Telecom 1616), aged 41,
joined CITIC Pacific in 2000, when CITIC Pacific bought Telecom 1616
Limited where he gained extensive experience in the telecommunications

industry.

Glenn Robert Sturrock Smith (Chief Executive, Sims Trading), aged 52,
joined CITIC Pacific in 2001 when CITIC Pacific bought Sims Trading
where he had many years of experience in the marketing and distribution

of consumer products.

Aaron Wong Ha Hang (General Manager - Projects, Property
Department), aged 46, is an Executive Director of HK Resort, a director
of NHKTC and other Group companies concerned with property and
environmental projects. Before joining CITIC Pacific in 1996, he worked
for an international consulting firm in the United Kingdom and in

Hong Kong.

Cindy Kwan Kit Ying (General Manager - Sales & Marketing, Property
Department), aged 42, joined CITIC Pacific in 1996 after broad experience

in property sales, marketing, and leasing.

Stephen Ho Wai Chung (Chief Executive Officer, cPcNet Hong Kong
Limited), aged 46, is the Executive Vice-President, Operations of cpc.
He joined CITIC Pacific in 2001 after 19 years of experience in the

telecommunications industry.

Miranda Yip Siu Wai (Executive Director and the General Manager,
NHKTC), aged 41, joined NHKTC in January 1999 as Deputy General
Manager and was appointed as Executive Director and General Manager

in January 2004. She has extensive experience in public administration.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting to shareholders their report for
the year ended 31 December 2004.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is holding its subsidiary companies
and the principal activities of its subsidiary companies and associated
companies and their major areas of operation are set out in the Business

Review on pages 7 to 31.

Dividends

The Directors declared an interim dividend of HK$0.30 per share in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2004 which was paid on

22 September 2004. The Directors recommended, subject to the approval
of the shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, the
payment of a final dividend of HK$0.80 per share in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2004 payable on 17 May 2005 to shareholders on the
Register of Members at the close of business on 12 May 2005.

Reserves
The amounts and particulars of transfer to and from reserves during the

year are set out in Note 22 to the accounts.

Donations
Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$18 million.

Fixed Assets

Movements of fixed assets are set out in Note 12 to the accounts.

Major Customers and Suppliers
The percentage of purchases and sales with the Group’s suppliers and

customers are as follows:

BE Purchases 2004 2003
TR The largest supplier 10 13
TAREERA S Five largest suppliers combined 20 21
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The aggregate percentage of sales to the Group’s five largest customers is
less than 30%.

No directors, their associates or shareholders (which to the knowledge
of the directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) were

interested at any time in the year in the above suppliers or customers.

Subsidiary Companies
The names of the principal subsidiary companies, their principal places of
operation, their countries of incorporation and particulars of their issued

share capital are set out in Note 30 to the accounts.

Issue of Debt Securities

On 15 February 1996, the Company issued and sold US$100 million
aggregate principal amount of its 7.37% Senior Notes due 2006 (‘Senior
Notes’) to financial institutions pursuant to note purchase agreements
dated 15 February 1996. All of the Senior Notes remained outstanding
at the end of the year.

On 1 June 2001, CITIC Pacific Finance (2001) Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, issued and sold a total of US$450 million
principal amount of 7.625% guaranteed notes due 2011 (‘Guaranteed
Notes’) for refinancing the indebtedness of the Company and for general
corporate purposes, to investors pursuant to the purchase agreements
dated 24 May 2001 and 1 June 2001. All of the Guaranteed Notes remained
outstanding at the end of the year.

Save as aforesaid, neither the Company nor its subsidiary companies have

issued any debt securities.

Borrowings
Particulars of borrowings of the Group are set out in Note 23 to the

accounts.

Directors

The directors of the Company whose names and biographical details
appear on pages 64 to 67 were the directors in office during the financial
year ended 31 December 2004.
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Mr Leslie Chang Li Hsien has been appointed as an executive director of
the Company with effect from 1 April 2005. Thus, in accordance with
Article 95 of the New Articles of Association of the Company, he shall
hold office only until the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and is then
eligible for re-election. In addition, pursuant to Article 104(A) of the New
Articles of Association of the Company, Messrs Vernon Francis Moore,
Yao Jinrong, Chang Zhenming, Norman Ho Hau Chong and André
Desmarais shall retire by rotation in the forthcoming Annual General

Meeting and all, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive director
an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to the new
independence guidelines under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (‘Listing Rules’)

and that the Company still considers such directors to be independent.

Management Contract

The Company entered into a management agreement with CITIC

Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited (‘CITIC HK’) on 11 April 1991 but with
retrospective effect from 1 March 1990 in which CITIC HK agreed to
provide management services to the Company and its subsidiary
companies for a management fee calculated on a cost basis to CITIC HK
payable quarterly in arrears. The management agreement is terminable
by two months’ notice by either party. Messrs Larry Yung Chi Kin, Henry
Fan Hung Ling, Vernon Francis Moore and Liu Jifu had indirect interests
in the management agreement as they are directors of CITIC HK. A copy
of the management agreement will be available for inspection at the
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 12 May 2005.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

None of the directors of the Company has or at any time during the

year had, an interest which is or was material, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract with the Company or any of its subsidiary companies,
which was significant in relation to the business of the Company, and
which was subsisting at the end of the year or which had subsisted at

any time during the year.
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Connected Transactions
Connected transactions disclosed in accordance with the Listing Rules are

as follows:

1. Pursuant to (i) the agreement dated 13 October 2003 made between
Everwin Holdings Ltd. (‘Everwin’), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, and CITIC Group (‘CITIC Beijing’), being a substantial
shareholder of the Company, and (ii) the agreement dated 13 October
2003 made between Everwin and CITIC Beijing, Everwin acquired from
CITIC Beijing (a) 65% of the registered capital of Sunburst Energy
Development Co., Ltd. (formerly Sunburst Energy Development Inc.)
(‘Sunburst’), together with the benefit of a shareholder’s loan of
RMB46,890,000 due by Sunburst to CITIC Beijing and interest outstanding
thereunder (but excluding 51% of the registered capital of Shaanxi Xin Li
Power Generation Company Limited (‘Shaanxi Xin Li’) held by Sunburst)
and (b) 20% of the registered capital of Inner Mongolia Fengtai Electric
Power Generation Company Limited. Sunburst in turn beneficially owns
13.44% of Jiangsu Ligang Electric Power Company Limited (‘Ligang’) and
85% of Shenzhen Xiecheng Electric Industry Company Limited. The
consideration was RMB360,960,000. In addition, in relation to a banking
facility of RMB315,490,000 (extended by an independent third party) to
Shaanxi Xin Li under which CITIC Beijing has provided a guarantee to the
bank and Sunburst has provided the counter indemnity dated 29
December 1997, it was agreed that in relation to any claim against CITIC
Beijing under its guarantee to the bank, CITIC Beijing and Everwin will
share such claim equally and Everwin will indemnify CITIC Beijing

accordingly, up to a maximum amount of RMB50 million.

2. Pursuant to a concession agreement dated 9 April 2004 (‘Concession
Agreement’) entered into between Zunyi Municipal Administration
Bureau on behalf of the Zunyi Municipal People’s Government and
Compagnie Generale des Eaux (‘cGDE’) on behalf of the jv Companies
(as defined below), one of the jv Companies was granted the right to
acquire two existing water treatment facilities, the Nanjiao Facility and
the Beijiao Facility in the People’s Republic of China (‘the Facilities’)

at RMB152 million and to operate and maintain the Facilities. The
Concession Agreement is conditional upon, among other things, the

business licences of jv Companies having been issued.
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On 9 June 2004, the Group entered into two agreements with CGDE to
form CGE (Zunyi) Water Treatment Co., Ltd. (‘Asset Company’) and

CGE (Zunyi) Water Treatment Operation Co., Ltd. (‘Operation Company’,
together with Asset Company, the ‘Jv Companies’). The Group and CGDE
will be respectively interested in 75% and 25% of Asset Company, and
25% and 75% of Operation Company.

On 18 June 2004, the Group and cGDE further entered into a delegation
agreement (‘the Delegation Agreement’) on behalf of the jv Companies
so that upon their formation, Asset Company shall delegate the right to
operate and maintain the Facilities to Operation Company for up to

35 years. Under the Delegation Agreement, Asset Company shall pay to
Operation Company a monthly delegation fee consisting of (i) the basic
delegation fee for the basic volume of treated water planned to be
purchased and (ii) the additional delegation fee for the actual daily volume
of treated water supplied by Operation Company in excess of the basic
volume. It is expected that the maximum aggregate annual value for the
arrangement under the Delegation Agreement for each financial year of

the Company will not exceed RMB51 million.

Upon formation of the jv Companies, the jv Companies will enter into

a concession novation agreement (‘Concession Novation Agreement’)

and a delegation novation agreement (‘Delegation Novation Agreement’)
with, inter alia, CGDE to formally take up their rights and obligations
under the Concession Agreement and the Delegation Agreement.

Upon establishment of the jv Companies, CGDE will be a substantial
shareholder of Asset Company and will become a connected person of the
Company. The entering into of the Concession Novation Agreement and
the Delegation Novation Agreement will constitute connected transactions
of the Company. The arrangement under the Delegation Agreement will

constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company.

As at 31 December 2004, the yjv Companies have not yet been formed.
Accordingly, the Concession Novation Agreement and the Delegation
Novation Agreement have not been entered into and the delegation

arrangements under the Delegation Agreement have not commenced.
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3. On 24 June 2004, Noble Full Company Limited (‘Noble Full’) (a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company), Jiangyin Steel Mill and Bright Trinity
Enterprises Ltd. (‘Bright Trinity’) entered into a joint venture contract and
an articles of association for the establishment of a joint venture company
(‘the New jVv’) for the production and sale of ferrous metal materials.

The total investment and the registered capital of the New jv amount to
US$29.8 million and US$11.92 million respectively. Upon its establishment,
the New jv would be owned as to approximately 80% by Noble Full, 11.7%
by Jiangyin Steel Mill and approximately 8.3% by Bright Trinity.

As Jiangyin Steel Mill is a substantial shareholder of various subsidiaries
of the Company and a director of the said subsidiaries holds 42.8%
interest in Bright Trinity, Jiangyin Steel Mill and Bright Trinity are
connected persons of the Company.

4. Pursuant to an agreement dated 15 October 2004 made between Tallian
Corp. (‘Talliar’), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and CITIC Beijing,
a substantial shareholder of the Company, Tallian acquired from CITIC Beijing
the entire issued share capital in A-A Dynamic Investments Limited (‘A-A
Dynamic’), which holds a 12.5% equity interest in Huai Bei Guoan Power
Company Ltd. (‘Huai Bei Guoan Power’), and a shareholder’s loan of
approximately HK$99,477,290 owed by A-A Dynamic to CITIC Beijing, at
an aggregate consideration of RMB148 million. Huai Bei Guoan Power is
engaged in the business of building, possession and operation of Huai Bei No. 2

Power Plant, generation and sale of electricity in the People’s Republic of China.

5. Pursuant to an agreement-in-principle dated 28 February 2005 made
between Sunspark Power Investment Company Limited (‘Sunspark’),

a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and the other shareholders

of Ligang, in consideration of Sunspark paying an aggregate compensation
of RMB500 million (‘Compensation’) to the other shareholders of Ligang,
the terms of the joint venture shall be amended so that all those provisions
of the joint venture contract and articles that stipulate the transfer of the
rights and benefits in Phase I, upon expiry of a 15-year period after
commencement of its commercial operation, and Phase II, upon expiry of
a 20-year period after commencement of its commercial operation, from
Sunspark and the joint venture to the other shareholders of Ligang at nil
consideration shall cease to have effect and the terms of the joint venture
contract and articles shall be changed to a long term joint venture. The
Compensation will be paid in cash to the other shareholders of Ligang

approximately in proportion to their respective equity interests in Ligang.
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Wauxi Local Electric Power Company (‘Wuxi Power’), beneficially holding
8.74% of Ligang, and its holding company are substantial shareholders of
certain subsidiaries of the Company and spic Electric Power Co. (‘sp1C’),
beneficially holding 12.77% of Ligang, is also a substantial shareholder of
a subsidiary of the Company. Thus, both Wuxi Power and spic are

connected persons of the Company.

6. On 11 March 2005, Sky Rich Investments Ltd. (a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company) entered into an acquisition agreement with
CITIC Trust & Investment Co., Ltd. (‘CITIC Trust’) to acquire from CITIC
Trust a 35% equity interest in Wal-Mart East China Stores Co., Ltd. The
consideration for the acquisition was US$3,580,000 and was determined
with reference to the registered capital contribution from CITIC Trust to
Wal-Mart East China Stores Co., Ltd. plus the cost of fund. As CITIC Trust
is wholly owned by CITIC Beijing being a substantial shareholder of the
Company, CITIC Trust is a connected person of the Company.

Share Option Plan
The Company adopted the CITIC Pacific Share Incentive Plan 2000
(‘the Plan’) on 31 May 2000. The major terms of the Plan are as follows:

1. The purpose of the Plan is to promote the interests of the Company
and its shareholders by (i) providing the participants with additional
incentives to continue and increase their efforts in achieving success in
the business of the Company, and (ii) attracting and retaining the best
available personnel to participate in the on-going business operation of

the Company.

2. The participants of the Plan are any director, executive or employee

of the Company or its subsidiaries as invited by the Board.

3. The maximum number of shares over which options may be granted
under the Plan shall not exceed 10% of (i) the issued share capital of
the Company from time to time or (ii) the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of adopting the Plan, whichever is the lower.
As at 15 March 2005, the maximum number of shares available for issue
under the Plan is 194,881,016, representing approximately 8.89% of the

issued share capital.
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4. No participant shall be granted an option which, if exercised in full,
would result in such participant’s maximum entitlement to exceed 25

per cent of the maximum aggregate number of shares subject to the Plan.

5. The exercise period of any option granted under the Plan must not be

more than ten years commencing on the date of grant.

6. The acceptance of an offer of the grant of the option must be made
within 28 days from the date of grant with a non-refundable payment of
HK$1.00 from the grantee.

7. The exercise price determined by the Board will be at least the higher
of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (‘Stock
Exchange’) on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant and

(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.
8. The Plan shall be valid and effective till 30 May 2010.

Since adoption of the Plan, the Company have granted two lots of share
options on 28 May 2002 and 1 November 2004 respectively. All options
granted and accepted can be exercised in whole or in part within 5 years
from the date of grant and none of such options were cancelled or lapsed
during the year up to 31 December 2004. The closing price of the
Company’s shares immediately before the grant on 1 November 2004
was HK$19.90.
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A summary of the movements during the year ended 31 December 2004

of the share options granted under the Plan is as follows:

A. Directors of the Company

BIRESE
Number of Share Options
TTE(E 0451 A PRO4F12A31H L HK04F12A31HIE 04512 A MBE ST
BEMs B =h: BT 1B 2 &7 FENEE FENTTE 31BZ&F IRAE 5 =
Name of director Date of Exercise Balance Granted during Exercised during Balance as at Percentage of
grant price as at the year ended the year ended 31.12.04 issued share
HK$ 1.1.04 31.12.04 31.12.04 capital %
E e 28.5.02 18.2 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
Larry Yung Chi Kin 1.11.04 19.9 - 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
4,000,000 0.182
SBIBER 28.5.02 18.2 1,600,000 - 1,600,000 -
Henry Fan Hung Ling 1.11.04 19.9 - 1,600,000 1,600,000 - -
BEH 28.5.02 18.2 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
Vernon Francis Moore 1.11.04 19.9 - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
2,000,000 0.091
/N 28.5.02 18.2 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
Peter Lee Chung Hing 1.11.04 19.9 - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
2,000,000 0.091
frac= 28.5.02 18.2 500,000 - - 500,000
Norman Yuen Kee Tong  1.11.04 19.9 - 500,000 - 500,000
1,000,000 0.046
S 28.5.02 18.2 300,000 - - 300,000
Yao Jinrong 1.11.04 19.9 - 500,000 - 500,000
800,000 0.036
R 28.5.02 18.2 500,000 - - 500,000 0.023
Chang Zhenming
M 28.5.02 18.2 300,000 - - 300,000 0.014
Li Shilin
ELEF 28.5.02 18.2 300,000 - - 300,000
Carl Yung Ming Jie 1.11.04 19.9 - 500,000 - 500,000
800,000 0.036
2EE 28.5.02 18.2 300,000 - - 300,000
Liu Jifu 1.11.04 19.9 - 500,000 - 500,000
800,000 0.036
BT - Note:

1. RARBIR D EB% ZRERETTIE H AT 2 DI 194

18 738 1520.85 7T -
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1. The weighted average closing price of the shares of the Company immediately

before the dates on which the options were exercised is HK$20.85.



B. FrE DA - MRBEMEIRHIAET  B. Employees of the Company working under continuous
R EE MR Z AR A EE contracts (as defined in the Employment Ordinance), other
than the Directors

FERiEER

Number of Share Options
B TEME R04F1 A1H HRO04F12A31H IE R04F12A31H 1t R04F12A31H
BT 2T FEANERH FERNTTE 2 REE
Date of grant Exercise Balance Granted during Exercised during Balance
price HK$ as at the year ended the year ended as at
1.1.04 31.12.04 31.12.04 31.12.04
28.5.02 18.2 3,400,000 - 30,0007 3,370,000
1.11.04 19.9 - 5,180,000 - 5,180,000

Kz Note:

2. KR ARG ERZEZ SHERETIE B BRI 1T 2. The weighted average closing price of the shares of the Company immediately
1B A#KD1.957 © before the dates on which the options were exercised is HK$21.95.

C. HAt C. Others

B EE R
Number of Share Options
RHE B fIEE H0o4F1B18 04512831 1 045128318 I 04512 A31H
BT 21T FENED FREAITER 2T
Date of grant Exercise Balance Granted during Exercised during Balance
price HK$ as at the year ended the year ended as at
1.1.04 31.12.04 31.12.04 31.12.04

28.5.02 18.2 350,000 - 350,000° -

st - Note:

3. A 250,000 R X R AIERIETI 1 T — B 1R fs B A 4 3. Options for 50,000 shares in the Company granted to a former employee under
REZHITES @ MZEER -TE=FRIK - MAF continuous contract, who had retired in 2003, and options for 300,000 shares in
FE300,000 8 A R IR IETIIR 7 — B R - EEWF— the Company granted to a former director, who retired on 1 January 2004, were
A—ARKAFITESE  ZZERERFARITE - KL exercised during the year. The weighted average closing price of the shares of the
BIRIDE B2 SR RETT(E B 25T 2 I F K (8 Company immediately before the dates on which the options were exercised is
BB 19.57T © HK$19.5.
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The fair value of an option on one CITIC Pacific share measured as at the
date of grant of 1 November 2004 was HK$3.54 based on the following

assumptions using the Black-Scholes Model:
¢ Exercise price of HK$19.90

» Expected volatility of 35% (based on volatility of share prices of the past
5 years as of 31 January 2005)

¢ Expected annual dividend yield of 5% (based on historical dividend

payments)

* Estimated expected life of the options granted is 3.01 years (taking into

account assumed turnover rate and an early exercise assumption)

* Risk-free interest rate of 1.95% per annum (based on linearly
interpolated yields of Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes with a term of
3.01 years at the grant date)

The result of the Black-Scholes Model can be materially affected by
changes in these assumptions so an option’s actual value may differ from

the estimated fair value of the options due to limitations of the Model.

All the options forfeited before expiry of the Plan will be treated as lapsed
options which will not be added back to the number of shares available to

be issued under the Plan.

The Group has not early adopted the new HKFRS 2 ‘Share Based Payment’
which is effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2005. Thus, no employee stock option cost is recognised in the accounts
for the year ended 31 December 2004. The Group will follow the
requirement of HKERS 2 for accounting periods commencing on or after
1 January 2005.

Directors’ Interests in Securities

The interests of the directors in shares of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (‘SF0’)) as at 31 December 2004 as recorded in the register

required to be kept under section 352 of the sFo were as follows:



1. ARGy A SR o 1 2 By

1. Shares in the Company and Associated Corporation

BEar ¢!
Number of Shares
Btk IEBBITRA
[EVN: i EERE EN 3 dcd RO ERES
Personal Corporate Family Trusts and Percentage to the
interests interests interests  similar interests issued share capital
%
PEREBRAR CITIC Pacific Limited
EEsyic Larry Yung Chi Kin 400,381,000 18.265
PERCTc Henry Fan Hung Ling 1,600,000 44,600,000 2.108
RiZH Vernon Francis Moore 3,200,000 0.146
/N Peter Lee Chung Hing 500,000 0.023
frag= Norman Yuen Kee Tong 33,000 0.002
e Liu Jifu 40,000 0.002
i3 pe Hansen Loh Chung Hon 1,050,000 500,000 500,000 0.071
mH5aE André Desmarais 99,800 100,242,000° 4.578
15 e 5o 3T Peter Kruyt 2,100 0.0001
(BEELEZ (alternate director to
BHES) Mr André Desmarais)
BERMEBRAR Cathay Pacific
Airways Limited
FeigEE Hansen Loh Chung Hon 450,000 0.013
Kz Note:

1. BRAFF1500,000 %15 o5 B — I A E B R A
FHHEZATRE  HEWEERE 2 L ERSER
KT -

2. £H#5H 2 100,242,000 5 (0% - 12,0008 7537
B EBEEZES 2 ZERE - 100,230,000
RI5EE—Fl EHEF L ELEFRGRETTRAARE
EREZE

2. A0y H) Z S B
KOTSRS (W B Y
A LT 2 BRS5 ROATE A ) R LSO
e — 057 L S -

B b E A fE ZFFWE+ A
= H o AN E S AN A S A
W 1 2 ey~ ARBR R SRS R AT R
BRSO AR RS I L) B e 191 5B
XVE TR & Z AT Bk A kA
BERR LA SR A L RO SRR AR 2 AR
5 L 5 3524 JE T A 2 B & T
W ZATfTHE S > BB - BERR R A oA
AT AR T BRI b A F R TR
22 G PR HESY QI T 0 ZEU 8 AR 2 | IR 28 Ir 2
FEATHE R

1. The corporate interests and the family interests of the relevant director duplicate
each other as the 500,000 shares are held through a company in which the
relevant director and his family are interested.

2. Out of 100,242,000 shares, 12,000 shares are held by a corporation controlled by
the relevant director and 100,230,000 shares are held indirectly by a corporation
of which the relevant director is the President and Co-Chief Executive Officer.

2. Share Options in the Company
The interests of the directors in the share options (being regarded as
unlisted physically settled equity derivatives) of the Company are stated

in detail in the preceding section of Share Option Plan.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2004, none of the directors of
the Company had nor were they taken to or deemed to have, under Part
XV of the sFo, any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations or any
interests which are required to be entered into the register kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFoO or any interests which are
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Companies in the Listing Rules.

81



EEg e Directors’ Report

PR ESCHTiER A > AR RAETIRE ] > AR F]
SHAL AR 2 Rl BE I 2 T AR T 2 B - DLBEA
R 2 R R AR 2 R ST A A A 2 B

BRI 4

FTERE

T BENEFTH=+—H  WEEE LN
B A1 55 336 IR 20 T - A7 2 e i3 Bk B 5 44
MRk > FERE (RN EEFR A A
Bt NEBRAM) AEAR N R AR Z HERR 0T

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiary companies a party or parties to any arrangement

to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means

of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any

other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholders
As at 31 December 2004, the interests of the substantial shareholders,
other than the directors of the Company or their respective associate(s),

in the shares of the Company as recorded in the register of interests in

shares and short positions required to be kept under section 336 of the

SFO were as follows:

ARRZBH#E

Number of Shares

EEETRAE D X
Percentage to the

%18 Name of the Company issued share capital

%
SIS CITIC Beijing 632,066,285 28.835
hEEE CITIC HK 632,066,285 28.835
Heedon Corporation Heedon Corporation 498,424,285 22.738
Honpville Corporation Honpville Corporation 310,988,221 14.187

HIETEER T2 EMB AR > HEMRAAR

Nl Z EEBR

TEEBZHMEBARERE

the following wholly owned subsidiary companies:

Name of Subsidiary Companies of CITIC HK

RREZ RN E B
Number of Shares
of the Company

CITIC HK is a substantial shareholder of the Company indirectly through

EEETRAED X
Percentage to the
issued share capital
%

Affluence Limited

Winton Corp.

Westminster Investment Inc.

Jetway Corp.

Cordia Corporation
Honpville Corporation
Hainsworth Limited

Southpoint Enterprises Inc.

Affluence Limited

Winton Corp.

Westminster Investment Inc.

Jetway Corp.

Cordia Corporation
Honpville Corporation
Hainsworth Limited

Southpoint Enterprises Inc.

43,266,000
30,718,000
101,960,000
22,500,000
32,258,064
310,988,221
80,376,000
10,000,000

1.974
1.402
4.651
1.026
1.472
14.187
3.667
0.456
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Affluence

Westminster

Limited - Winton Corp.
Investment Inc. * Jetway
Corp. * Cordia Corporation * Honpville
Corporation Hainsworth ~ Limited }
Southpoint Enterprises Inc. 7 Al B # #7474
A Z Ay o Hit > Honpville Corporation

IR A7) 2 R

FEL R A EEEZ EEERA A - BE
% ¥ /h Heedon Corporation * Hainsworth
Limited - Affluence Limited } Barnsley
Investments Limited 2 B #% ¥ it 24 # -
Heedon Corporation 4 Winton Corp.
Westminster Investment Inc. > Jetway
Corp. » Kotron Company Ltd. x Honpville
Corporation Z H## kA7 ; Kotron
Company Ltd. %5 Cordia Corporation Z H
HPE /A F) © Barnsley Investments Limited
% Southpoint Enterprises Inc. 2 B 4 ¥ i
ZF e Hk s PEARAEARLNF 2 A > B
HEEBEAL AR EDR - PEFBEAR
O R - B bt S o R S R R
Z WA R TEA S Rl 2 W45 %% - Heedon
Corporation T4/ 7] Z #E4 » Bl il 423 iy
B AR I R A 2 WY g 2 RITE A 7l 2 4t
% - Barnsley Investments Limited fE 4% 2%
Al Mg o B bty O A 2 R S R
A5 F) 2 HE 45 T % o Kotron Company Ltd.
TEAR N m) 2 M As > B B2y HCE SRR 2 WY
NATEAR T Z HEdR TR o

Bz 7=

REEFRMET A= AIREE - &
2 T A B FLAT TR < T 2 — R
A BARARE A A ST TR
i R TSR ] S 5 A0 2 ) 2 AR =

BE - EFNE+ A=+ HILZEE K&
ANFIREPERE RO SR TR
#%173,580,000 1% B4 -

Each of Affluence Limited, Winton Corp., Westminster Investment Inc.,
Jetway Corp., Cordia Corporation, Honpville Corporation, Hainsworth
Limited and Southpoint Enterprises Inc. holds the shares of the Company
beneficially. Accordingly, Honpville Corporation is a substantial

shareholder of the Company.

CITIC Beijing is the direct holding company of CITIC HK. CITIC HK is the
direct holding company of Heedon Corporation, Hainsworth Limited,
Affluence Limited and Barnsley Investments Limited. Heedon Corporation
is the direct holding company of Winton Corp., Westminster Investment
Inc., Jetway Corp., Kotron Company Ltd. and Honpville Corporation

and Kotron Company Ltd. is the direct holding company of Cordia
Corporation. Barnsley Investments Limited is the direct holding company
of Southpoint Enterprises Inc. Accordingly, the interests of CITIC Beijing
in the Company duplicate the interests of CITIC HK in the Company.

The interests of CITIC HK in the Company duplicate the interests in the
Company of all its direct and indirect subsidiary companies as described
above. The interests of Heedon Corporation in the Company duplicate the
interests in the Company of all its direct and indirect subsidiary
companies as described above. The interests of Barnsley Investments
Limited in the Company duplicate the interests in the Company of its
direct subsidiary company as described above and the interests of Kotron
Company Ltd. in the Company duplicate the interests in the Company of
its direct subsidiary company as described above.

Share Capital

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year ended
31 December 2004. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiary
companies has purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during
the year ended 31 December 2004.

During the year ended 31 December 2004, the Company has issued
3,580,000 shares under the CITIC Pacific Share Incentive Plan 2000.
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Service Contracts

As at 31 December 2004, there were no service contracts which were

not determinable by the employer within one year without payment of

compensation (other than statutory compensation) between any company

in the Group and any director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming

Annual General Meeting.

Continuing Disclosure Requirements Under Rule13.22

Of The Listing Rules

The Company has included a proforma combined balance sheet of

affiliated companies as required therein under Rule 13.22 of the Listing

Rules. Affiliated companies include associated companies and jointly

controlled entities.

Proforma combined balance sheet of affiliated companies

KEEGER
Group’s attributable interest

—ETENF+_A=t+—HILEHE

LEBGETiTE in HK$ million As at 31 December 2004
BTEE Fixed Assets 10,153
HRENEHIEE Jointly Controlled Entities 652
®E Investments 212
RLERIEEE Deferred Tax Assets 7
BREE Intangible Assets 9
RReEE Pension Assets 16
R Deferred Expenses 26
RHEEWARR Long Term Receivable 2,135
mEBEEAE Net Current Liabilities (312)
BELBRIPERE Total Assets Less Current Liabilities 12,898
REIER Long Term Borrowings (1,483)
EERIAAE Deferred Tax Liabilities (193)
fEERE R Loans from Shareholders (7,349)

3,873
HfaF - Note:

EREIR/HENE R AIRIE L 52 et B R
KRB M0 B 5 -
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Details of attributable interest of the Company and/or its subsidiary company in the
affiliated companies as disclosed in Notes to the Accounts no. 30 of Financial Statements.
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Auditors
The accounts for the year have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who shall retire and, being eligible, shall offer themselves for

re-appointment.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, the Directors confirm that the Company
has maintained the amount of public float as required under the Listing
Rules during the year ended 31 December 2004.

By Order of the Board,
Larry Yung Chi Kin Chairman
Hong Kong, 15 March 2005
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

WE _FRWE+ H =+ —H L4 for the year ended 31 December 2004

=7
k=S As restated
LB BB E in HK$ million Note 2004 2003
=0 Turnover 2 22,912 26,180
REERER Profit from Consolidated Activities 3&4 2,293 1,127
Friba AR R Share of Profits Less Losses of 3
HEEHER Jointly Controlled Entities 570 341
BEAT Associated Companies 2,036 769
B R Net Finance Charges 5 (302) (320)
BRB AR R Profit before Taxation 4,597 1,917
Big Taxation 6 (686) (370)
FEREF Profit for the Year 3,911 1,547
LERRES Minority Interests (330) (246)
R SR PEAL 5 R Profit Attributable to Shareholders 7 3,581 1,301
®RE Dividends 8 2,411) (2,189)
BREF (B¥T) Earnings per Share (HK$) 9
f=%:N Basic 1.63 0.59
e Diluted 1.63 0.59
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

TERENFE AT H =1 —H L4 as at 31 December 2004

=7
FisE As restated
LB EB T E in HK$ million Note 2004 2003
BEEEE Fixed Assets 12 18,762 15,526
HEEHNER Jointly Controlled Entities 14 7,852 4,085
=N Associated Companies 15 21,662 22,805
RE Investments 16 1,121 1,027
BE Goodwill 17 272 223
EERBEE Deferred Tax Assets 24 94 85
REBEE Current Assets
FEME Properties held for sale 12 327 336
FE Inventories 18 2,778 1,880
FENBRTE - FEERT - e Debtors, accounts receivable,
RIERFRIA deposits and prepayments 19 4,188 4,248
BE RRITER Cash and bank deposits 2,417 5,511
9,710 11,975
REBE Current Liabilities
RITER  HERREX Bank loans, other loans and overdrafts
BEM secured 104 49
Egiigii unsecured 707 826
FESBRIE - FEFTERSR - Re Creditors, accounts payable,
KR RIE deposits and accruals 20 4,742 3,976
TRIEEE Provision for taxation 249 98
5,802 4,949
REBEEFE Net Current Assets 3,908 7,026
BEEABERRBEE Total Assets Less Current Liabilities 53,671 50,777
REIER Long Term Borrowings 23 (13,769) (9,653)
ELEHEAE Deferred Tax Liabilities 24 (333) (325)
3 39,569 40,799
B2 XK Financed by
&N Share Capital 21 877 875
& Reserves 22 35,261 36,365
BERE Proposed Dividend 1,754 1,632
RBRRES Shareholders’ Funds 37,892 38,772
LR RER Minority Interests 1,677 2,027
39,569 40,799
R Larry Yung Chi Kin
HH Director
Bt )i Henry Fan Hung Ling
HH Director
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Balance Sheet

TEERNES A=+ —HIE4H as at 31 December 2004

B 5
OB EE T E in HK$ million Note 2004 2003
EEEE Fixed Assets 12 33 40
MEAT Subsidiary Companies 13 39,067 34,499
HEZHER Jointly Controlled Entities 14 1,314 137
=N Associated Companies 15 4,743 3,836
RBEE Current Assets
FEMRERIE - FEURT - Be Debtors, accounts receivable,
RIEFHKIE deposits and prepayments 19 98 79
Be RIBITER Cash and bank deposits 197 3,910
295 3,989
ok h=Ri Current Liabilities
RITER ARt EFREL Bank loans, other loans and overdrafts
£ unsecured 33 26
FERERIE - BNERH - BE Creditors, accounts payable,
KR F0E deposits and accruals 20 73 58
106 84
REBEETFE Net Current Assets 189 3,905
EEAERTBDERE Total Assets Less Current Liabilities 45,346 42,417
REER Long Term Borrowings 23 (9,075) (5,325)
36,271 37,092
B2 KR Financed by
[ &N Share Capital 21 877 875
f#E Reserves 22 33,640 34,685
BRKRE Proposed Dividend 1,754 1,532
BRES Shareholders’ Funds 36,271 37,092
E Larry Yung Chi Kin
#HH Director
ER) Henry Fan Hung Ling
#HH Director
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

WE _FERE L+ H =+ —H IL4EJE for the year ended 31 December 2004

]
As restated
LK BE TR E in HK$ million 2004 2003
REEBZRERE Cash Flows from Consolidated Activities
GBI 7 35 HF B 2 4 B 50 7 Profit from Consolidated Activities after Net Finance Charges 1,991 807
B FE Net interest expense 268 290
REJRE W Income from investments (404) (314)
e R Depreciation and amortisation 695 609
B Amortisation of goodwill - 12
BRBEARAERETA Negative goodwill credited to consolidated profit
from consolidated activities (126) -
EEZREESE Impairment loss of goodwill - 26
HERER2ME Disposal of property held for development 247 -
TEEMETEECEE Loss on disposal of other fixed assets 1 5
& i & E MR Written off of fixed asset 22 38
REYMESE (BR)/ BE Investment properties revaluation (surplus) / deficit (181) 587
HEMBRRZEF Profit on disposal of subsidiary companies (112) 2)
HELFERHIEEEE Loss on disposal of jointly controlled entities 4 -
HERBE R R Profit on disposal of associated companies - )
HERE 2w F Profit on disposal of investments - (327)
HRAEHEERIELTREY Provision for jointly controlled entities /

REEBRE unlisted investments 2 2
Rl BERS BB AL R F Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 2,407 1,731
FEE M Increase in inventories (552) (25)
FEUBRIE - RUCRF - R& K Increase in debtors, accounts receivable,

TR FRIEE A deposits and prepayments (41) (1,107)
FRRERD Decrease in listed investments - 24
ERTBRIE - ENERF - R Rk (Decrease) / Increase in creditors, accounts payable,

FERFRIE CRid) / #En deposits and accruals (592) 937
IS EEZE Effect of foreign exchange rates (18) (25)
FERBEEZHZ Cash Generated from Consolidated Activities 1,204 1,535
2 UL Interest received 82 46
ERIAA Interest paid (392) (443)
ERFES Income taxes paid (178) (148)
REERZRETE Net Cash from Consolidated Activities 716 990
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44 %M 2% Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

=l
As restated

LB aE it E in HK$ million 2004 2003
REEBZRERE Cash Flows from Investing Activities
EAMBAR (HRFAERE Purchase of subsidiary companies (net of cash

RERBS) (Hiza) and cash equivalents acquired) (Note a) (191) -
BB A R 2 380N Purchase of additional interests in subsidiary companies (383) -
BAREEE Purchase of fixed assets (2,538) (954)
REREHIEE 2 RE Investment in jointly controlled entities (3,218) (269)
REEE R B2 /E Investment in associated companies (937) (17)
REZIEM Increase in investments (221) -
HE B ETE & EFTS Proceeds on disposal of other fixed assets 28 33
LEREME Proceeds on disposal of investments 6,356
HEBERRME Proceeds on disposal of associated companies -
HEMRBAR (NBREEZHRE Disposal of subsidiary companies (net of cash

kERBE) (MiEb) and cash equivalents) (Note b) 105 14
BT HRAEHEE 2 EFIEM Increase in loans to jointly controlled entities (36) (22)
EFHEARZEZRD/ (Em) Decrease / (increase) in loans to associated companies 734 (774)
HEEE R E 2 RS IA Dividend income from associated companies 792 508
g 3N ON Dividend income from jointly controlled entities 85 45
R EREM GG Income from investments 393 263
(AR)/ REREEBZREFE Net Cash (used in) / from Investing Activities (5,383) 5,183
RERMEZRER Cash Flows from Financing Activities
RIRRE RS 8151 TAR D Issue of shares pursuant to the Plan 68 -
e sE New borrowings 4,941 4,280
BRER Repayment of loans (1,020) (3,027)
DEIRR R 2R Decrease in minority interests (223) (102)
EIRAR S Dividends paid (2,189) (4,377)
RE/(AR) MEZRSFE Net Cash from / (used in) Financing Activities 1,577 (3,226)
ReRERBEZ (BD)/ EMEE Net (Decrease) / Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (8,090) 2,947
E—A—BzEERERES Cash and Cash Equivalents at 1 January 5,469 2,513
IEEZRSB o HE Effect of Foreign Exchange Rate Changes 2 9
H+ZA=+—-BzEBEE2RERERS Cash and Cash Equivalents at 31 December 2,381 5,469
REREARELFZDN Analysis of the Balances of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Re RIRITFER Cash and bank deposits 2,417 5,511
RITEXZ (Mi5Ec) Bank overdrafts (Note c) (36) (42)

2,381 5,469
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Notes to Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
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a Purchase of Subsidiary Companies

During the year, the Group mainly acquired 95% interest in Hubei Xin Yegang Co. Ltd.
(Xin Yegang’) and 33.3% interest in Dalian cp Digital Technology Co. Ltd. (‘Dalian’).
The amounts recognised upon incorporation of Xin Yegang in October 2004 of its
assets and liabilities are HK$1,801 million and HK$1,092 million respectively. The
aggregate amounts recognised, which was same as the carrying amount of Dalian

and other acquired companies at the acquisition date of their assets and liabilities

are HK$276 million and HK$192 million respectively. The acquired business
contributed aggregate revenues of HK$558 million and aggregate net loss of

HKS$1 million since acquisition.

The aggregate revenue and aggregate net loss of Dalian and other acquired companies
as though the acquisition for the business combinations effected during the period
had been the beginning of that period are HK$22 million and HK$10 million

respectively.

Details of net assets acquired and goodwill are as follows:

LB E BT E in HK$ million 2004
BAEE Purchase consideration

X fTHE Cash paid 541

ks 2 BB AR Direct costs relating to the acquisition 4
FERBRIR Accounts payable 64
N =N o - 2 Interest in an associated company 73
BEAVEERRE Total purchase consideration 682

BABEFEZATEE Fair value of net assets acquired (668)
EES Goodwill 14

AL JEP EREPSE TR
BH -

The goodwill is attributable to the potential of communications business.
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a BAWB QA=

a Purchase of Subsidiary Companies continued

WEEEE T E in HK$ million 2004
BAEERE Net Assets Acquired
EE&E Fixed assets 971
&8 Inventories 417
JE N BR R R FE IR IR Accounts receivable and prepayments 335
& RIRITFER Cash and bank deposits 354
BITER Bank loans (130)
JEATBRIE R FE (T RUIB Creditors and accruals (1,037)
BER Provision for taxation (117)
DB R Minority interests (125)
668
W REEE QR R Less: Interest in an associated company (73)
e Goodwill 14
609
3V Satisfied by
e Cash 545
EARR Accounts payable 64
609
EHBEANBRARZES KSR Analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents
BentFEsom in respect of the purchase of subsidiary companies
LB EE T E in HK$ million 2004
RE(EE Cash consideration 545
BAZRS RBITHFR Cash and bank deposits acquired (354)
191

WEZFLT=F A=A
A4 52 79 I RS 0 o
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There were no acquisitions in the year ended 31 December 2003.
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b Disposal of Subsidiary Companies

BN EE T E in HK$ million 2004 2003

HEEERE Net Assets Disposal

ETEE Fixed assets 50 72

R E e Jointly controlled entities 26 -

& Inventories 60

FENBR R R B BB Accounts receivable and prepayments 162 12

Be RIBITER Cash and bank deposits 36

JRE {1 BR AR K A R0 Accounts payable and accruals (87) (20)

RITER Bank loans (20) (21)

BRLERIERE Deferred tax assets 1 -

LEIRR R Minority interests (62) (37)

[EES Goodwill 2 -
168 15

& i ) Profit on disposal 112

Eil=Ee Release of reserve (4) -
276 17

WA F = Satisfied by

e Cash 141 17

EoRE Listed Investment 113 -

PE U BR R Accounts Receivable 22 -
276 17

BERHEMNBARZRERER

Analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents

WERAFE 2D in respect of the disposal of subsidiary companies
LB BRI E in HK$ million 2004 2003
RelEE Cash consideration 141 17
HE 2 RE RIFITHER Cash and bank deposits disposed of (36) (3)
105 14

c AEARITER > Hite

¢ Reconciliation of the Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents

BRREZZRER in Respect of Bank Loans, Other Loans and Overdrafts
ERREHEHFIHR
LK BE TR E in HK$ million 2004 2003
RITER - HERREX Bank loans, other loans and overdrafts 811 875
RITERREMER Bank loans and other loans (775) (833)
RITEX Bank overdrafts 36 42
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

WE _FRWE+ H =+ —H IE4EEE for the year ended 31 December 2004

B 5
LB EE T E in HK$ million Note 2004 2003
—R—8 - EAf5 At 1 January, as Previously Reported 38,826 42,538
REEMBHOE B BHREER Early Adoption of New Hong Kong
REBEER Financial Reporting Standards and
Hong Kong Accounting Standards 1c (2,160) -
AFYFRE Prior Year Adjustments
—FHMB AT D |z HERAR Understatement of cost of sales of
a subsidiary company (54) (50)
FriE®E & ARl Share of associated company
i e RR 2 B Change in profit recognition (64) -
75l As Restated 36,548 42,488
Frib B A B 1S Share of Reserves of Associated Companies (130) (584)
b RSB HE Share of Reserves of Jointly Controlled Entity 11 -
HERRRE Reserves Written Back on Disposal 1 11
MEEGEEZHH Deficit on Revaluation of Properties - 87)
IEBREER Exchange Translation Differences 2 6)
HMEZRERSR Impairment Loss on Goodwill - 26
RRGEBRBRRIZFEHE Net Losses Not Recognised in the
Consolidated Profit and Loss Account (116) (640)
MR R PEAL 5 R Profit Attributable to Shareholders 3,581 1,301
RIBBRETEIRTRG Issue of Shares Pursuant to the Plan 68 -
RE Dividends 8 (2,189) (4,377)
+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 37,892 38,772
& Representing
+ZA=+—-HEB&A At 31 December after Proposed
EEAHRE Final Dividend 36,138 37,240
EEAHRE Proposed Final Dividend 8 1,754 1,532
37,892 38,772
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Notes to the Accounts
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1 Significant Accounting Policies

a Basis of Preparation

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and comply with accounting
standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the ‘HK1CcPA’) (Formerly Hong Kong Society of
Accountants). The recognition of exchange differences on certain long-
term liabilities in CITIC Pacific’s associated company Cathay Pacific
Airways Limited (‘Cathay Pacific’) does not comply with Hong Kong
Statement of Standard Accounting Practice (‘ssap’) No. 11 but does
comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (‘1FRrs’) and

Cathay Pacific’s policy is explained in accounting policy Note 1(q) below.

The accounts are prepared under the historical cost convention as
modified by the revaluation of investment properties and listed
investments not held for long term as explained in the accounting

policies set out below.

The HKICPA has issued new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (‘HKFRS’) and Hong Kong Accounting Standards (‘HKAS’) (‘new
HKFRSs’) which are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2005.

As permitted under the new HKERSs, the Group has chosen to adopt these
three of the new and revised standards as of 1 January 2004, their impact
on the financial statement is set out in the respective accounting policy

below:

HKFRS No. 3 Business Combinations;
HKAS No. 36 Impairment of Assets;
HKAS No. 38 Intangible Assets.

The Group has not early adopted the new HKFRSs in the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2004, except as disclosed in
the above, and is in the process of assessing the impact of these HKFRSs on

future accounting periods.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies continued
a Basis of Preparation continued

Prior Year Adjustments

Prior year adjustments have been made for the understatement of cost

of sales of a subsidiary company in the Group’s Communications segment
in prior years. As a result of these understatements, profit before taxation
and profit after taxation for year ended 31 December 2003 was overstated
by HK$5 million and HK$4 million respectively. The Group’s retained
earnings as at 31 December 2003 was decreased by HK$54 million.

The comparative figures, including the segmental information, have,
therefore, been restated to record these cost of sales and the corresponding

payable to suppliers, as well as the provision for taxation.

Also, an associated company in the Aviation segment has changed its
revenue recognition policy. Certain revenues which were recognised
immediately in the past are now amortised to the profit and loss accounts.
As a result, the retained profits as at 1 January 2004 and the profit for the
year ended 31 December 2004 of the Group is reduced by HK$64 million
and HK$15 million respectively.

b Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated accounts incorporate the accounts of the Company and
all its subsidiary companies made up to the balance sheet date. The results
of subsidiary companies acquired or disposed of during the year are
included as from the effective dates of acquisition or up to the effective

dates of disposal respectively.

¢ Goodwill

Positive goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiary companies, jointly
controlled entities and associated companies represents the excess of the
cost of the acquisition over the Group’s share of the fair value of the

identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired.

e for acquisitions before 1 January 2001, positive goodwill is recognised
as a deduction from equity in the year of acquisition or amortised over

a period no longer than its useful life to the Group.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies continued

¢ Goodwill continued
e for acquisitions on or after 1 January 2001, positive goodwill is
amortised on a straight line basis over its estimated useful life not

exceeding 20 years.

e Since 1 January 2004, amortisation of positive goodwill has been
discontinued and the positive goodwill previously recognised as a
deduction from equity will not be recognised in profit and loss when all
or part of the business to which the positive goodwill relates is disposed
or when a cash-generating unit to which the positive goodwill relates
becomes impaired. Positive goodwill will be stated in the consolidated
balance sheet as a separate asset or included within jointly controlled
entities and associated companies at cost less accumulated impairment

losses and subject to impairment testing at least annually.

Negative goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiary companies, jointly
controlled entities and associated companies represents the excess of the
Group’s share of the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and

contingent liabilities acquired over the cost of the acquisition.

o for acquisitions before 1 January 2001, negative goodwill is credited to

the capital reserve.

e for acquisitions on or after 1 January 2001, to the extent that negative
goodwill relates to an expectation of future losses and expenses that are
identified in the plan of acquisition and can be measured reliably, it is
recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account when the future
losses and expenses are recognised. Any remaining negative goodwill,
but not exceeding the fair values of the non-monetary assets acquired, is
recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account over the weighted
average useful life of those non-monetary assets that are depreciable
or amortisable except that negative goodwill representing discount
on acquisition of investment properties is carried in the consolidated
balance sheet for setting off valuation deficit in future. Negative goodwill
in excess of the fair value of the non-monetary assets acquired is

recognised immediately in the consolidated profit and loss account.

e for acquisitions after 1 January 2004, negative goodwill is recognised in

profit or loss immediately on acquisition.

97



fi% B [} 5= Notes to the Accounts

1 FEEHHKRe

c BB

A% B2 T AL i v S s o M )8 3905 17 R A A
FREGIEIE 20 R 2R AE—H—H it
TR AT MR R

ERCRRAZEE

O BTPIE— A —HE > IEfE 2 e
CAILE o WL > AEEEEE - FRFE S
A=t —H I A s T w
BT

THCHRIAZAHE

REERNE—~A—H > AEENREE - 1
FHEAREARENR S - CENNNRE

HEAFEIA o HIL > AEER —F TN E—H
— F B S O B i L s - PR T A
HTC T A T R A R

W =RAT AR =THa &
] 2 ) A S v — T AT -

TEZFFWE—H—H - BHRREE A7 BTG
ZEEFER - HpEH T EaET

IT?%‘“ Y U A 389 1Ay Y BT e Y e
IR eV R L) N id Sl /]

IR é%$%@ﬁ1£tf‘ﬁ"?2"¥1ﬂﬁﬁtﬂ
HUUERA o Ft > R FRNAE—H —-HZ
T B A Gk B A T R 2 B R
CERRZEA T = AR R
ity gt/ S T

d P2

WA i 2 ] T AR o ) A 42 0 i A
HPEHIREZ 22 m) - BEAPERIEACRA A R B
AN F 2 B RO B UK o

TEALNFEE BRI AR Z80E > T)
UBAS B AT AT (B FRA R - B 23 7] 2 3¢
BAILIE W R BB S R EAEAR AT ZA

98

1 Significant Accounting Policies continued

¢ Goodwill continued
The Group has adopted the limited retrospective application provided in
the HKFRS No. 3 and selected to apply the requirements of the standard

from 1 January 2004 as follows:

Previously Recognised Goodwill

Since 1 January 2004, the amortisation of positive goodwill has been
discontinued. As a result, the Group’s profit for the year ended

31 December 2004 is increased by HK$202 million.

Previously Recognised Negative Goodwill

The carrying amount of negative goodwill as at 1 January 2004, including
that credited to the capital reserve, has been credited to the opening
balance of retained earnings. As a result, the Group’s opening retained
earnings as at 1 January 2004 increased by HK$1,429 million with the
corresponding decrease in the capital reserve of HK$1,382 million and
HK$35 million of negative goodwill and increase in jointly controlled
entities of HK$12 million.

Included in the share of net assets of associated companies at 1 January
2004 is HK$2,207 million which does not meet the new identifiability
criterion in HKAS No. 38. This amount was the excess of the Group’s share
of the fair value ascribed to the net assets of an associated company over
the cost of acquisition at the time of acquisition. As a result, the opening
capital reserve and the net asset of associated companies as at 1 January
2004 had been reduced by HK$2,207 million from the closing balance at
31 December 2003.

d Subsidiary Companies
A subsidiary company is a company which is controlled by the Company
through direct or indirect interest. Control represents the power to govern

the financial and operating policies of that company.

Investments in subsidiary companies are carried in the Company’s balance
sheet at cost less any impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and

receivable.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies continued

e Jointly Controlled Entities

A jointly controlled entity is a joint venture in which the Group and other
parties undertake an economic activity which is subject to joint control
and none of the participating parties has unilateral control over the

economic activity.

The consolidated profit and loss account includes the Group’s share

of the results of the jointly controlled entities for the year adjusted by
impairment losses of goodwill, if any. The consolidated balance sheet
includes the Group’s share of the net assets of the jointly controlled entities

and goodwill on acquisition.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in jointly controlled
entities are stated at cost less impairment losses. The results of jointly
controlled entities are accounted for by the Company on the basis of

dividends received and receivable.

t Associated Companies

Associated companies are companies, other than subsidiary companies
or jointly controlled entities, in which the Group holds not more than

50 per cent of their equity share capital for the long term and can exercise

significant influence in their management.

The consolidated profit and loss account includes the Group’s share of the
results of associated companies for the year adjusted by impairment losses
of goodwill, if any. The consolidated balance sheet includes the Group’s

share of net assets of the associated companies, after attributing fair values

to the net assets at the date of acquisition.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in associated companies
are stated at cost less impairment losses. The results of associated
companies are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends

received and receivable.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies continued

g Depreciation
All fixed assets except investment properties, properties held for
development and construction in progress are carried at cost less

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Changes in the value of investment properties reflecting market
conditions, depreciation and other factors are incorporated in the

annual accounts on the basis set out in Note 1(h).

Freehold land is not amortised. Leasehold land is depreciated over the

remaining portion of the relevant lease.

Depreciation of the vehicular tunnel was provided with reference to

projected usage of the tunnel as compared to the actual tunnel usage.

Other fixed assets are depreciated at rates sufficient to write off their cost
or valuation, less impairment losses, if any, over their estimated useful lives

on a straight line basis at the following annual rates:
e Buildings: 2%-4% or the remaining lease period of the land
e Plant and Machinery: 9%-20%

¢ Other fixed assets, comprising telecommunications equipment, traffic
equipment, cargo lighters, computer installations, motor vehicles,

furniture, fixtures and equipment: 10%-25%

h Investment Properties
Investment properties are interests in land and buildings in respect of
which construction work and development have been completed and

which are held for their investment potential.

Investment properties held on leases with unexpired periods greater
than twenty years are valued annually by independent professionally
qualified valuers. The valuations are on an open market value basis
related to individual properties and separate values are not attributed
separately to land and buildings. The valuations are incorporated in the
annual accounts. Increases in valuation are credited to the investment
property revaluation reserve; decreases are first set off against increases
on earlier valuations on a portfolio basis and thereafter are charged to

operating profit.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies continued

h Investment Properties continued
Investment properties held on leases with unexpired periods of twenty

years or less are depreciated over the remaining portion of the leases.

Upon the disposal of an investment property, the relevant portion of
the revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is
released from the investment property revaluation reserve to the profit

and loss account.

i Properties Held for Development

Properties held for development consist of investments in land for future
development and buildings under construction and properties under
development pending any positive intention either to retain them for
investment purposes or to sell them for proceeds. The investments are

stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

j Capitalisation of Development Costs
Property development expenditure, inclusive of interest and professional

fees, is capitalised as cost of development.

Borrowing costs incurred on assets under development that take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale are

capitalised into the carrying value of the assets under development.

The capitalisation rate applied to funds borrowed for the development
of the assets is based on the attributable cost of funds to the Group.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the profit and loss account in

the period in which they are incurred.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies continued

k Revenue Recognition

i) Motor Vehicles

Revenue arising from the sale of motor vehicles is recognised when

the registration document is issued or on delivery of motor vehicles,
whichever is earlier, which are taken to be the point in time when the
customer has accepted the goods and the related risks and rewards of
ownership. Revenue excludes any government taxes and is after deduction

of any trade discounts.

i) Sales of Properties under Development and Properties Held for Sale
Income from sales of properties under development is recognised when
the properties developed for sale are sold in advance of completion and
the outcome of projects can be ascertained with reasonable certainty

by reference to the construction progress. Profit is recognised over the
course of the development and is computed in each year as a proportion
of the total estimated profit of the development. The proportion used is
calculated by reference to the proportion of construction costs incurred
to date to the estimated total construction costs to completion of the
development and the extent of the sales proceeds received, after taking

into account due allowance for contingencies.

Income from properties held for sale is recognised at the date when sale

agreement is signed.

i) Income from Co-operative Joint Venture
Other income or dividend from co-operative joint venture is recognised

when the right to receive is established.

Where the Group has been guaranteed a minimum rate of return on
its investment in co-operative joint ventures, income is accrued at the
minimum rate of return, and any return in excess of the minimum is

recognised in the year in which it is received, or becomes receivable.

Income from disposal of co-operative joint venture is recognised at the

date when sale agreement is signed.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies continued

k Revenue Recognition continued

iv) Other Goods

Revenue arising from the sale of other goods is recognised on the delivery
of goods to customers. Revenue is determined after deduction of any trade

discounts.

v) Rendering of Services
Commission income and revenue arising from the rendering of repairing
services are recognised when the goods concerned are sold to customers

and when the relevant work is completed respectively.

vi) Revenue from the provision of telecommunications services is

recognised upon delivery of the services.

vii) Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend
is established.

Dividends proposed or declared after their balance sheet date by
companies in which the Group has an investment are not recognised
as revenue at the balance sheet date but on the date when the right to

receive is established.

1 Properties Held for Sale
Properties held for sale are classified under current assets and are stated

at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

m Investments

Co-operative joint ventures in the People’s Republic of China are stated
at cost (net of capital repayment) less impairment losses or where
appropriate, the cost is amortised over a period no longer than its

estimated useful life to the Group.

Interest in other listed and unlisted investments held for the long term are
stated at cost less impairment losses. The carrying amounts of individual
listed investments are reviewed at each balance sheet date to assess
whether the fair values have declined below the carrying amounts. When
a decline other than temporary has occurred, the carrying amount of
such securities is reduced to its fair value. The amount of the reduction

is recognised as an expense in the profit and loss account.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies continued

m Investments continued

Interest in other listed investments not held for the long term are carried
at fair value. At each balance sheet date, the net unrealised gains or losses
arising from the changes in fair value of such investments are recognised
in the profit and loss account. Profits or losses on disposal of such
investments, representing the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amounts, are recognised in the profit and loss account

as they arise.

n Operating Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets
remain with the leasing company are accounted for as operating leases.
Rentals payable and receivable under operating leases are accounted for

on a straight line basis over the respective periods of the leases.

o Impairment of Assets

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of assets including goodwill

for impairment annually and whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be
recognised in the profit and loss account is measured by the amount by

which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the recoverable amount.

p Inventories

Inventories comprising mainly motor vehicles, spare parts, electrical
appliances, food, trading items and steels are valued at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost represents the actual cost of purchase and

is calculated on the first-in first-out, specific identification or weighted
average basis as appropriate. Net realisable value is determined by reference
to the sale proceeds of items sold in the ordinary course of business after
the balance sheet date, and in other cases, to management’s estimates

based on prevailing market conditions and net replacement costs.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies continued

q Foreign Currencies

The balance sheets of subsidiary companies and associated companies
expressed in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange
ruling at the balance sheet date whilst the profit and loss accounts are
translated at an average rate. Exchange differences arising are dealt with

as a movement in reserves.

Transactions arising in foreign currencies during the year are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at market rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange
differences arising in these cases are dealt with in the profit and loss

account with the following exception:

Cathay Pacific prepares its accounts on the basis that borrowings and
leasing obligations relating to aircraft and related equipment are so
arranged that repayments are covered by the anticipated future operating
cash flows in the related currencies in order to reduce exposure to
exchange rate fluctuations. Any unrealised exchange differences on these
borrowings, leasing obligations and currency derivatives, and on related
security deposits in Cathay Pacific’s balance sheet, are recognised directly
in equity via the Statement of Changes in Equity. These exchange
differences are included in the profit and loss account as an adjustment
to revenue in the same period or periods during which the hedged
transaction affects the net profit and loss. As mentioned in Note 1(a) this
complies with IFRS but does not comply with ssap No. 11 which would
have required the exchange differences to pass through the profit and loss
account. The directors of Cathay Pacific consider the adopted treatment

gives the accounts a true and fair view and the auditors of Cathay Pacific agree.

r Deferred Taxation

A balance sheet liability method is adopted whereby deferred tax is
recognised in respect of temporary differences between the tax bases

of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts. Provision for
withholding tax that will arise on the remittance of retained earnings

is only made where there is a current intention to remit such earnings.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that the future utilisation

is probable.
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2 Turnover

The principal activity of the Company is holding its subsidiary companies
and the principal activities of its principal subsidiary companies are set

out in Note 30 to the accounts.

Turnover of the Group comprises the total invoiced value of goods
supplied net of government taxes where applicable, and services rendered
to customers, fees from provision of telecommunication services, gross
proceeds from sale of investments and properties, amounts received

and receivable in respect of dividends, income from co-operative joint
ventures, toll income, gross property rental and godown and cold storage

income, analysed as follows:

£ 8 Group
LB B &t E in HK$ million 2004 2003
EmHE Sales of goods 18,599 15,968
HERBIEEERAIZIKE Sale of investment in co-operative joint ventures - 6,160
RUTER RS Services rendered to customers 1,924 2,236
R BAREIEE B R BN Dividend income and income from
co-operative joint ventures 400 313
Bk 38 U 2 Toll income 503 491
HAt Others 1,486 1,012
22,912 26,180
3 HEER 3 Segment Information

O IUEORL T A S 1B 2 S I PR B ) 7
EIELEB T BUE B R B 070 HULg
W& A B 2 TR A R T o
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Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s business and
geographical segments. Business segment information is chosen as the
primary reporting format because this is more relevant to the Group’s

internal financial reporting.



3 HEERe 3 Segment Information continued

a B3R M BEEB A a Turnover and Segment Profit
LAF RSB 2 AR BB R AR 5295 An analysis of the Group’s turnover and profit from consolidated activities
iAo LR PG ST 2 FU R S8 A RIBR B and share of profits less losses before taxation of jointly controlled entities

Hil v A 18 22 A and associated companies by business are as follows:
Fia A Bt
EHIERZ il YNCpd
LB E STt E wER FEEBRN a AR 8 wAREE ESE Rk DIEEBAE  DEEBE
Share of profits Share of
less losses profits less
Profit from of jointly losses of
consolidated controlled associated Segment

Turnover activities entities companies Group total allocations Segment profit
in HK$ million 2004 2003 | 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
®E
Power Generation 400 308 342 227 208 3) 46 - 596 224 - - 596 224
Mz
Aviation - - - - 37 - 1,553 368 1,590 368 - - 1,590 368
ERERIE
Civil Infrastructure 536 6,676 322 628 108 76 62 67 492 771 - - 492 771
E8%
Communications 1,449 1,590 9 85 94 106 91 91 194 282 - - 194 282
Special Steel Manufacturing 7,177 4,611 872 374 - - - - 872 374 - - 872 374
W (M)
Property (Note) 768 401 421 315 - - 278 233 699 548 72 75 771 623

SHE R ()
Marketing & Distribution

(Note) 12,078 12,136 | 398 345 30 22 6 10 434 377  (72) (75) 362 302
it
Others 504 458 | 124 87 93 140 - - 217 227 - - 217 227

REMESHERER/ (RE)
Investment Properties
Revaluation Surplus / (Deficit) = - 181 (587) - - - - 181 (587)
W —RRITRER
Less: General and
Administration Expenses - - | (376) (347) - - - - (376) (347) - - (376) (347)

181  (687)

22,912 26,180 |2,293 1,127 570 341 2,036 769 4,899 2,237 - - 4,899 2,237
B R
Net finance charges (302) (320)
BIE
Taxation (686) (370)
PR
Profit for the year 3,911 1,547
Hiat - Note:
HREH DL R ZIHIER  BYRESEEBEE The presentation of segment turnover is same as turnover with an exception of
BELN_F AL EE S IO IES RSN segment allocations attributable to property segment as disclosed above.
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3 Segment Information continued

An analysis of the Group’s turnover by geographical area is as follows:

£@ Group
LB E BT E in HK$ million 2004 2003
A Hong Kong 8,230 7,482
# Mainland China 13,650 17,559
=N Japan 484 420
Hith Others 548 719
22,912 26,180
b EERAHTE b Assets and Liabilities
PUR B3 E B ) 0y 2 AR b % e An analysis of the Group’s segment assets and liabilities by business
i - segment is as follows:
LB EETitE DEEE HEEGEEIRE B NRIIRE SEaE k]
Investments Investments
Segment in jointly in associated Segment

assets controlled entities companies liabilities Total
in HK$ million 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
%E
Power Generation 659 883 2,745 625 989 - - - 4,393 1,508
iz
Aviation - - 543 - 11,204 12,880 - - 11,747 12,880
H R
Civil Infrastructure 1,304 1,401 1,248 1,200 89 38 (36) (37) 2,605 2,602
8%
Communications 1,382 1,946 1,260 1,205 292 373 (496) (1,316) 2,438 2,208
Special Steel Manufacturing 7,518 3,717 578 - - - (2,302) (890) 5,794 2,827
bES
Property 11,668 10,606 - - 8,965 9,423 (417) (230) 20,216 19,799
HERDH
Marketing & Distribution 4,497 4,108 297 202 123 91 (1,360) (1,331) 3,657 3,070
Hith
Others 279 423 1,181 853 - - - (52) 1,460 1,224
SREE /(&af)
Segment assets / (liabilities) 27,307 23,084 7,852 4,085 21,662 22,805 (4,611) (3,856) 52,210 46,118
hELE
Corporate 2,558 5,667 - - - - (14,711) (10,648) (12,153) (4,981)
BIEE &
Provision for taxation (249) (98)
BERIEE EFE
Net deferred tax liabilities (239) (240)

39,569 40,799
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3 Segment Information continued

An analysis of the Group’s segment assets by geographical area is as

T follows:
%@ Group
B EETitE in HK$ million 2004 2003
BB Hong Kong 11,540 11,573
A Mainland China 14,781 10,737
=N Japan 503 410
HAth Others 483 364
27,307 23,084
4 EZEEEBHHR 4 Profit from Consolidated Activities
%@ Group
LB BEE T E in HK$ million 2004 2003
REEBBFIEEA The profit from consolidated activities is arrived at after crediting
HERE ZHEF Profit on disposal of investments - 327
RE ETRE ZBREMA Dividend income from listed investments - 5
KB EHIRE ZREWA Dividend income from unlisted investments 400 300
BENEEHRH Investment properties revaluation surplus 181 -
HeWA Rental income from
BEME investment properties
Pl Gross income 428 403
A BRI Less: Direct outgoings (75) (81)
353 322
Hith & %5 other operating leases 174 154
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4 FEEBENE

4 Profit from Consolidated Activities continued

%@ Group
=T Yot in HK$ million 2004 2003
W E IR and after charging
SHEMR (M) Cost of sales (Note) 18,064 21,873
PEFENABE—BRAT/\EATZEET including cost of inventories of HK$15,863 million
(ZZEZ=F  BE—EF=TNLEBNTZ=EET) (2003: HK$13,982 million)
DA (M) Distribution costs (Note) 763 740
H @A (fsE) Other operating costs (Note) 1,918 2,440
BB & Auditors’ remuneration 14 12
EBRKEFEIHK Contributions to staff retirement schemes 52 53
PreE R Depreciation and amortisation 695 609
EkcE ! Amortisation of goodwill - 12
B ZRERE Impairment loss of goodwill - 26
BEMESHRE Investment properties revaluation deficit - 587
R FHE(BBER)ARAR ([HEEE]D Management fee payable to
ZERE CITIC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited (‘CITIC HK’) 2 2
EEMRHHS Operating lease rentals
THRETF land and buildings 120 106
RERBELNBAREEMEENAMEDHA Negative goodwill credited to profit from
FEEBRNA consolidated activities arising from additional
interests in certain subsidiary companies (126) -

Kt

BIEEHERD - DHERARAMEERAAZELR
KRBT NE—TFEtEETL (ZFE=F : B +=
E—T=BET)-

PR 2755 B H SRS AN T 2 = SR A0 P
JREISCHR - e (TR 4 5 e A8

Note:

Included in cost of sales, distribution costs and other operating costs are staff costs

of HK$1,417 million (2003: HK$1,313 million).

The Group's total future minimum lease payments receivable under non-

cancellable operating leases are as follows:

LB BTt E in HK$ million 2004 2003
—FR Within 1 year 373 338
—FERERAFRA After 1 year but within 5 years 277 332
HFE After 5 years 10 12

660 682
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5 Net Finance Charges

%@ Group
LB EE T E in HK$ million 2004 2003
FIEZH Interest expense
ERAFNEHERBIBITERRES Bank loans and overdrafts wholly repayable
within five years 47 88
TERAFENZIEEZBITER Bank loans not wholly repayable within five years 1 -
ARRAFRZSEEZHMER Other loans wholly repayable within five years 78 82
TERAFARRIER 2 HMER Other loans not wholly repayable within five years 268 268
394 438
W BERERZRE Less: Amount capitalised (18) (38)
376 400
FilEHA Interest income (108) (110)
268 290
H 8 55 Other finance charges 34 30
302 320
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6 Taxation

Hong Kong profits tax has been calculated at the rate of 17.5% (2003:
17.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Overseas taxation
has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the
rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
Tax provisions are reviewed regularly to take into account changes in

legislation, practice and status of negotiations.

£ @ Group
BB STt E in HK$ million 2004 2003
AR ERENE L A] Company and subsidiary companies
BB Hong Kong profits tax 269 71
BN IR Overseas taxation 109 79
EERE (M324) Deferred taxation (Note 24) (7) (3)
371 147
REFHERE Jointly controlled entities
EEMEH Hong Kong profits tax 20 30
BN IE Overseas taxation 50 47
A Deferred taxation 12 21)
82 56
AN Associated companies
BB Hong Kong profits tax 80 39
BN IR Overseas taxation 104 103
RENIE Deferred taxation 49 25
233 167
686 370
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6 Taxation continued

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of the home

country of the Company as follows:

£E Group
LB E STt E in HK$ million 2004 2003
W 50 A4 Profit before taxation 4,597 1,917
B17.5% 2 MEHE (ZTZ=F : 17.5%) Calculated at taxation rate of 17.5% (2003: 17.5%) 804 335
HihBRTAB Rz ZZ Effect of different taxation rates in other countries (56) (24)
BRRBZBALER Income and expenses not subject to taxation (171) 26
KRR 2 MIBEB BN AT E S Utilisation of unrecognised tax losses this year and
R e R 2 TIEE B net of tax losses not recognised (19) 48
BB RS M| SRR IE S EF5 21 m Increase in opening net deferred tax liabilities
resulting from an increase in tax rate - (16)
FRIZEERR/ (BF) Under / (over) provision in prior years 147 6)
HAth Others (19) 7
TIAR Taxation charge 686 370
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7 Profit Attributable to Shareholders

The Group’s profit attributable to shareholders is dealt with in the
accounts of the Company to the extent of HK$1,300 million

(2003: HK$2,905 million).

8 K& 8 Dividends
LB E BT E in HK$ million 2004 2003
BR-_ZT=FRAKE  BREL0.70T 2003 Final dividend paid: HK$0.70
(ZTZ=F : B%0.707T) (2002: HK$0.70) per share 1,532 1,532
BIRZZZE=FHAIRE - FRAEK1.00T 2008 Special dividend paid: HK$1.00 per share - 2,188
1,532 3,720
BR-ZTTNFF RS - FREB0.307T 2004 Interim dividend paid: HK$0.30
(ZZZ=F : B%0.307T) (2003: HK$0.30) per share 657 657
BE_TTNERERE - #RE0.80T 2004 Final dividend proposed: HK$0.80
(ZZZ=F : #¥0.7071) (2003: HK$0.70) per share 1,754 1,532
2,411 2,189
GRS (B¥%IT) Dividend per share (HK$) 1.10 1.00
9 BRER 9 Earnings per Share

W 28 R 7 4 S TROME A 36 Do o = AR A
T—HET( ZEE = = EE—E
HE) o

%H’iﬁﬂm"ﬁﬁqE%éﬁﬂ%ﬁZﬂu%ﬂ?i@%t
2,190,347,374 8¢ ( ZFE =4F - 28T Ry
2,188,460,160/%) F155 » T3 45 i 2 R Rl 4%
2,191,793,568 B B £y ( RE4F N E 8 AT LA 2
TIVRE S-S5 B 7 230 1 4 2 I PR MR A (o
HERLE DA AR Oy SN BEAT 21,446,194 503 2
MEETEE) 515 - (ZFFZAF - HIRFER
A ¥ B U ROREE A AT (8 IR 7 R R 2
F > BT 4 R B G A A BT -
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The calculation of earnings per share is based on profit attributable to

shareholders of HK$3,581 million (2003: HK$1,301 million).

The basic earnings per share is based on the weighted average number of
2,190,347,374 shares in issue during the year (2003: 2,188,460,160 shares
in issue). The diluted earnings per share is based on 2,191,793,568 shares

which is the weighted average number of shares in issue during the year

plus the weighted average number of 1,446,194 shares deemed to be issued

at no consideration if all outstanding options had been exercised (2003:

No diluted earnings per share is presented as the exercise of all the

options outstanding during the year has no dilutive effect on the earnings

per share).
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10 Directors’ Emoluments

£E Group
LB BB TEE in HK$ million 2004 2003
wne Fees 2.9 1.8
e Salaries 8.9 10.4
1E4T Bonuses 103.1 83.3
114.9 95.5
HHREMESPE The directors’ emoluments are analysed as follows:
Z 5 AZ Number of directors
B & &2 Emoluments Bands 2004 2003
B0 7T & #% 1,000,000 HK$0 - HK$1,000,000 6
75#1,500,001 T £ A% 2,000,00070 HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000
7E#2,000,001 JT & E¥ 2,500,000 7T HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 -
7E#3,000,001 JT & B#¥ 3,500,000 7T HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000 - 1
75#3,500,001 T £ A% 4,000,00070 HK$3,500,001 - HK$4,000,000 - 1
7E#5,500,001 st & E¥ 6,000,000 7T HK$5,500,001 - HK$6,000,000 1 -
75#9,000,001 JT & B¥ 9,500,000 7T HK$9,000,001 - HK$9,500,000 - 1
75#9,500,001 J©t £ #%10,000,000 70 HK$9,500,001 - HK$10,000,000 1 -

713,000,001 7T %= ##13,500,000 7T
#1£14,000,001 7T % #%# 14,500,000 7T
#115,500,001 7T £ %% 16,000,000 7T
719,500,001 7T % ##20,000,0007T
A% 23,000,001 7T % ##23,500,000 7T
725,500,001 7T 2 #%#26,000,000 7T
730,000,001 7T % ##%30,500,000 7T

HK$13,000,001 — HK$13,500,000
HK$14,000,001 - HK$14,500,000
HK$15,500,001 — HK$16,000,000
HK$19,500,001 — HK$20,000,000
HK$23,000,001 - HK$23,500,000
HK$25,500,001 — HK$26,000,000
HK$30,000,001 — HK$30,500,000

R BT ER e HEN T

T (CERT AR R ET) -

R AL BRI A LS AES

HM &I C A7 BT AL

R ANFAETEHERNFRETERE
J& 03 58 B s # — T F R T 7,600,000 8% Bk ik

RE(CRE=AR ) o

Emoluments paid to independent non-executive directors during the

year amounted to HK$1.4 million (2003: HK$0.7 million).

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year were

also directors and their emoluments are reflected in the analysis

presented above.

During the year, 7,600,000 share options were granted (2003: Nil) to

certain directors of the Company under the CITIC Pacific Share Incentive

Plan 2000.
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11 Retirement Benefits

With the consent of the majority of its members, the Group ceased
making contributions to The CITIC Group Retirement Plan (‘orso Plan’),
one of its principal retirement schemes in Hong Kong, with effect from

1 August 2003. The orso Plan will be operated as a closed fund and
continue to be managed by an independent trustee according to the

provisions of the Trust Deed and Rules.

All orso Plan members were enrolled onto the CITIC Group Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (‘MPF Scheme’) — with a choice of either the
Fidelity Retirement Master Trust or the Hang Seng Mandatory Provident
Fund - SuperTrust. Contributions to the MPF Scheme as well as forfeited
amounts derived from the employer voluntary contributions are
administered in accordance with the terms and provisions of the

master trusts.

Assets of the orso Plan and the MPF Scheme are held separately in funds

under the custody of the respective trustees.

Retirement benefits for employees in China and other locations are based

primarily on local manadatory requirements.
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12 Fixed Assets

a #H a Group
FRE Hh
wEYE BRI pd/E TERE s (B3 iii) E)
Properties
Investment Self-used held for Vehicular Plant and Others
LB B E A E in HK$ million properties  properties development tunnel  machinery (Note iii) Total
AR A E Cost or valuation
—TEWE—A—H At 1 January 2004 7,923 3,611 713 1,983 2,237 2,417 18,884
Hip@ Exchange adjustments 11 7 - - 4 10 32
wNE Additions
BB A A) through acquisition of
subsidiary companies - - - - 954 17 971
Htha= others 1 559 1,224 9 551 666 3,010
HE Disposals
FRHEMBAR through disposal of
subsidiary companies - (29) - - (33) (23) (85)
i H = others ) (15) (230) - (40) (85) (371)
EXRP S Revaluation surplus 181 - - - - - 181
EMHH Reclassification - 32 - - 196 (228) -
BRI Impairment loss - - - - - 1) 1)
—ETNFE+=-_A=+—H At 31 December 2004 8,115 4,165 1,707 1,992 3,869 2,773 22,621
ZENE Accumulated depreciation
—ETWFE—A—H At 1 January 2004 - 665 - 622 824 1,247 3,358
ok E i Exchange adjustments - 2 - - 1 3 6
RNEEHE Charge for the year - 76 - 92 215 234 617
[ESkeeg =240 Written back on disposals
BRHEMBE AR through disposal of
subsidiary companies - (11) - - (14) (10) (35)
Hi R others - @) - - (22) (58) (87)
—TENFE+-_A=1+—H At 31 December 2004 - 725 - 714 1,004 1,416 3,859
FREVFE Net book value
—ETNF+=-A=1+—H At 31 December 2004 8,115 3,440 1,707 1,278 2,865 1,357 18,762
—TE=F+-H=+—H At 31 December 2003 7,923 2,946 713 1,361 1,413 1,170 15,526
it B EZ KA E The analysis of cost or
PIHT - valuation of the above
assets is as follows:
AR At cost - 4,165 1,707 1,992 3,869 2,773 14,506
HEHBE-ZTENF At professional valuation
- 2004 8,115 - - - - - 8,115
8,115 4,165 1,707 1,992 3,869 2,773 22,621
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12 BEIE&EE 12 Fixed Assets continued

Biat - Note:

) BREYEI)  EEEEENCETERZ FISAHEE i) Interest capitalised in fixed assets other than investment properties amounts to
REKE—TET(_FF=F BB _FHAH HK$10 million (2003: HK$25 million).
&) e

i) REBEMFF—A=+—H  FEBHHBEHRYE i) As at 31 December 2004, certain of the Group’s self-used properties and plant
RHEs  BEREFEREENENT+EET (ZZEF and machinery with the aggregate carrying value of HK497 million (2003: Nil) were
=4F ') FAEREEAF—RERENE] - —FE pledged to secure banking facilities granted to a subsidiary, a related company of
BRAEIRE=FRITIEEZHEMH - the Group and a third party.

iif) M EIE B ECERBRE - BERM - BIEE - iii) Other fixed assets comprise traffic equipment, cargo lighters, computer
BHRE  TE B RERBE - installations, telecommunications equipment, motor vehicles, furniture, fixtures

and equipment.

£@ Group
KB EE Tt & in HK$ million 2004 2003
HEBE D CRE TN Analysis of additions by business
R Civil Infrastructure 12 5
EEE Communications 141 117
LSRER S Special Steel Manufacturing 2,407 545
b2 Property 1,248 109
HERDH Marketing & Distribution 167 180
HAth Others 1 2
REEE Corporate 5 5
3,981 963
BB R 85 2 RE ST Analysis of additions by geographical area
BE Hong Kong 868 212
A Mainland China 3,080 702
HARREA Japan & Others 33 49
3,981 963
HEBEE D ZITESIT Analysis of depreciation by business
R Civil Infrastructure 96 70
EEE Communications 86 74
FRiE 2 Special Steel Manufacturing 254 211
b/ES Property 42 44
HERDH Marketing & Distribution 126 117
hEEE Corporate 13 12
617 528
EEEE| 52 BT Analysis of impairment loss by business
EEE Communications 1 -
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12 BlEEEs

12 Fixed Assets continued

b AH b Company
E B
BRRER
Motor vehicles,
equipment,
furniture
LB B STl E in HK$ million and fixtures
%N Cost
—ZETWF—-A—H At 1 January 2004 95
FE Additions 4
—EEME+-_A=+—8H At 31 December 2004 99
REHE Accumulated depreciation
e At 1 January 2004 55
KEENE Charge for the year 11
—ZTWF+-_A=+—8H At 31 December 2004 66
REFE Net book value
—EEMFE+_A=+—H At 31 December 2004 33
—EZT=F+-A=+—H At 31 December 2003 40
c AEEYIEZFPIT ¢ The tenure of the properties of the Group is as follows:
BEME BERYE GEBRIDE e
Properties
Investment Self-used held for
LB B E A E in HK$ million properties properties  development Total
ViEEoL/ES Leasehold properties held
] in Hong Kong
HBB50F 2T Leases of over 50 years 601 24 - 625
10E50F 2 4 Leases of between 10 to 50 years 2,995 2,200 924 6,119
LHI10F 2K Leases of less than 10 years - 76 - 76
&t in mainland China
BIB50F 2 K Leases of over 50 years 950 - 622 1,572
10E50F 214 Leases of between 10 to 50 years 3,300 1,626 161 5,087
BN E Properties held overseas
KA ERE Freehold 269 239 - 508
8,115 4,165 1,707 13,987
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12 ElEEE=

d YA fE

AL 2 BOEYISE T B S AR (AT —F Y
A = AR A R EAREE A -
LA E T FEF T

12 Fixed Assets continued

d Property Valuation
The Group’s investment properties have been independently revalued on
an open market value basis as at 31 December 2004. The details of the

independent qualified valuers are as follows:

LIELNN Properties located in fH{ERD Valuers
BEERLE Hong Kong and Shanghai Eegrleile S ES = Knight Frank
=N Japan Tekko Building Co., Limited

e AEEFFEEEML M ELEEHERA
ZEEEERN B EEHA T 2Rk
wr

e Fixed assets and properties held for sale under current assets of the

Group let under operating leases to generate rental income are as follows:

BEYE BAME HtETEE EBETEELE HEME

Other Fixed Properties

Investment Self-used fixed assets held for

LM B ETE E in HK$ million properties properties assets total sale

ARG E Cost or valuation 8,115 23 293 8,431 316

2RITE Accumulated depreciation - 3) (122) (125) -
BREVFE Net book value

ZETNF+-_A=+—H  at 31 December 2004 8,115 20 171 8,306 316

REENE Depreciation charges for the year - - 26 26 -

13 M8 2

13 Subsidiary Companies

A® Company

LB EE Tt E in HK$ million 2004 2003
FELTARG - AR ERERE Unlisted shares, at cost less impairment losses 169 169
WEBATIRERE Amounts due by subsidiary companies 45,814 41,627
RHB AT &R Amounts due to subsidiary companies (6,916) (7,297)

39,067 34,499

T A RO R E B EE30
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Particulars of the principal subsidiary companies are shown in Note 30.



14 £EEHER 14 Jointly Controlled Entities

£E Group
LB B STt E in HK$ million 2004 2003
ik EEFE Share of net assets 5,850 2,893
EEXEANS) Goodwill (Note 17) 208 168
HEZEHERERE 2ER (D) Loans due from jointly controlled entities (Note b) 1,932 1,159
REHRAEHEE ER (M) Loans due to jointly controlled entities (Note b) (138) (135)
7,852 4,085

A" Company

LB B S TitE in HK$ million 2004 2003

IE AR5 B AR Unlisted shares, at cost 789 270

HRAZHERBREZER Loans due from jointly controlled entities 660 -

RERBEEHEB2ER Loans due to jointly controlled entities (135) (133)

1,314 137

Hiat - Note:

a HAEFHERTEERREERGRAA ([FEE]) - a. Included in jointly controlled entities is Western Harbour Tunnel Company Limited
BRAZHBFREGEARCA=1T—H  BFxEH (‘WHTCL’) whose year end is 31 July which is not coterminous with the Group.
ZEEATR - Az RECIEAH-—TEFNF—A The results of WHTCL has been equity accounted for based on its management
—HE-ZEWFE+ - A=+—HERZERKA K accounts for the period from 1 January 2004 to 31 December 2004.

B AR - b. Loans due from jointly controlled entities and loans due to jointly controlled

b. BRIEERFIZEHERREZ ERALEECENT=8 entities are interest bearing at market rates except for an amount of approximately
B (ZFE=F : RAHFEHERZ BRAEE HK$783 million (2003: HK$11million loans from jointly controlled entities) loans to
—F—BET)BEEENI  HpERAFEHEREX jointly controlled entities, which are non-interest bearing. These loans have no
B RXERFAFESERZ EFIGETSFIEGE ° % fixed repayment terms.

EERIWRFETFE 2 EN - c. Particulars of the principal jointly controlled entities are shown in Note 30.

C. TEHAFZHEREHIFERE 30
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15 BHE /N A]

15 Associated Companies

£E Group
LB B STt E in HK$ million 2004 2003
FiihEEFE Share of net assets 14,361 15,058
P (ME17) Goodwill (Note 17) 1,825 1,856
16,186 16,914
BN RIR B2 ER (M) Loans due from associated companies (Note b) 5,501 5,917
REBE AR ZER (D) Loans due to associated companies (Note b) (25) (26)
21,662 22,805
REMAK Investment at cost
Mk, Unlisted shares 6,142 5,194
EE ETRG Shares listed in Hong Kong 8,591 8,591
14,733 13,785
EWkm A Market value of listed shares 12,632 12,675
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15 BENR

15 Associated Companies continued

‘A7 Company

LB BT E in HK$ million 2004 2003
=Y Investment at cost
IE LR Unlisted shares 1,245 303
A LWRG Shares listed in Hong Kong 931 931
2,176 1,234
BENTIREZER Loans due from associated companies 2,586 2,623
REBBERRZER Loans due to associated companies (19) 21)
4,743 3,836
FmkHpzmE Market value of listed shares 1,053 1,056

RN S N B LB AT

Dividend income from associated companies during the year is as follows:

£E Group
LB B STt E in HK$ million 2004 2003
LA AR Listed associated companies 558 266
FE LT E A A Unlisted associated companies 326 242
884 508

a BERATEBEAEFRAF([Z/8HE]) ZRA]
CHRFEREAR=A=1—H HLXEEHZ
FEE TR - BERR T FECILEl — FFIIF—
A—BE-ZFEMF+_A=1+—HHFE2EEKE
A ma EAIR -

b. BEMERARBZEAANER - FTHEET
(ZFEE=F B =T=B27T) R2EEH
HERBENERARRABEN 72 BXGRT5F
8 o ZERAUARBTEESL -

C. TEBBENAEHEFEE 30 -

Note:

a. Included in associated companies is Hong Kong Resort Company Limited
(‘HKR’) whose year end is 31 March which is not coterminous with the Group.
The results of HKR has been equity accounted for based on its management
accounts for the period from 1 January 2004 to 31 December 2004.

b. Loans due from associated companies and loans due to associated companies
are interest bearing at market rates except for an amount of approximately
HK$25 million (2003: HK$33 million) loans to associated companies, which
are non-interest bearing. These loans have no fixed repayment terms.

c. Particulars of the principal associated companies are shown in Note 30.
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6 & 16 Investments
£ 8 Group
LB B & Tt & in HK$ million 2004 2003
BIEAEE R A] Co-operative joint ventures
FEETIREKA Unlisted investments, at cost 1,317 1,437
BIEEEARIRK Amounts due by co-operative joint ventures 57 116
1,374 1,553
Do 3! Less: Amortisation (673) (613)
701 940
ETRERE Listed investments, at cost
g LT Shares listed in overseas 374 -
FLETRE Unlisted investments
& 13 B, 2% Shares, at cost 70 108
o FEREIE Add: Advances made 19 25
89 133
W OREER Less: Impairment (40) (40)
49 93
o BUGRIE Less: Advances received (3) 6)
46 87
1,121 1,027
Emik 2 mE Market value of listed shares 680 -

EEAIEGE A A BRI R H B EE30 -
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Amortisation represents amortisation of investment in Power.

Particulars of the principal co-operative joint ventures are shown in

Note 30.




17 @& 17 Goodwill
MEBATF  HREHEE NG|
Jointly
Subsidiary controlled Associated

LB EE T E in HK$ million companies entities companies
FHE Positive Goodwill
2N Cost
—ZETEWFE—-A—H - ZR/IAY At 1 January 2004,

as previously reported 298 185 3,629
BN =_ZZNF— A —BR&E#HE Eliminated with accumulated

amortisation at 1 January 2004 (40) 17) (1,773)
=5 As restated 258 168 1,856
nE Addition 14 40 -
HE Disposal - - (31)
—EENF+=-A=1+—H At 31 December 2004 272 208 1,825
Eyy 3 Accumulated amortisation
—ZETWE—-HA—H - ZA/IATY At 1 January 2004

as previously reported 40 17 1,773
IR =ZTEWNF— A —HKAR Eliminated with cost

at 1 January 2004 (40) (17) (1,773)
E] As restated - - -
REFE Net book value
—EENF+_A=+—H At 31 December 2004 272 208 1,825
&N Cost
—ETE=F—-A—HE At 1 January and

+=—A=+—H 31 December 2003 298 185 3,629

ey 3 Accumulated amortisation
—EE=F—HF—H At 1 January 2003 28 7 1,593
ANF Amortisation for the year 12 10 180
—EE=F+-A=+—H At 31 December 2003 40 17 1,773
REF(E Net book value
—EE=F+-A=+—H At 31 December 2003 258 168 1,856
aFeE Negative Goodwill
&N Cost
—EENF—A—H ' ERIF At 1 January 2004,

as previously reported (35) - -
RIBEEBMEIREERNESTBELH Derecognised pursuant to transitional

7 BEHER arrangement of HKFRS No. 3 35 - -

—ETME-A—R - E7
E-TTmE+-—A=1—H

At 1 January 2004, as restated
and 31 December 2004
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\3

18 ¢

i

=

ATERNAES A=A —H o R BEHE
IRz A BIRTE A ERABATLEE T
(R4 ERILEATATET) -

19 BERE - BUERS

18 Inventories

At 31 December 2004, the carrying amount of inventories that are

carried at net realisable value amounted to HK$687 million

(2003: HK$568 million).

19 Debtors, Accounts Receivable, Deposits and

REREMRE Prepayments
8 Group A Company
LB E & E in HK$ million 2004 2003 2004 2003
JEW B ZERIH Trade debtors
—ER Within 1 year 1,754 1,954 - -
—F M E Over 1 year 179 527 - -
1,933 2,481 - -
JEWBR S Accounts receivable,
Ze RENMFE deposits and prepayments 2,255 1,767 98 79
4,188 4,248 98 79

Kt
) EWESERIREHIRREE  FIHAREEAHIAE -

ii) &EEEMIGZIRAGIERHETHEZZRIEE

20 EFTERIR ~ IETHRAX

Note:

i) Trade debtors are net of provision and the ageing is classified based on invoice

date.

i) The Group has a defined credit policy for the respective business units.

20 Creditors, Accounts Payable, Deposits

RERENRIE and Accruals
%@ Group AT Company
=T Yot in HK$ million 2004 2003 2004 2003
ETESKE Trade creditors
—FR Within 1 year 1,608 1,723 - -
—FMF Over 1 year 94 413 - _
1,702 2,136 - -
JERTBRSR Accounts payable,
&e RIENFIE deposits and accruals 3,040 1,840 73 58
4,742 3,976 73 58
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21 R&E

21 Share Capital

GREEEE40T 2R EE AEEET
Number of shares of HK$0.40 each HK$ million
ETE Authorised
TEE=FR-TEMF+A=+—H At 31 December 2003 and 2004 3,000,000,000 1,200
B#TIHE Issued and fully paid
—EENF—-—HF—H At 1 January 2004 2,188,460,160 875
RIRRE AR IE ST BT B 1TAR (D Issue of shares pursuant to the Plan 3,580,000 2
—EENF+_A=+—H At 31 December 2004 2,192,040,160 877

FIRR 2 B

HoFRRAE A —HEAHE A AR
AR B P ) 452 1 - O PR R R R AT 6 > i
AN F AT Bl B 5 420,000/ 550,000/
Pty AT A 20 T 2 P 18,20 78 B s T
19.907C ©

S PRt )

WA —FELELH =+ RN P ER
RS R # T F ([at#]) > HEe
AR A2 7 AT T Ja 2 W] Z AT B
FTBON B SR B 1A ] A 2w e 2 B B
T > AR AN RZ IR RS I ZH SR 10T - REHE
HEHEFERE  ERRD LU TEHZER
L ()AL TR ERT AR HE Y ST g 52 i
H¥RE ERrol 2 i 5 (i) AL ml B e B
152 L) BRSO 0 S LR ST H Rk
ERRE 2 R 8 5 R (i) AR 2 R R 6 T
{6 o MRAZRZ A B AT 42 o PR RE I 7 2 2 B R
HE - AR TSP T2 10% (L
R AYE) - (DAL FARREZEBITRA 5 5
(i) FE SR A Z st &) H A A R 2 EBATIROR -

Changes subsequent to the year end:

Since 1 January 2005 to the date of this report, the Company issued and
allotted a total of 20,000 shares at HK$18.20 per share and 50,000 shares
at HK$19.90 per share upon the exercise of share options which were

granted under the Plan.

Share Option Plan:

Under the CITIC Pacific Share Incentive Plan 2000 (‘the Plan’) adopted on
31 May 2000, the Board may invite any director, executive or employee of
the Company or any of its subsidiary companies to subscribe for options
over the Company’s shares on payment of HK$1 per acceptance. The
subscription price determined by the Board will be at least the higher

of (i) the closing price of the Company’s share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant; (ii) the average
closing price of the Company’s share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares. The
maximum number of shares over which options may be granted under the
Plan shall not exceed 10% of (i) the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time or (ii) the issued share capital of the Company as at the

date of adopting the Plan, whichever is the lower.
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21 A

B RN T B4R > A AR Al R
HHAZANE R FFENAEA—H— W
HEEEHE - £ T 4ERH A\ H > 1
ot Bz L A ST R 11,550,000 748 2 H]
ety 2 BEACHE > (H AT AR0.53% » AT{fi
Py RIS M 18,2000 © A R AR TE B4
6 P HE 30 i 2 s T A A s R 18.100T o AE
TEENES—A—H > BB At
A 512,780,000 A 2w B0 2 WA e
B BT BEAR0.58% - 17 A5 £ 4 AL i
19.907% ° AR/ ® 0y 76 B 4245 11 W A A L 300
T 2 e 8 B H019.907T  Firfy B4 i B s
TR0 7 BRI - T FE AR PR S R AR
WA BT o I i 2 IR T 4%
WO EE ZERAE T A =1 H R
Ao WA DA S B B 1 S

RATE 2 I HE I 5 )

21 Share Capital continued

Since adoption of the Plan, the Company have granted two lots of share
options on 28 May 2002 and 1 November 2004 respectively. On 28 May
2002 options to subscribe for a total of the 11,550,000 shares in the
Company representing 0.53% of the issued share capital, at the exercise
price of HK$18.20 per share, were granted under the Plan. The closing
price of the Company’s share immediately before the date of grant was
HK$18.10. On 1 November 2004 options to subscribe for a total of the
12,780,000 shares in the Company representing 0.58% of the issued share
capital, at the exercise price of HK$19.90 per share, were granted under
the Plan. The closing price of the Company’s share immediately before
the date of grant was HK$19.90. All options granted and accepted can be
exercised in whole or in part within 5 years from the date of grant. All
were accepted, and none were cancelled or lapsed in the period up to

31 December 2004.

Movements in options outstanding comprise:

R EE Number of shares

2004 2003

—H—H At 1 January 11,550,000 11,550,000

FRFEH 2z ERE Options granted during the year 12,780,000 -

FRETEZ ERE Options exercised during the year (3,580,000) -

+=—A=+—H At 31 December 20,750,000 11,550,000
ENEATE 2 MR RERE Y - Details of share options exercised during the year:

TEE BHEE
Exercise price Number of shares

i3 Period BT HKS 2004 2003

—ETNF-A+ZHE+Z=A+"H 12 January to 16 December 2004 18.20 1,980,000 -

—ZEEME+—ANBE+—A=+H 8 November to 30 November 2004 19.90 1,600,000 -

3,580,000 -

A A2 [ 7 A0 AR I BR A0 R 7 v A A YR SR 2
S [ LARBEAR 2 FEBREA SR ) - A7 B YR Y —
FIHAE— A~ HRZE Gt 4B 7 PG AL -
B > REE —FFNE A =+—HIL4F
JERHR B A SI R AT A B FBORE s 381 1l s
A ARLEEN i —FF A — B SR
i 2 6 A L DR A 7 i B s o Y 1) 5 2558 Y
R o
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The Group has not early adopted the new HKFRS No. 2 ‘Share Based
Payment’ which is effective for accounting periods beginning on or after

1 January 2005. Thus, no employee stock option cost is recognised in the
accounts for the year ended 31 December 2004. The Group will follow the
requirement of HKFRs No. 2 for accounting periods commencing on or
after 1 January 2005.



22 f#f&

22 Reserves

afEM a Group
SN REME EXKD
LB E STt E fetwE EORFEE BARE ShEE wHE TBREEH REERN k)
Investment
Capital property  Exchange
Share redemption Capital revaluation fluctuation General  Retained
in HK$ million premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
—ZZ=F—R—RB - /M
At 1 January 20083, as previously reported 24,782 19 1,053 847 159 142 14,661 41,663
EEHFHE
Prior year adjustment
—MNB AR B HERAK
Understatement of cost of sales of a subsidiary company - - - - - - (50) (50)
E]l
As restated 24,782 19 1,053 847 1569 142 14,611 41,613
I =N
Share of reserves of associated companies - - - (242) (342) - - (584)
S 2 BB
Goodwill written back on disposal - - 11 - - - - 1
mEZRERE
Impairment loss on goodwill - - 26 - - - - 26
WEEMHEE 2B
Deficit on revaluation of properties - - . 87) - - - 87)
SNEPEERE
Exchange translation differences - - - 5 (11) - - ©6)
BEEF
Transfer from profits - - - - - 40 (40) -
I8 5R P A S5 )
Profit attributable to shareholders - - - - - - 1,301 1,301
% & (P EE8)
Dividends (Note 8) - - - - - - (4,377) (4,377)
ZTT=F+-_A=1+—H
At 31 December 2003 24,782 19 1,090 523 (194) 182 11,495 37,897
&
Representing
—EE=F+=-A=1+—A
BT ARBARBRE
At 31 December 2003 after proposed final dividend 36,365
BECTT-FARERE
2003 Final dividend proposed 1,532
37,897
T3 RIRE 2 700R
Retained by
KRR RMBAR
Company and subsidiary companies 24,782 19 1,085 - 6 164 7,099 33,155
HEEGEE
Jointly controlled entities - - 2 - - 15 412 429
- YN|
Associated companies - - 3 523 (200) 3 3,984 4,313
24,782 19 1,090 523 (194) 182 11,495 37,897
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22 f#tEa

22 Reserves continued

a il & a Group continued
B EXRGE/ WEWME EXED
LB B ZE Tt E R E BORE (BE) H=HES #E LBEE REBRM k]
Investment
Capital Capital property  Exchange
Share redemption  reserve / revaluation fluctuation General  Retained
in HK$ million premium reserve  (Goodwill) reserve reserve reserve profits Total
ZZTME-/A—H - EFIFAFI
At 1 January 2004, as previously reported 24,782 19 1,090 523 (194) 182 11,549 37,951
RERMNSHBEBUEREENEIR (HzE1c)
Early adoption of new HKFRS No. 3 (Note 1c) - - (3,589) - - - 1,429 (2,160)
TFEHUTHE
Prior year adjustments
—EE AR DR HEKA
Understatement of cost of sales of a subsidiary company - - - - - - (54) (54)
Pt B & X Rl FIRER 2 B
Share of associated company for change in profit recognition - - - - - - (64) 64)
]
As restated 24,782 19 (2,499) 523 (194) 182 12,860 35,673
SN ]
Share of reserves of associated companies - - - 1 (131) - - (130)
Fril SR b B
Share of reserves of jointly controlled entity - - - - - 11 - 11
INERE R
Exchange translation differences - - - - 2 - - 2
RBRERETBIRITR G
Issue of shares pursuant to the Plan 66 - - - - - - 66
HE R RS
Reserves written back on disposal - - 5 - (2) ) - 1
BEmEA
Transfer from profits - - - - - 53 (53) -
eyl
Profit attributable to shareholders - - - - - - 3,581 3,581
e 2 (KIE8)
Dividends (Note 8) - - - - - - (2,189) (2,189)
—TTMFEF+=—A=1+—H
At 31 December 2004 24,848 19 (2,494) 524 (325) 244 14,199 37,015
i
Representing
—TTMFEF+=—A=1+—H
BERfARBERHS
At 31 December 2004 after proposed final dividend 35,261
H_TTNEARERE
2004 Final dividend proposed 1,754
37,015
B T O R EIRE.Z A
Retained by
ARERMBAR
Company and subsidiary companies 24,848 19 (2,494) - 6 226 8,881 31,486
HEEH &
Jointly controlled entities - - - - - 15 660 675
=N
Associated companies - - - 524 (331) 3 4,658 4,854
24,848 19 (2,494) 524 (325) 244 14,199 37,015
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a H£H 4
WizE -

JEFR By ten 1 75 A S B B S 22 DB A © IO
SHREREIQRATL - MBI ZEE RN EE i ERE
115 AEEBE—FENFE+ A=+ —HIFEZ
BoREE R B —E=F— a8t (ZEF=4F:

BE=ENT_887T) -

22 Reserves continued

a Group continued

Note :

The exchange fluctuation reserve included the Group’s share of the exchange
reserve of Cathay Pacific. As set out in accounting policies No.1(q), the Group’s
profit and loss account for the year ended 31 December 2004 would have
decreased by HK$131 million (2003: HK$342 million) had SSAP No.11 been
adopted by Cathay Pacific.

b Compan
b 4 pany
BAREREE A7 i (B RE R Fat=]
Capital
redemption Share Retained
LB BB TE E in HK$ million reserve premium profits Total
—EE=F—H—H At 1 January 2003 19 24,782 12,888 37,689
FRAHEDREF (HE7)  Profit for the year available for distribution (Note 7) - - 2,905 2,905
% & (F5E8) Dividends (Note 8) - - (4,377) (4,377)
ZTE=F+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 2003 19 24,782 11,416 36,217
& Representing
ZZET=F+-ZA=+—H At 31 December 2003 after
Bt ARZREARE proposed final dividend 34,685
B_ET=FREKS 2003 Final dividend proposed 1,532
36,217
BAER EE A7 i (B RE R Fat=]
Capital
redemption Share Retained
LB BB TE E in HK$ million reserve premium profits Total
—EENF—-HA—H At 1 January 2004 19 24,782 11,416 36,217
RIRRE R BIF TR Issue of shares pursuant to the Plan - 66 - 66
FRAEDIREF (BE7)  Profit for the year available for distribution (Note 7) - - 1,300 1,300
Rs (F138) Dividends (Note 8) - - (2,189) (2,189)
“EENF+-A=+—H At 31 December 2004 19 24,848 10,527 35,394
& Representing
ZEEMFE+_A=+—H At 31 December 2004 after
Bit AEZREARS proposed final dividend 33,640
F_ETHFERPKS 2004 Final dividend proposed 1,754
35,394
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22 f#tEa

b Aw &

HRAE AR U 28 R B R 79 B T 08 2 A ] ] i
ARG > R FERNET A=+ —H 5
B —EEAE T LA (CEE AR
BT —TIE—FAEE) -

23 RHEAMER

22 Reserves continued

b Company continued

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2004, calculated

under section 79B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, amounted
to HK$10,527 million (2003: HK$11,416 million).

23 Long Term Borrowings

a a
@ Group A Company
LB E BT E in HK$ million 2004 2003 2004 2003
RITEHR Bank loans
AR R unsecured 9,522 5,554 8,322 4,571
A secured 108 65 - -
9,630 5,619 8,322 4,571
H E 5k Other loans
E g unsecured 4,290 4,290 780 780
13,920 9,909 9,102 5,351
—FREEHZER Amounts repayable within one year
FINRBEER included under current liabilities (151) (256) (27) (26)
13,769 9,653 9,075 5,325
Hiat - Note:
) AEEEERAFENTLEEZRITEAREMEHL i) Bank loans and other loans of the Group not wholly repayable within five years

REBENTHE=F=A8T (ZEF=F : BK
=+HE—TET)

i) XABBET—EBEETR-_EENFEBRZEE
([FIR]) - ZREZFHARR a7 M EREESEZ WA
BT FRFEKRGREFFHRLN  FLR
7.37%  ZIEMR -FENF AT A AR
At RIEEEBR I -

R=ZFF—F NA—H AREIZZENERA]
CITIC Pacific Finance (2001) Limited R —ZFZ
—FRA AR EE—FNA-HZEE R
BOIRHEACELENERTEETLT7.625% (R
ERR ([REFIK]) TIREZ - UEREALRAZE
BETHRERBEE—REEFED - ZFREZLEN
R-FE——FIE - 2ERFERRANFIERIF A
ity seAE ] o

V) BRIREZEZZS - RITEARAMEFER T —ZF
N AIREFEE - BEIR TSR E -

V) REEEWMFEFZ—F=+—H FEBETHFERE
WA RREEBEENT— 58T (ZEE=F :
BERTF=ZB81) FIEXEEEFHERGIER
RIRITISEZ A -
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i)

amounted to HK$4,733 million (2003: HK$3,510 million).

The Company has issued a US$100,000,000 Senior Note due 2006 (the ‘Notes’).
The Notes will rank in right of payment pari passu to all other indebtedness of the
Company. Interest on the Notes is payable semi-annually in arrears at 7.37% per
annum. The Notes will mature on 15 February 2006 unless previously prepaid by
the Company.

iii) On 1 June 2001, CITIC Pacific Finance (2001) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary

of the Company, issued and sold a total of US$450 million principal amount of
7.625% guaranteed notes due 2011 (‘Guaranteed Notes’) for refinancing the
indebtedness of the Company and for general corporate purposes, to investors
pursuant to the purchase agreements dated 24 May 2001 and 1 June 2001.
All of the Guaranteed Notes remained outstanding at the end of the year.

iv) Bank loans and other loans, other than the Guaranteed Notes, are fully repayable

up to 2010 and bear interest at the prevailing market rate.

v) As at 31 December 2004, certain of the Group’s inventories and accounts

receivable with the aggregate carrying value of HK$41 million (2003: HK$53
million) were pledged to secure loans and banking facilities granted to certain
subsidiary companies of the Group.
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23 Long Term Borrowings continued

b The maturity of the Group’s and the Company’s long term liabilities is

as follows:
%[ Group A Company

LB EE T E in HK$ million 2004 2003 2004 2003

RITEAZHER Bank loans are repayable
—FN in the first year 151 256 27 26
—FR in the second year 834 650 154 133
“ERER(BEEREME) in the third to fifth years inclusive 7,422 4,713 6,918 4,412
hFE after the fifth year 1,223 - 1,223 -
9,630 5,619 8,322 4,571

EmBEHZEEH Other loans are repayable
—FR in the first year - - - -
—FER in the second year 780 - 780 -
“ERFAN(BEERMF) in the third to fifth years inclusive - 780 - 780
HF% after the fifth year 3,510 3,510 - -
4,290 4,290 780 780
13,920 9,909 9,102 5,351

1383
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24 Deferred Taxation

a Group

Deferred taxation are calculated in full on temporary differences under

the liability method using a principal taxation rate of 17.5% (2003:

17.5%). The components of deferred tax (assets) and liabilities recognised

in the consolidated balance sheet and the movements during the year is

as follows:

BHAETE
LEM B BTE E ZIERHE 18 Hth kL]

Depreciation

allowances in

excess of related

depreciation Losses Others Total
in HK$ million 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
ERERIERE
Deferred tax arising from
—A—B
At 1 January 293 263 (90) 71) 37 44 240 236
HiaRE
Exchange adjustment 2 4 - - 2 4 4 8
mrE/ (BA) SthtEE
Charged / (Credited) to revaluation reserve - - - - 2 1) 2 1)
nBa/ (BA) FaBmEk
Charged / (Credited) to consolidation profit and loss account - 26 6) (19) 1) (10) (7) 3)
+=A=+—H
At 31 December 295 293 (96) (90) 40 37 239 240
LB B STt E in HK$ million 2004 2003
ERAAERBERERCEEREEE T8 Net deferred tax assets recognised on the

consolidated balance sheet (94) (85)
e EERBERERCEEHBEEFHE Net deferred tax liabilities recognised on the

consolidated balance sheet 333 325

239 240
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24 Deferred Taxation continued

b Deferred Tax Assets Unrecognised
The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of the

following items:

£E Group
LB E STt E in HK$ million 2004 2003
RN ERE Deductible temporary difference 60 68
TIEEE Tax losses 3,730 4,050
JREER T i 5 22 2R Taxable temporary difference (674) (605)
3,116 3,513
A7) Company

LB ST E in HK$ million 2004 2003
RN ERE Deductible temporary difference 11 10
TMIEEE Tax losses 339 335
JRE ER T i B 22 1 Taxable temporary difference - (3)
350 342

HiaF - Note:

HEETHBESREN _FEGET(—EE=
F BN _E—T=E87T) Z AR B E B RFR
BRI R R I FIERE - RBFRESHEED] - Hip2
I EEEREAIIR -

c AR Z A A 1
FEZFFNEF A =+—H  MEBARZM
ARG FIT I R 2 B 2 B A LR — T
HAET(CERZF  ERAE-T LS
TC) o SRR T ) 5% S B A R 2 M R B
RN 7E i) VAIDINER S B LY )
REARN IR B A - B AR AT RE R 7 IR % 55
R B8 i 1 P AR BRI T 3 e 2 AR AE B IE £ fi
W00 T HE # (R
“TAEET -

Deductible temporary differences and tax losses in certain tax jurisdictions of
HK$206 million (2003: HK$213 million) will expire within the next five years.
The rest of the amount does not expire under current tax legislation.

¢ Deferred Tax Liabilities Not Recognised

At 31 December 2004, temporary differences relating to the undistributed
profits of subsidiaries amounted to HK$715 million (2003: HK$617
million). Deferred tax liabilities of HK$145 million (2003: HK$126
million) have not been recognised in respect of the tax that would be
payable on the distribution of these retained profits as the company
controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has been
determined that it is probable that profits will not be distributed in

the foreseeable future.
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25 BARKIE

25 Capital Commitments

£ @ Group
LB B STt in HK$ million 2004 2003
EHEERELD (M) Authorised but not contracted for (Note) 1,159 2
BENEREE (M) Contracted but not provided for (Note) 3,370 1,963

‘A7 Company

LB B ETA E in HK$ million 2004 2003
EENBEREE Contracted but not provided for 1,229 610
Btat - Note:

AEEEHEEREL)REFHNERNBZ EARIES
R##Es  MERRE 2PIRES+—EATAEST
CEE=F B HET) B —HEATEEE
T(ZFZE=4F BB NEBE=T—BE7D - EFAEXR
fﬁfﬁz&ﬁ*%%’gﬁfxéﬁ/‘ﬁ ZEIHAEK—TN\BET

CNEETFANEED  REEZEBEL
*/5%‘/1&5%‘7%(7??*& AAFPTFRE&ED KA
MwEAES—ELTtEET (—FE=F B —(F
—T& °

26 EXMHAIRIE

BHZA=+—H o AEEHRRIEA A
B 2 8 SERE A b JH AT 2 B IR AR A A SR A
wmr

The capital commitments of authorised but not contracted for and contracted but
not provided for of the Group in respect of plant, property and equipment amount to
HK$1,159 million (2003: HK$2 million) and HK$2,087 million (2003: HK$631 million)
respectively. The balance of contracted but not provided for represents amount
committed for investments in aviation of HK$18 million (2003: HK$676 million),
power generation of HK$1,108 million (2003: HK$546 million) and others of
HK$157 million (2003: HK$110 million).

26 Operating Lease Commitments

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases at 31 December are as follows:

£ @ Group AF Company
LB E BT E in HK$ million 2004 2003 2004 2003
Y EEE Properties commitments
—FR Within 1 year 88 93 6 16
—FRERFR After 1 year but within 5 years 103 102 -
HF% After 5 years 32 24 - _
223 219 6 22
A A Other commitments
—ER Within 1 year 38 35 - -
—FRERFA After 1 year but within 5 years 66 25 - -
FFE After 5 years 54 14 - _
158 74 - -
381 293 6 22
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a A R[] A v VY I B A R =) ([P RE 1)
JHC A i S ) 258 38 ) A1 )1 8 9 45 1 4 2B
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BLA o R B 0 R AR 22 B L PR AR R T 2 T
P < HEE B o BRAE R — LB 4RI A 58
B> BERAH Fy HE RS R T (R TR EE AR
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b AR AT E A R R T E
T B R TCR SRR AR

C ARFEBEMMNMEARAF Z AR
HEET A ETER LT ERTHEREMS
B EE60% M HI#E IR -

d AL Tk — BERAT T A8 28 =) — BT B e
Rz =BT A TSR R
79.998% 2 Al 5 {5 -

e RAFEE— MERITIR T AL F — M A R
Z WM =T R B B =7 79.998% 2
AL -

NN D R 5 Ty AN PN AN it L
BE A EZWEF A=+ HE IR
AR NRME 45T SR AR o

27 Contingent Liabilities

a The Company together with other beneficial shareholders of Western
Harbour Tunnel Company Limited (‘WHTCL’) have agreed jointly and
severally to guarantee the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region that wHTCL will complete the Western Harbour
Crossing (‘Crossing’) within budget of approximately HK$7.5 billion
including repair costs to be incurred after the operation date of the
Crossing but before the issuance of the Maintenance Certificate. The
Crossing was completed in April 1997 with total cost of approximately
HK$6.8 billion, pending the issuance of the Maintenance Certificate.

The beneficial shareholders of wHTCL have agreed that in relation to any
claim made or asserted under the aforesaid guarantee, as between
themselves, the total of all liabilities in respect of a claim thereunder and
of all costs, charges and expenses suffered or incurred by any of them
resulting therefrom or attributable thereto shall be shared by them in
proportion to their respective ultimate ownership in WHTCL.

b The Company has provided a guarantee on the US$450 million
Guaranteed Notes issued by a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

¢ The Company has provided a several guarantee of up to 60% to support
loan facilities of RMB571 million and US$70 million to Jilin Xinli Power
Cogeneration Co., Ltd.

d The Company has provided a several guarantee of up to 79.998% to
support a loan facility of up to HK$332 million granted by a bank to a
subsidiary of the Company.

e The Company has provided a several guarantee of up to 79.998%
to support loan facilities of HK$300 million granted by a bank to a
subsidiary of the Company.

f The Company has provided a guarantee to support a banking facility
of RMB600 million (RMB300 million was utilised as at 31 December
2004) to a subsidiary of the Company.
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g WALEHAIA R AR » A2 FE95%HE 4t 1
WP w] > J— AR B 2 R IR R RS R A
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27 Contingent Liabilities continued

g Hubei Xin Yegang Co. Ltd., a 95% owned subsidiary of the Company,
has provided guarantees to support banking facilities of up to RMB1,120
million to a related company, Daye Special Steel Co., Ltd., and banking
facilities of up to RMB123 million to Daye Steel Group companies. Hubei
Xin Yegang Co., Ltd. has also pledged assets to support banking facilities
of up to RMB131 million to Daye Special Steel Co. Ltd., and banking
facilities of up to RMB294 million to a Daye Steel Group company.

28 Comparative Figures

Comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with the current

presentation.

29 Approval of Accounts

The accounts were approved by the Board of Directors on 15 March 2005.
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30 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
and Co-operative Joint Ventures

The following are the principal subsidiary companies, jointly controlled

entities, associated companies and co-operative joint ventures of the

Group which in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results

and net assets of the Group. To give full details of all companies would in

the opinion of the directors result in particulars of excessive length.

FrE e
Interest in equity
shares held by

BEITROHER
Particulars of
issued shares®

Ealifpave: Eiys
2B EEEN AR7E MEAF
£ SEARRR % % % BRIABE mE  EEEH
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
®E
Power Generation
HEIFZEHIERE
Jointly controlled entities
HIBEZENERAR (WERE : PEARLNE 12.5 - 12,5 - - ER BEREEEE
—ETWEFTAZ++R) NGB ERE REEHRHEESH
Huaibei Guoan Power People’s Republic of China Building, possession
Company Ltd. Sino-foreign equity and operation of
(Date of acquisition: joint venture* power plant and
27 October 2004) sale of electricity
AEELEREEERD hEEARLME 35 - 35 - - ANBERILE
PGB ERE RER
Inner Mongolia Fengtai People’s Republic of China Coal-fired power
Electric Power Generation Sino-foreign equity station operation
Company Limited joint venture* and management
LRAAEEROBRAAF hEEARLME 54.31 - 54.31 1,170,000,000 AR¥1T EEEERLE
SNETIR B R AR il 1 2
Jiangyin Ligang Electric People’s Republic of China RMB1  Electric power plant

Power Generation
Company Limited

Foreign investment
stock company*

construction
and operation
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30 TEMBLAE
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BR BEARAREAE

30 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued

R
Interest in equity
shares held by

EHITRHER
Particulars of
issued shares®

AR B /
FE2LEHE REES ARTE WEBATF
Eg ] SENERR % % % EignE- =] HE FEXEH
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
TN ABERAR hEEARHAME 60 - 60 - - ANBREBRIER -
TN EEERE TS
Jilin Xinli Power Cogeneration People’s Republic of China Coal-fired
Co., Ltd. Sino-foreign equity co-generation
joint venture* power plant
construction and
operation and
related business
HEHFNEERRRFS hEEARHAME 50 - 50 - - ANBERIEE
TN EEERE
Kaifeng Xinli Power Generation  People’s Republic of China Coal-fired power
Co., Ltd.*® Sino-foreign equity station operation
joint venture*
O RAZEERAR (RIHEHH hEEARHAME 65 - 65 - - REBK
BERMELR) (KEAE - TN EEERE
—ZTTMFE=A+AEAB)
Sunburst Energy Development  People’s Republic of China Investment holding
Co., Ltd. (Formerly Sunburst  Sino-foreign equity
Energy Development Inc.) joint venture*
(Date of acquisition:
15 March 2004)
EBRREERARFS RBRLES 50 - 50 - - REER
Widewin Investments Limited®  British Virgin Islands Investment holding
EH R MKELENARAF hEEARHAME 70 - 70 - - HKERBUzER
TN EEE LR

Wuxi Taihu Lake Pumped
Storage Power Co., Ltd.

People’s Republic of China

Sino-foreign equity
joint venture*

Pumped storage
hydraulic power
plant construction
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B B ’A AR & 1E Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
BRERNA s and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued
FrHRE BEITRHER
Interest in equity Particulars of
shares held by issued shares’
FEfA St 2/
FEEEME FEEN A7 MEAR
£ SENERRI % % % fth & 8 HE FBXEH
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
LM ERRMEARAR hEEARAME 54.31 - 54.31 - - BERAEEES R
IR B ERES RABHRIER
B AR
People’s Republic of China Coal related
Sino-foreign equity businesses and
joint venture* provision of
maintenance and
technical services
for electrical
appliances

AN

Associated companies

EHMABNERETAR hEEARLME 20 20 - - - REBEBREEBROEE

North United Power NGB ERES G EEES S
Corporation People’s Republic of China Investment holding

Sino-foreign equity and generation
joint venture* of electricity
and heat and
related businesses

/\ﬁ:—/\_é./i

Co-operative joint ventures

IEANBENERAR (TFE]) EF'?E/\E&%D 56.31 - 56.31 - - BEUREREE
(Ffza) BEEERT]

Jiangsu Ligang Electric Power  People’s Republic of China Electric power
Company Limited (‘Ligang’) Co-operative plant construction
(Note a) joint venture* and operation

BN NBHBRAR (TFH]) EPffri/\Eﬁﬁ 50 - 50 - - BEBUEEREE
(Biztb) BEEERT]

Zhengzhou Xinli Electric
Power Co., Ltd. (‘Xinli")
(Note b)

People’s Republic of China
Co-operative
joint venture*

Electric power plant
construction and
operation
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30 TEMBAR - LEEH 30 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
B -BEQARSE Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
BENRA s and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued
A IR BEITRHER
Interest in equity Particulars of
shares held by issued shares’
AR B /
FE2LEHE REES ARTE WEBATF
%18 SEAMRI % % % iGE HE TBEH
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
B &
Tunnels
/8 22 &)
Subsidiary companies
MEEREERAD BB 70.8 - 70.8 75,000,000 BEI0T  REgsE
New Hong Kong Tunnel Hong Kong HK$10  Tunnel operation
Company Limited
RIS T
Jointly controlled entities
Eastern Harbour Crossing &5 50 - 50 - - REgE
Company Limited®
Hong Kong Tunnel operation
EEBERSENKER BB 35 - 35 - - BB KERRE
BRAR BIEKE
Hong Kong Tunnels and Hong Kong Management,
Highways Management operation and
Company Limited maintenance of
the Cross Harbour
Tunnel
HANRBEERARS BB 35 - 35 - - NE2gTAEER
REAREERE
Western Harbour Tunnel Hong Kong Franchise to

Company Limited®

construct and
operate the
Western Harbour
Crossing
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B B ’A AR & 1E Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
BRERNA s and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued
FrHRE BEITRHER
Interest in equity Particulars of
shares held by issued shares'
Al ave: ke
FE2LEHE FEEN A7 MEAR
Ey SENERRI % % % fth & 8 HE FBXEH
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
RIERE
Environmental
RIS ERE
Jomt/y controlled entities
EEENEEERA aE 50 - 50 - - BET HERKE
[EE gk
Ecoserve Limited Hong Kong Design, construction
and operation of
refuse transfer
station
Eki,éé/'\ ﬂ
Associated companies
B EERNEEERAAF BB 20 - 20 - - BRETEE - KER
B BRI
Enviropace Limited Hong Kong Design, construction,
operation and
management of
chemical waste
treatment plant
BEATEARAT BB 30 - 30 - - HERREEEVHEER
Green Valley Landfill, Limited Hong Kong Landfill construction
and operation
MERNEBERRR 0 30 - 30 - - R ERRge
FEY)EEE U
South China Transfer Limited Hong Kong Design, construction
and operation of
transfer station
LREBEENTES hEARLME 30 - 30 - - BRE EREREE
BRAR TIEEREERE" FEYIEE R

People’s Republic of China
Sino-foreign equity
joint venture*

Design, construction

and operation
of landfill
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30 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly

Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued

R
Interest in equity
shares held by

BEITROHER
Particulars of
issued shares’

AR B /
FE2LEHE REES ARTE WEBATF
“iE SENERI % % % (Egv-¢= HE IEXK
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par

Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities

=R

Communications

/8 22 &)

Subsidiary companies

AAA Internet Limited &5 100 - 100 2 BT REEBERS

K EERE

Hong Kong HK$1  Provision of internet
services and
advertising agency

TEAREBRAZBPOERAR BB 75 - 75 100,000 BT REEHERS
(#ifMarket Dynamic
Holdings Limited)

Asia Pacific Internet Hong Kong HK$1  Provision of
Exchange Limited internet services
(Formerly Market Dynamic
Holdings Limited)

ZFREZE (IR ELE REARHAME 100 - 100 TNiE A TEA  RUESEEE RS
RTBRAR SINEBELE”

China Interactive Sports People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Provision of sports
Technology Company Wholly foreign-owned related online
Limited enterprise* services

FEHR1616BR AR BB 100 - 100 2 BEIT  REEARE

CITIC Concept 1616 Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Provision of

telecommunications
services

FPIEERRE1616 6K AR BB 100 - 100 2 BT REEAERRS

CITIC Consultancy 1616 Hong Kong HK$1  Provision of

Limited

telecommunications
consultancy
services
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30 FTEMBAR - LEEH 30 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
ER - -BELARSE Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
BRERNA s and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued
FrHRE BEITRHER
Interest in equity Particulars of
shares held by issued shares'
Al ave: ke
TELEME FEEN A7 MEAR
Ey SENERRI % % % fth & 8 HE FEEK
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
FEZIE1616HR A A o 100 - 100 2 BT REEEERRE
CITIC Data 1616 Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Provision of data
transmission
services
REZERH1616ERAH BB 100 - 100 1 BT REEARS
(RITEEEERAR)
CITIC Mobile Services Hong Kong HK$1  Provision of
1616 Limited (Formerly telecommunications
Invest Network Limited) services
PEHRE1616ERAH BB 100 - 100 2 BT REHEARS
CITIC Networks 1616 Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Provision of
telecommunications
services
PEREEERHER AR BRE 100 - 100 100,000 BT REER
CITIC Pacific Communications  Bermuda HK$1  Investment holding
Limited
FEEHN1616ERAH BB 100 - 100 2 BT REEREARS
CITIC Telecom 1616 Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Provision of
international
telecommunications
services
FEZF1616ERAH BB 100 - 100 2 BT RESHEEIR
CITIC TeleSoft 1616 Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Provision of software
development
services
CPCNet Hong Kong Limited &5 100 - 100 394,866,986 BT REBBERE
Hong Kong HK$1  Provision of internet
services
CPCNet Japantk &t B 100 - 100 10,000 1,000H R G AR
CPCNet Japan Limited Japan JPY1,000  Provision of internet

services
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30 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly

Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued

R
Interest in equity
shares held by

BEITROHER
Particulars of
issued shares’

Ealiiave: Ly
FE2LEHE REEN ARTE WEBATF
£y SENERI % % % (Egv-¢= HE IEXK
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
CPCNet2FIAR A JBFT 100 - 100 NEmR TER REIBERET
Bty
CPCNet Macau Limited Macau N/A N/A  Provision of internet
and e-commerce
services
CPCNet Singapore Private N 100 - 100 2 1EET  RUEEARS
Limited Singapore S$1  Provision of internet
services
RERZYBRBERAT (EE FEARKANE 73.30 - 73.30 T TER  REARERAEEER
B —ZZMEMA-—+—H) PIEEEEE"
Dalian CP Digital People’s Republic of China N/A N/A Broadband network
Technology Co., Ltd. Sino-foreign equity and related
(Date of re-organisation: joint venture* businesses
21 April 2004)
Data Communication Services &% 100 - 100 1,000 BEIT  REHEAERE
Limited 38,000,000* BT
Hong Kong HK$1  Provision of
HK$1 telecommunications
equipment
tRBERENERAT B 100 - 100 300,000 B0 RUEHARS
Global Link Information Hong Kong HK$10  Provision of internet
Services Limited services
BERRBEERRF BB 100 - 100 2,250,000 BB  REEBERS
Vision Network Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Provision of internet
services
BEMARAE BB 100 - 100 1,000 BT REEEEARS
2,000,000* BT
World Navigation Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Provision of
HK$1 international

telecommunications
services
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B BEQRREE Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
BRERNA s and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued
FrakiE BEITRMHER"
Interest in equity Particulars of
shares held by issued shares'
FEfA St 2/
FEEEME SEpEN Al MEAR
Ei ENEER % % % ESnEZ4E] HE FEEK
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
BMNTREEREMNARAR RE AR LR 100 - 100 TNEfA TEA  REE AR ERE
SNEBAE R
People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Provision of internet
Wholly foreign—owned value added
enterprise” services
EMTHREREBMRERAF RE AR LR 100 - 100 TNEA TEA REEEARERE
SNEBAE R
People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Provision of internet
Wholly foreign—owned value added
enterprise” services
HEHEHE
Jointly controlled entities
PIERZARAR RE AR TR 50 - 50 - - EBEER
FINEBEE R
CITIC Guoan Co., Ltd. People’s Republic of China Investment holding
Sino-foreign equity
joint venture*
N
Associated companies
RFIEFARR A Pl ! 20 20 - - - EHUEERS
Companhia de Macau Telecommunications

Telecomunicacoes
de Macau S.A.R.L.

services
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30 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly

ER BEQRREHE Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
BENRA s and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued
A IR BEITROHER
Interest in equity Particulars of
shares held by issued shares®
AR B /
FE2LEHE REES ARTE WEBATF
“iE SENERR % % % EignE- =] HE FEXEH
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
Mz
Aviation
RIS T
Jointly controlled entities
TEEREEREERAR HEARAME 25 25 - - - EHE - BAmEEE
HONEERLERE AR 3t T PR 7S
Air China Cargo People’s Republic of China Operation of
Sino-foreign equity international and
joint venture* domestic air-cargo
services and
related ground
services
=N
Associated companies
BEMEERAR BB 25.498 2.124 23.374 - - MERERERE
Cathay Pacific Airways Hong Kong Airlines and related
Limited” services
BRMEERAR BB 28.50 - 28.50 - - MEEK
Hong Kong Dragon Airlines Hong Kong Aviation
Limited
Swire Aviation Limited &5 33.33 - 33.33 - - RBEERTESI
BRATZ10%
BN
Hong Kong Investment in

Hong Kong Air
Cargo Terminals
Limited with 10%
effective interest
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30 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly

B B ’A AREGIE Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
BRERNA s and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued
BB B BRITRHER
Interest in equity Particulars of
shares held by issued shares!
Sk S Hh 2/
FEEEMR EEEN RAF MELE
218 ENER % % % ifn g8 HE F2XEH
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
SHEEDH
Marketing & Distribution
KB 2 a]
Subsidiary companies
ZEESHAGH BA 100 - 100 250 50,000HE AEZHES
Adachi Trading Company Japan JPY50,000  Trader of motor
Limited vehicle spare
parts
AEAEARAR B 100 - 100 1,000 AH1007T EEG )
Confidence Motors Limited Hong Kong HK$100  Motor vehicle
distributor
REtEZHHERLARRQF BB 100 - 100 1,000 BE100T AEZHES
Consolidated Parts & Hong Kong HK$100  Trader of motor
Accessories Sales vehicle spare
Centre Limited parts
REE ST (MEX)ERRF mex 100 - 100 650,000 MEIT AR A RIREE
Dah Chong Hong (Canada) Canada CAN$1  General import/
Ltd. export and
investment
holding
RE—BEMSHRE BB 70 - 70 10,000 BT RSB ERS
REAR AT HE IR
Dah Chong Hong — Dragonair Hong Kong HK$1  Provision of airport

Airport GSE Service Limited

ground support
equipment
maintenance
services
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BERAREE

30 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued

R
Interest in equity
shares held by

EHITRHER
Particulars of
issued shares®

AR B /
FE2LEHE REES ARTE WEBATF
Eg ] SENERR % % % EignE- =] HE FEXEH
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
EBSTIRERAR BB 100 - 100 100,000 BE1007T TERB
Dah Chong Hong (Engineering)  Hong Kong HK$100  Engineering services
Limited
REMTEEBRRAF (A7 BB 100 - 100 21,031,837 B0 REER
EEHITEEARAF)
Dah Chong Hong Holdings Hong Kong HK$10  Investment holding
Limited
SEHTERAT BB 100 - 100 50,000 #E#1,000t REER EHAR
ZERM  BEEAM
REAMER
Dah Chong Hong, Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000  Investment holding;
general importers,
retailers and
exporters dealing
in foodstuffs,
electrical
appliances and
other products
HAEHREEHT [ZR:N 100 - 100 480,000 1,000HE &  FERKK
RO WERE
RIREER
Dah Chong Hong (Japan) Japan JPY1,000 Importer and
Limited exporter of
foodstuffs, motor
vehicles and
garments; property
investment and
investment holding
EEH1TAE (hE) BRAF BB 100 - 100 20,000 BE100T REER
Dah Chong Hong Motors Hong Kong HK$100  Investment holding

(China) Limited
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30 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued

FrHRE
Interest in equity
shares held by

BEITRHER
Particulars of
issued shares’

Al ave: ke
FE2LEHE FEEN A7 MEAR
Ey SENERRI % % % fth & 8 HE FBXEH
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
RETOIERERS) BRAR o 100 - 100 10,000 B0 REMEE
Dah Chong Hong (Motor Hong Kong HK$10  Motor leasing
Leasing) Limited
REBGITRERBFLARRE BE 100 - 100 2,000 B¥A100T  RELEERS
Dah Chong Hong (Motor Hong Kong HK$100  Motor vehicle
Service Centre) Limited repairing and
servicing
REEBHITRE(HE—+HE) BB 100 - 100 2 B0 REAHE
BRAT
Dah Chong Hong Motors Hong Kong HK$10  Motor vehicle
(Nissan — China) Limited distributor
REBHTT GhR) MABRLDF  #E 100 - 100 3,500,000 1HmgET REZRERARMES
Dah Chong Hong Trading Singapore S$1  Investment holding
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd. and trading of
foodstuffs
RE-—BEMMIIEERAF i 70 - 70 10,000 BT ZERBREEZMH
DAS Aviation Support Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Distributor of air
cargo equipment
and related
spare parts
RE-—BREEZEXRERLF o 49 - 49 10,000 BEIT ZEAEGEERE
RS REBZMHHEE
DAS Nordisk Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Repairs and
maintenance

services for air
cargo containers
and sale of related
spare parts
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30 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued

R
Interest in equity
shares held by

EHITRHER
Particulars of
issued shares®

Ealiiave: Ly
FE2LEHE REEN AAR HEAR
“iE SENERR % % % EignE- =] HE FEXEH
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
REMTRMABRER AT BB 100 - 100 60,000 BE¥I0TT BH
DCH Beverage Solutions Hong Kong HK$10  Trading
Limited
RETYIRBERAR BB 100 - 100 10,000 BEEA0TT  RHAERIKERRE
DCH Logistics Company Hong Kong HK$10  Provision of
Limited warehouse and
transportation
services
REEBHITAE (BEN) BERAA BB 100 - 100 2 BB RELEHD
DCH Motors (Bentley) Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Motor vehicle
distributor
DCH Motors Ltd. mex 100 - 100 100 AT AEAHEE
Canada CAN$1  Motor vehicle
distributor
BEAERRAT BB 100 - 100 22,000 B0 AELHED
Epic Motors Limited Hong Kong HK$10  Motor vehicle
distributor
T ERM AR AR BB 100 - 100 166,000 BT KEBERSRAE
Gentech Vehicle Engineering Hong Kong HK$1  Trading of special
Limited function vehicles
ERAERRAT BB 100 - 100 1,000 1007 REAAHE
Harmony Motors Limited Hong Kong HK$100  Motor vehicle
distributor
EHAERRAT BB 100 - 100 3,000 HB#1,0007t RELHER
Honest Motors, Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000  Motor vehicle
distributor
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30 TEMBAR ~ HLREEH 30 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
ER HMEQRARGHE Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
BRERNA s and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued
FrHRE BEITRHER
Interest in equity Particulars of
shares held by issued shares’
RIS/
FE2LEHE FEEN A7 MEAR
Ey SENERRI % % % fth & 8 HE FBXEH
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
REAEZMHTERAT BB 100 - 100 1,000 BEA00T ARETHESH
Japan Auto Parts Company Hong Kong HK$100  Trader of motor
Limited vehicle spare parts
IMKEEETIEREARAT REARAFE 100 - 100 TER TER HERBERIEHE
kRE
Jiangmen Dah Chong Hong — People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Construction and
Sims Industrial development of
Development Limited industrial factories
and warehouses
SEAERRAF BB 100 - 100 3,000,000 BT AEEHE
Metro Motors Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Motor vehicle
distributor
SHTERRAF BB 100 - 100 2 BT RELLHN
Premium Motors Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Motor vehicle
distributor
BREAERRRAF BB 100 - 100 2,000 B0  REALHERE
Regal Motors, Limited Hong Kong HK$100  Motor vehicle
distributor
EHAERRRAF BB 100 - 100 3,000 E#¥1,0000T TELLHE
Reliance Motors, Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000  Motor vehicle
distributor
EEARAR BB 100 - 100 3,000 BE100T  #EE
Sims Trading Company Limited Hong Kong HK$100  Wholesaling
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30 TEMB AR ~ HLREHEH 30 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
B -BEQARSE Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
BENRA s and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued
R BEITROHER
Interest in equity Particulars of
shares held by issued shares®
Ealiiave: Ly
FE2LEHE REEN ARTE WEBATF
£y SENERI % % % (Egv-¢= HE IEXEH
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
EBRETRRIEARAR hEEARHAME 100 - 100 NEmR TEA BRRNIRES
INEBERE”
Shanghai DCH Food People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Food processing
Industries Ltd. Wholly foreign-owned and trading
enterprise*
ERAELABRAR N 100 - 100 3,000,000 1IN RS
Triangle Auto Pte Ltd Singapore S$1  Motor vehicle
distributor
ERAERRRF BB 100 - 100 30,000 1007 REAAHE
Triangle Motors Limited Hong Kong HK$100  Motor vehicle
distributor
ERAE (PE) BRRQF BB 100 - 100 2 B0 REBRRAEESH
Triangle Motors (China) Hong Kong HK$10  Investment holding
Limited and trading of
motor vehicles
2RERBRRF B 100 - 100 2 a1t EBS
Twin Tiger International Limited  Hong Kong HK$1  Trading
IFIREEERERMIER hEEARHAME 90 - 90 NEmA TEA RoNIERDERSE
BRARA TN EEERE
People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Processing of food

Sino-foreign equity
joint venture*

products and
provision of
logistics services
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30 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly

B BEQRREE Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
BRERNA s and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued
FrHRE BEITRHER
Interest in equity Particulars of
shares held by issued shares’
FEfA St 2/
FEEEME FEEN A7 MEAR
£ SENERRI % % % fth & 8 HE FBXEH
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
REIFEHIERE
Jointly controlled entities
BEEREMEHERERAT o 50 - 50 - - ftERES
Shiseido Dah Chong Hong Hong Kong Trading in cosmetic
Cosmetics Limited products
[ d-N|
Associated companies
BE+HEARARS BB 50 - 50 - - DHEEEMRTH
Alto China Limited® Hong Kong Distributor of audio
equipment and
components
PEEERERAERAAS RE AR TR 22 - 22 - - 4SERBERER
FONEBIEERE EWRM
Shanghai Shineway DCH People’s Republic of China Production and
Tyson Co., Ltd.® Sino-foreign equity selling of meat
joint venture* and related
food products
BER (B7%) BXEBEBERAF] o 20 - 20 - - WHERSHREESR
Victory (HK) Industries Hong Kong Sales and
International Company distribution

Limited

of household
electrical
appliances
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30 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly

B -BEQARSE Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
BENRA s and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued
R BEITROHERT
Interest in equity Particulars of
shares held by issued shares®
Ealiiave: Ly
FE2LEHE REEN AAR HEAR
“iE SENERR % % % EignE- =] HE FEXEH
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
L/ES
Property
K18 2 7l
Subsidiary companies
X BERAF B 100 - 100 2 BEI10TT  MERE
Admarch Limited Hong Kong HK$10  Property investment
XY EEBRFRAR BB 100 - 100 2 BEAT WEER
Admarch Property Management Hong Kong HK$1 Property
Company, Limited management
Borgia Limited BE 100 - 100 2 BEI10TT  MERE
Hong Kong HK$10  Property investment
BEFLEBRERAF B 100 - 100 2 BEAT WEER
Broadway Centre Property Hong Kong HK$1  Property
Management Company management
Limited
SHEERARRFA B 100 - 100 2 BEAT WEER
Campbellton Development Hong Kong HK$1  Property
Limited development
EBRAR B 100 - 100 2 BT WERE
Famous Land Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Property investment
Glenridge Company Limited B 100 - 100 2 BEI0TT  MERE
Hong Kong HK$10  Property investment
Goldenburg Properties Limited & 70 - 70 1,000 BEI0TT  MERE
Hong Kong HK$10  Property investment
EHEBEXARATF B 100 - 100 80,000 BE100T  MERE
Hang Luen Chong Investment Hong Kong HK$100  Property investment

Company, Limited
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30 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly

ER HMEQRARGHE Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
BRERNA s and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued
FrHRE BEITRHER
Interest in equity Particulars of
shares held by issued shares'
RIS/
TELEME FEEN A7 MEAR
£ SENEERI % % % Rt 8B HE IEXH
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
EMENEEERRAA o 100 - 100 2 BEIT WEER
Hang Luen Chong Property Hong Kong HK$1  Property
Management Company, management
Limited
BEEEXERRAF BB 100 - 100 50,000 BE100T  MERE
Hang Wah Chong Investment Hong Kong HK$100  Property investment
Company Limited
Lindenford Limited BB 100 - 100 2 B0 MERE
Hong Kong HK$10  Property investment
HERERRRF BB 100 - 100 2 BEAT WERE
Neostar Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Property investment
BEARAA BB 100 - 100 2 BEAT WERE
Pacific Grace Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Property investment
PEREEXERAR hEEARAME 100 - 100 TER TEB PERERER
INEBERE”
Shanghai Super Property People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Property investment
Co., Ltd. Wholly foreign-owned and management
enterprise*
Tendo Limited BB 100 - 100 2 BEI0T  MERERER
Hong Kong HK$10  Property investment
and management
WHERREERAR BB 100 - 100 1,000,000 BEAT KEREEE
Yee Lim Godown & Cold Hong Kong HK$1  Operate a dry and

Storage Limited

cold storage
godown
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30 £ EM‘JE ~AE > HEE 30 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
ER BEQRREHE Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
BENRA s and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued
R BEITROHER
Interest in equity Particulars of
shares held by issued shares’
Ealiiave: Ly
FE2LEHE REEN ARTE WEBATF
£y SENERI % % % (Egv-¢= HE IEXEH
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
PR ERERSERAT I AR AFE 80 - 80 NEmR THEA WERERER
PIAEEELE"
People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Property investment
Sino-foreign equity and management
joint venture*
PEEEMFEEEARAR I AR AFE 100 - 100 NEmR THEB  WEER
POMA B
People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Property
Sino-foreign co-operative development
joint venture*
BHERXAZERERAT I AR AFE 70 - 70 NEmA TEB  EDRSRS
oA EEE DR
People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Sports related
Sino-foreign equity services
joint venture*
B RKMEELEER AT REE AR AFE 70 - 70 NEmA THEB WEREREER
PIAEEELE"
People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Property investment
Sino-foreign equity and development
joint venture*
G ARKMEERERRER DA REE AR AFE 70 - 70 NEmA TEA  RERE
PIAEEELE"
People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Environmental

Sino-foreign equity
joint venture*

protection
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30 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly

ER - -BELARSE Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
BRERNA s and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued
A R BEITRHER
Interest in equity Particulars of
shares held by issued shares’
Al ave: ke
TELEME FEEN A7 MEAR
£ SENEERI % % % Rt 8B HE IEXH
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
VN
Associated companies
PEAEEEARRAF o 40 - 40 - - DEER
CITIC Tower Property Hong Kong Property
Management Company management
Limited
X —HIERAERRFS BB 50 - 50 - - PERAE
Festival Walk Holdings Limited® Hong Kong Property investment
SEREBRRA o 40 - 40 - - PERE
Goldon Investment Limited Hong Kong Property investment
BEREERRRFS BB 50 - 50 - - DEER
Hong Kong Resort Company Hong Kong Property
Limited® development
Kido Profits Limited HBELES/EE 15 - 15 - - DERE
British Virgin Islands / Property
Hong Kong development
REERRRAS BB 20 - 20 - - MERE
Shinta Limited*® Hong Kong Property investment
BEXARRFS BB 40 - 40 - - DEERR
Sun Kong Investment Hong Kong Property
Company, Limited® development
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30 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly

Controlled Entities, Associated Companies

BENRA s and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued
R BEITROHER
Interest in equity Particulars of
shares held by issued shares®
AR B /
FE2LEHE REES ARTE WEBATF
Eg ] SENERR % % % EignE- =] HE FEXEH
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
THBGE
Industrial Manufacturing
/8 22 &)
Subsidiary companies
LR ERSEREER AR hEARAME 79.47 - 79.47 TEA TEA  WEEE
TN ERLE LR
Jiangyin Xingcheng Special People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Steel making
Steel Works Co., Ltd. Sino-foreign equity
joint venture*
IR SR A AR A) REE AR ARE 80 - 80 TEmR TEA MELE
PR EEERE"
Jiangyin Xingcheng Steel People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Steel making
Products Co., Ltd. Sino-foreign equity
joint venture*®
LR ER FERR AR REARAME 80 - 80 TEA TEA  RHER
PGB ERES
Jiangyin Xingcheng Storage People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Loading and
and Transportation Co., Ltd.  Sino-foreign equity unloading
joint venture™ business
IHZEABERMER AR hEARKME 77.37 - 7737 TiEA TEA WEEE
(I IHREWRHRERD DI EEERE"
BRAR)
Jiangsu CP Xingcheng People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Steel making
Special Steel Co., Ltd. Sino-foreign equity
joint venture*®
35 FR M B R AR REARKFE 80 - 80 TEA TEA 4SERFEEEEEE
PR BB K Mk
Wauxi Xingcheng Steel People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Production and sale

Products Co., Ltd.

Sino-foreign equity
joint venture*

of ferrous metal
materials
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30 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly

Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued

FrHRE
Interest in equity
shares held by

BEITRNDER

Particulars of

issued shares’

Al ave: ke
FE2LEHE FEEN A7 MEAR
Ey SENERRI % % % fth & 8 HE FBXEH
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
IRRERESEHAAERAR hEEARME 78.82 - 78.82 TiEmA TEA EEMEEREEK
IR BEERES REER
People’s Republic of China N/A N/A Production and sale
Sino-foreign equity of hot iron and the
joint venture* related products
MibE R BR AR (WKiEHE hEARLME 95 - 95 NiE A TEA  WEEE
—ZTNE+ATEA) PG EREDRE"
Hubei Xin Yegang Co., Ltd. People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Steel making
(Date of acquisition: Sino-foreign equity
15 October 2004) joint venture*
Bt %
Finance
K& 2 7l
Subsidiary companies
CITIC Pacific Finance (2001) RERLES 100 100 - 1,000 1E7x BERH
Limited British Virgin Islands US$1  Financing
Idealand Investment Inc. EeHENE 100 - 100 100 1E7x BERH
Republic of Panama US$1  Financing
NG|
Associated companies
Cheer First Limited® BB 40 - 40 - - ®WEH
Hong Kong Financing
Treasure Trove Limited BB 50 - 50 - - ®WEH
Hong Kong Financing
EEMBHRARF BE 50 - 50 - - RHEBEKEERE
Way Chong Finance Limited Hong Kong Provision of hire

purchase and
leasing finance
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30 TEMBRAF ~ REE=EH
BR BEARAREAE

30 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued

R
Interest in equity
shares held by

BETROER
Particulars of
issued shares’

R 2 /
F LB EEES ARRATE MBAF
HiH ENERR* % % % Mt # 8 HE FEXEH
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
Hit
Others
KB 2 a]
Subsidiary companies
PERE (FE)REFRRQF hEARAME 100 - 100 TNEA THEA REER
SNEEERE”
CITIC Pacific China Holdings People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Investment holding
Limited Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise”
FEREEREFERAR hEARAME 100 - 100 TNEA TER YREEER
RONEVER B RS
People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Logistic
Sino-foreign co-operative development
joint venture*
HEZEH TR
Jointly controlled entities
HEEARTISERERAT BB 50 - 50 - - REERK
CITIC Capital Markets Hong Kong Investment holding
Holdings Limited
Bt Note :

(@) FECE—HRE-AGIERAERZAERERA]
AfR - ARAFEARZERAZEmHEELBEE
IERER D R+ BER = +FIFETEARATE
ZEEBHIE - MU ZERERA ZEEENE
EWMRERIRE - B A

(b) FINERTEEZ A1EE ERFIALR - ERFEER
ZEHE 2 Bl B S = A RARER W+ LFE
BFHEARKATEZ BINTRERIRERNAIFE °
Mt - ZIREIFA 2 ZEEAFEWRIERIRE -
BBl EHEFHFER

tBREBEBS  IEEERD

VERZRELIRG — ISRV ZEF] - 15 RIR I
BRBRARFZEEERAAIA

S REZFBEMES —A=+—HEARARENE LA
HIIER TR E B RATHAEZ L] -

P XEEZETEBENFIRFMEBRARE AMRE
ZIHEHRFEI65 K166 °

162

(a) Ligang Phase | and Il are accounted for as a co-operative joint venture of the Group
as the Group’s interests therein will revert to the joint venture partners in the People’s
Republic of China after fifteen years and twenty years respectively from the date on which
the electricity generators became operational. Accordingly their results are accounted for
to the extent of dividends received and receivable, less amounts amortised.

(b) Xinli is accounted for as a co-operative joint venture of the Group as the Group’s
interest therein will revert to Zhengzhou Construction Investment Co. in the People’s
Republic of China after fifteen years from the date on which the third unit commenced
commercial operation. Accordingly its results are accounted for to the extent of
dividends received and receivable, less amounts amortised.

Represented ordinary shares, unless otherwise stated.

Non-voting deferred shares — the rights, privileges and restrictions of which are set out

in the Articles of Association of the respective company.

The above companies are the affiliated companies have been given to financial

assistance and guarantees given for facilities granted by the Company and/or its

subsidiary company as at 31 December 2004.

Extracts from the published accounts of Cathay Pacific Airways Limited, a significant

associated company of the Group, are shown on pages 165 and 166.
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Auditors’ report to the shareholders of CITIC Pacific Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the accounts on pages 86 to 162 which have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in

Hong Kong, save as explained in accounting policy Note 1(q) on page 105.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
The Hong Kong Companies Ordinance requires the directors to prepare
accounts which give a true and fair view. In preparing accounts which give
a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies

are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our
audit, on those accounts and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or

accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence
relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the accounts. It also includes
an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by

the directors in the preparation of the accounts, and of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the circumstances of the Company

and the Group, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information
and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us
with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the
accounts are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion

we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information
in the accounts. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for

our opinion.
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1% R0 R & Auditors’ Report

BER Opinion

AR - EAREIRE 2D AEHRA P In our opinion the accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
SR HAFE REER -FTNELT A of the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2004 and of the profit
=t HAERRMBGRI - & BHEMEZE  and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended and have been

W% H AR A A R e > WA IRE#L properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies

R % 7 i Ordinance.

3 5% UK IE Bt B 2 PricewaterhouseCoopers

S ES i Certified Public Accountants
il “EFEFNFE=HTHH Hong Kong, 15 March 2005
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B EAL 2= R AR O Ak H Z 43
Extract from Published Accounts of

Cathay Pacific Airways Limited

a HRERER

WE_FEZWESZH =+ —HIEE

a Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

for the year ended 31 December 2004

LB BT E in HK$ million 2004 2003
=2 Turnover
RiERS Passenger services 26,407 18,663
BiER® Cargo services 11,395 9,913
Pz R R R H A AR TS Catering and other services 1,263 1,002
EERE Total Turnover 39,065 29,578
BX Expenses
BT Staff (8,842) (8,035)
filg Route (6,890) (5,416)
R Fuel (7,836) (5,236)
RS Aircraft maintenance (3,784) (2,856)
TEREENRE Depreciation and operating leases (5,170) (4,860)
ika Commissions (529) (400)
Hit Others (767) (550)
MY Operating Expenses (33,818) (27,353)
= E] Operating Profit 5,247 2,225
B Finance charges (1,628) (1,807)
ETON Finance income 1,045 1,187
BI7& SR R Net finance charges (583) (620)
FE(REE B A RE A Share of profits of associated companies 356 151
R B AR A Profit before Tax 5,020 1,756
A Taxation (504) (409)
BRELB R Profit after Tax 4,516 1,347
LEIRR R Minority interests (99) (44)
BREEMEER Profit Attributable to Shareholders 4,417 1,303
BE Dividends
FH—B2IR Interim — paid 674 100
RE—FR Final - proposed 1,517 572
FrRl— Bk Special — paid - 943
2,191 1,615
BREF (B Earnings per Share (HK¢)
LN Basic 131.4 39.0
e Diluted 130.7 38.8
BRERES (B¥IT) Shareholders’ Funds per Share (HK$) 9.8 9.3
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ZEMEARQAFELMIER 22 Extract from Published Accounts of Cathay Pacific Airways Limited

b Z#EEE&RER

CEFWE LA AR

b Consolidated Balance Sheet

as at 31 December 2004

LB BEE T E in HK$ million 2004 2003
BEEREHE Assets and Liabilities
FnBEERAE Non-current assets and liabilities
ETEEE Fixed assets 51,808 51,357
BREE Intangible assets 348 405
REB AR ZIRE Investments in associated companies 1,743 1,661
Hip REEIBFIEREZE Other long-term receivables and investments 4,076 1,263
57,975 54,686
REGE Long-term liabilities (27,698) (33,022)
AR ERFR Related pledged security deposits 10,036 11,604
RHAEFHE Net long-term liabilities (17,662) (21,418)
RAKEFNEE Retirement benefit obligations (102) (181)
EERIE Deferred taxation (7,280) (7,762)
(25,044) (29,361)
FnBEEFE Net non-current assets 32,931 25,325
MBAERAE Current assets and liabilities
FE Stock 524 398
B 5 RHEMERRIE Trade and other receivables 5,311 4,753
nEBES Liquid funds 11,474 15,200
17,309 20,351
REBEZRBHS Current portion of long-term liabilities (7,096) (6,754)
AR ERFR Related pledged security deposits 2,127 1,875
REBEZRBHHFE Net current portion of long-term liabilities (4,969) (4,879)
B 5 REMERNFTIE Trade and other payables (7,163) (5,543)
REE R W Unearned transportation revenue (8,622) (2,839)
BIE Taxation (1,497) (1,259)
(17,251) (14,520)
REAEFE Net current assets 58 5,831
BELERTBRIETDEE Total assets less current and non-current liabilities 32,989 31,156
DERE = Minority interests (134) (104)
HEFE Net assets 32,855 31,052
EXRREE Capital and Reserves
[N Share capital 674 669
i Reserves 32,181 30,383
RREE Shareholders’ funds 32,855 31,052
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il B E 7%
Definition of Terms

20 g/
A% AR

E%ER

FExR®EZ
Re TR

wnafm
FRE
BEX
EBITDA

BREF

BRERES

BRLR

BRASRE

FEEH

&8 < ) ek S= X
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MR EIRE - B RES
AR 4 RT3
Bk &4+ A

AEFEAE S~ BUA - 8
J Al 2 1 i

W 2 B u A > I
LA - EED L Ty
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R E

FIRC BT IAL
i 5 4 B

AR
BEAR

A BT 3 2 B ER
R B AT AL
B 3 8

AEFEHB I~ B
P8 B 2 T A
FLE

Terms
Capital employed

Cash contributed
from all business

Total debt
Net debt
Total capital

EBITDA

Contribution

Ratios

Earnings per share

Shareholders’ funds
per share

Leverage

Cashflow per share

Interest cover

Shareholders’ funds + total debt

Cash inflow to CITIC Pacific Ltd. from its
subsidiary companies, jointly controlled
entities, associated companies and

other investments

Short term and long term loans, notes and bonds

Total debt less cash and bank deposits
Shareholders’ funds + net debt

Net profit less interest expense, taxation,
depreciation and amortisation

A business’s after tax profit that contributes
to unallocated central interest, overhead
and goodwill

Profit attributable to shareholders

Weighted average number of shares
(by days) in issue for the year

Shareholders’ funds

Total issued and fully paid shares
at end of the year

Net debt

Total capital

Cash contributed from all business

Total issued and fully paid shares
at end of the year

EBITDA

Interest expense



USRIt X/ o

Major Properties Held by the Group

HEZEZNEST A=+ —H%H as at 31 December 2004

BAEm A
Ho 2 / b ER SR 2K HREWE  EEESE% CFAR) b2 lacheo
Leasehold Group’s  Approximate Gross
Address / Lot No. Expiry Interest % Floor Area (sq. ft.) Existing Use
TEREME
Major Properties Held For Investment
1. NWEREEIRZENE 2041 100 309,000 BrEREW
NEEAHER 297065 & B R I 15 270017 2 260415
Skyway House, 3 Sham Mong Road, Kowloon, H.K. Office and Shop
2604/2700th shares of KIL, No. 9706 & the extension thereto
2. EORELLE2-285 MEEH2-6F MM I EH LCE 2047 100 320,000 REBEERER
2R b 2 2233355900017 2 400015
Block C of Yee Lim Industrial Centre, 2-28 Kwai Lok Street, Cold Storage
and 2-6 Kwai Hei Street, Kwai Chung, H.K. and Godown
4000/9000th shares of KCTL No. 333
3. BRMEEEEE-11REHMTERNE 2880 100 48,000 BrEREW
MY 85431 [ 543255
Honest Motors Building, 9-11, Leighton Road, Causeway Bay, H.K. Office and Shop
HKIL No. 5431 and 5432
4. FARERBNEHB192-2105RERFLE—H - 2047 100 393,000 I
B0 E ZHE1 RE2HE R2EEPS0RPS 1R E L
B IER E 1305 A M) 2 AR 1115213 2577915
Wyler Centre 1, Basement 1 & 2 and Parking Spaces Industrial
Nos P50 and P51 on 2nd Floor of Wyler Centre 2,
192-210 Tai Lin Pai Road, Kwai Chung, H.K.
5779/11152th shares of and in the Remaining Portion
of Kwai Chung Town
Lot No. 130 and the extension thereto
5. MAEBERKIIFAER L  HRBMIRFE435% 2047 100 342,000 ERkMERTE
Broadway Centre, No. 93 Kwai Fuk Road, Kwai Chung, Godown and
H.K. KCTL No. 435 Ancillary Office
6. BRHBREMK2ERAETEES L 2047 100 389,000 BrERER
A3 ER 55 8854 5%
DCH Commercial Centre, No. 25, Westlands Road, Quarry Bay, Office and
H.K. HKIL8854 Restaurants
7. BETBRAEEIRTEAE 2047 40 562,000 BrEKEH

A EY 25 88225
CITIC Tower, No. 1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central, H.K.
HKIL No. 8822

Office and Shop
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BB EmmEmE

B / 1 ER SR &K HREFE SEEE% (FFAFR) RS RR
Leasehold Group’s  Approximate Gross

Address / Lot No. Expiry Interest % Floor Area (sq. ft.) Existing Use
8. NEX—HEZEX—H - MAENBERE1815 2047 50 1,200,000 BFEREH
Festival Walk, Tat Chee Avenue, Yau Yat Tsuen, Kowloon, Office and Shop

H.K. NKIL No. 6181
9. HELEHZREAAKI168RHEREES 2044 80 1,137,000 BFEREH
CITIC Square, 1168 Nanjing Xi Lu, Jingan District, Shanghai, the PRC Office and Shop
10. HE EEFHREELR688HELAS 2063 100 374,000 F=E
Royal Pavilion, 688 Hua Shan Lu, Jingan District, Shanghai, the PRC Residential
11. Hiro-o Garden Hills, West Hill I-1204, Hiro-o 4-chome, KAFERE 100 873 F=E
Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, Japan Freehold Residential
12. Hiro-o Garden Hills, Centre Hill H-1403, Hiro-o 4-chome, KAFERE 100 2,012 F=E
Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, Japan Freehold Residential
13. Hiro-o Garden Hills, South Hill D-507, Hiro-o 4-chome, KA FKERE 100 2,264 F=E
Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, Japan Freehold Residential
14. Dah Chong No. 1 Building, 12-6, Roppongi, 3-chome, KA FKERE 100 34,528 BENREES
Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan Freehold Commercial &
Restaurants, etc.
15. Dah Chong No. 2 Building, B1/F-4/F, 18-2, Roppongi, 5-chome, KA EERE 100 13,067 BENREES
Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan Freehold Commercial &
Restaurants, etc.
16. Toriizaka House 14-19, Roppongi, 5-chome, KA 100 7,352 FERETE
Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan Freehold Residential & Office

* BRi 2 U (Rl B () 2 B AR A R — 1.2 Y E P
* excluding a petrol filling station on the ground floor with an ancillary storage tank in part of the basement and a storeroom on the first floor
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LEHE 2 EEWE Major Properties Held by the Group

B4 B4
&t HE  SERER H AR A BEmE
% / H0ER5 2R B TR B, RIHH 5 [E % (FHIR) (FFR) RERE
Estimated Approximate Approximate
Stage of Completion Leasehold Group’s Site Area  Gross Floor
Location / Lot No. Completion Date Classification Expiry Interest % (sq. ft.) Area (sqg. ft.) Existing Use
BRBZIEYE
Major Properties Held For Development
1. #FRTH TER TEA TER 2047 100 193,652 TER eI AR
E1215 LB N EI0RIR 2 BRER
39455 ER 2 #AER - 395~ 396 ~ 397 »
399 - 400 * 401 ~ 402 ~ 405 - 406 -
407 ~ 409 * 410570 B 2 BRER -
25 R 2 RRER ~ 41BSRIER 2 BRER -
AR 2 #RER ~ 416~ 417 - 418~
A19R 42450 R XL ELH
F12THRE27AMER 2 BRER
E2TBIIER 2 BRER - 2795 MR < BRER
2825R I ER 2 RER - 2835RHER 2 BRER
284 - 285 - 28657BE 2 #HEL
E286%BRE — DB R FE 286 MR 2 AR
Lot Nos. 390Rp, 394Rp, 395, 396, 397, N/A N/A N/A N/A Construction
399, 400, 401, 402, 405, 406, 407, 409, Site
410Rp, 412Rp, 413Rp, 414Rp, 416, 417,
418, 419 and 424 in D.D. No. 121 and
Lot Nos. 274Rp, 278Rp, 279Rp, 282Rp,
283Rp, 284, 285, 286sB Rp, 286sB ss1
and 286Rp in D.D. No. 127 Yuen Long,
New Territories, H.K.
2. NWERDEEMNE500%5025 Rt —ETNF FEREE 2055 100 35,600 321,000 B AR
T JLBE A3 R 5563655
No. 500 and 502, Design in 2008  Residential Construction
Tung Chau Street, progress & Site
Cheung Sha Wan, Commercial

Kowloon, H.K.
NKIL No. 6365
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EA0) EA0)

st HR  SE#ER Hh AR A IBEEE
Hh 2 / R SR 2K W% T RRER BT HEH 57 JE W E % (FAR) (FAR) bR ik
Estimated Approximate Approximate
Stage of ~ Completion Leasehold  Group’s Site Area  Gross Floor
Location / Lot No. Completion Date Classification Expiry Interest % (sg. ft.) Area (sqg. ft.) Existing Use
3. LEMERBEAREE/ TFHEAT £ FEREE 2072 100 734,783 3,000,000 A
BEREE AP FETE —TERF
FERK
New Westgate Garden, Super- Phase 1 Residential Construction
Xi Zang Nan Lu / structure in 2006 & Site
Jian Guo Dong Lu, in progress Commercial
Huang Pu District,
Shanghai, the PRC
4. DEFHREE Rt B —TENF = 2074 100 1,450,000 1,000,000 A
Residential Development, Design in 2008  Residential Construction
Qing Pu District, progress Site
Shanghai, the PRC
B4 EmmEAE
B /0 ER SR & TE 22 7 B SEERY% (FAHR) RSA®E
Leasehold Group’s Approximate Gross
Address / Lot No. Expiry Interest % Floor Area (sg. ft.) Existing Use
BREZTEYE
Major Properties Held for Sale
NBERBIRIE109-135% 5E K E 2006 100 135,000 =
NBEAERE26575EDERE1 R E29 R MR ER
Grand Court, 109-135 Kadoorie Avenue, Kowloon, H.K. Residential

Subsections 1 and 2 and the Remaining Portion of Section D of KIL No. 2657
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Shareholders may at any time choose to receive the Summary Financial Report or the Annual Report in printed form or to
rely on their versions posted on the Company’s website. They may also at any time choose to receive the Summary Financial
Report or the Annual Report in place of the other. Shareholders may change their choice on these matters by writing to the
Company’s Share Registrars, Tengis Limited at G/F, Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.

If Shareholders have already chosen to reply on the versions of the Summary Financial Report or the Annual Report posted
on the Company’s website and have difficulty in gaining access to those documents, they will, promptly upon request, be sent

those documents in printed form free of charge. Please send the request to the Company’s Share Registrars.
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